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CHAPTER 1.
GENERAL PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATION &
REQUIREMENTS
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Section 1.01
(a)

Community Development Department Overview

Mission and Vision

Grantor: The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Regional Field Office- Community Planning and Development (CPD) Indianapolis, Indiana:
Oversees grantee administration of HUD funding and HUD regulations.
Grantee: The City of Anderson, Indiana (PJ-Participating Jurisdiction)
City of Anderson Community Development Mission
Administer statutory, regulatory and local policies which must be enforced to ensure compliance,
including directives of the Federal, State and Local Government as well as the Board of Works.
Primary function of the department is to administer entitlement grants to the City of Anderson from
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), currently including: Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME).
Entitlement Grants: CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) and HOME Investment
Partnerships funding.
Vision
CDBG Program: The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program provides annual grants
on a formula basis to states, cities, and counties to develop viable urban communities by providing
decent housing and a suitable living environment, and by expanding economic opportunities,
principally for low- and moderate-income persons. The program is authorized under Title 1 of the
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Public Law 93-383, as amended 42 U.S.C.-530.1.
HOME Program: The HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) provides formula grants to
states and localities that communities use - often in partnership with local nonprofit groups - to fund
a wide range of activities including building, buying, and/or rehabilitating affordable housing for rent
or homeownership or providing direct rental assistance to low-income people. It is the largest Federal
block grant to state and local governments designed exclusively to create affordable housing for lowincome households. HUD published a Final Rule in the Federal Register (Changes Only) on July 24,
2013 to amend the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program regulations. These amendments
to the HOME regulations represent the most significant changes to the HOME Program in 17 years.
Regulations:
2CFR 200 200 : Governing Regulations and Financial Management (Replaced OMB Circular)
24 CFR Part 570: CDBG
24 CFR Part 92: HOME
Contact Information: Address: 120 East 8th Street Room 103, Anderson, Indiana 46016 ● Phone:
765.648.6096 ● Contact Name: Lelia Kelley● Email: lkelley@cityofanderson.com
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(b)

Governance

Tools

CDBG National Objectives: The authorizing stature of the CDBG program requires that

each activity funded, except for program administration and planning activities, must meet
one of three national objections. Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of
1974, Public Law 93-383, as amended 42 U.S.C.-530.1. Regulations are at 24 CFR Part 570.
1. Low & Moderate Income (LMI) Benefit
2. Slum & Blight Removal
3. Urgent Need

HOME Investment Partnerships Program National Objectives
Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act 42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq. Regulations
are at 24 CFR part 92. The authorizing statue of the HOME program requires that each activity funded,
except for program administration and planning activities, must meet one of four national objections.
1.
2.
3.
4.

Rehabilitation of Owner-Occupied Housing
Assistance to Home Buyers
Rental Housing Activities
Rental Housing Activities

Consolidated Plan (5 Year Plan): Designed to help states and local jurisdiction to assess their
affordable housing and community development needs and market conditions, and make datadriven, place-based investment decisions. The consolidated planning process serves as the
framework for a community-wide dialogue (Citizen Participation) to identify housing and
community development priorities that align and focus funding from the CPD (Community
Planning and Development) formula block grant programs: CDBG, HOME (defined is section A),
ESG(Emergency Solutions Grants) , and HOPWA (housing opportunities for persons with AIDS)
programs.
The Consolidate Plan is carried out through the Annual Action Plan.
Annual Action: Provide a concise summary of the actions, activities, and specific federal and
non-federal resources that will be used each year to address the priority needs and specific
goals identified by the Consolidated Plan.
Annual CAPER (Consolidated Action Plan Evaluation Report): Grantees report on
accomplishments and progress toward Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan goals in the
CAPER.

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH): Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH)

is a legal requirement that federal agencies and federal grantees further the purposes of the Fair
Housing Act. This obligation to affirmatively further fair housing has been in the Fair Housing Act since
1968 (for further information see Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 3608 and Executive
Order 12892). HUD's AFFH rule provides an effective planning approach to aid program participants in
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taking meaningful actions to overcome historic patterns of segregation, promote fair housing choice,
and foster inclusive communities that are free from discrimination. As provided in the rule, AFFH
means "taking meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of
segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity
based on protected characteristics. Specifically, affirmatively furthering fair housing means taking
meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant disparities in housing needs and in access
to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with truly integrated and balanced living patterns,
transforming racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity, and
fostering and maintaining compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws.
The Community Development Department works together with the Human Relations Department’s
Fair Housing Division to adhere to the obligations of the AFFH requirements and to complete the AFH
Plan included in the 5 year Consolidated Plan.
Citizen Participation: Public comments (Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, and CAPER is
generally 30days)• and may include a mix of outreach programs such as: Application driven programs
• Programmatic design • Local government input • Informational workshops • Media outreach,
Community outreach and surveys, Homeowners Assistance Outreach, Home Construction Programs
geared for applicant Workshops for potential applicants in Strategic locations and applicant intake
centers.
Environmental Review (ER): An environmental review is the process of reviewing a project and its
potential environmental impacts to determine whether it meets federal, state, and local
environmental standards. The environmental review process is required for all HUD-assisted
projects to ensure that the proposed project does not negatively impact the surrounding
environment and that the property site itself will not have an adverse environmental or health
effect on end users. Not every project is subject to a full environmental review (i.e., every project's
environmental impact must be examined, but the extent of this examination varies), but every
project must be in compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), and other
related Federal and state environmental laws.
***The Environmental Review of most all CDBG and HOME projects is a 30day process and may
be longer depending on the level of review required for the project. NO projects begin before the
determination is completed and NO contracts are signed before the ER is determined.

Rehabilitation and New Construction must undergo: ER, Lead risk assessments and/or clearance,
Flood Plain review and Historical Property review. Demolition Properties must undergo: ER, Flood
Plain review, Asbestos assessment and/or clearance, and Historical Property review.
To learn more about the Environmental Review see Section 104 of the manual and visit
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/environmental-review/
To learn more about HUD Governing Regulations 2 CFR 200 visit https://www.ecfr.gov/cgibin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl To learn more about CDBG Regulations
24 CFR Part 570 visit https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3689/24-cfr-part-570-cdbg/

To learn more about HOME Regulations 24 CFR Part 92 visit
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2333/24-cfr-part-92-home-investment-partnershipsprogram-final-rule/
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(c)

Organizational Chart with Roles and Responsibilities

Mayor of the City of Anderson: Thomas Broderick, Jr.
 Grantee of CDBG and HOME Entitlement Funds. Provide leadership, direction, and
oversight of the Community Development Department, Consolidated Plan, Annual Action
Plan, CAPER, and HUD regulations.
Director: Lelia Kelley: 765.648.6096 lkelley@cityofanderson.com
 Administrator of CDBG and HOME Federal Funds. Responsible for overall office
administration and regulatory compliance. Reports to the Mayor.
Contract Specialist: Kim Townsend: 765.648.6098 ktownsend@cityofanderson.com
 Provide project administration and contract compliance. Reports to the director.
Finance Specialist: April Phillips: 765.648.6042 aphillips@cityofanderson.com
 Provide support in financial administration and financial regulatory compliance. Reports
to the director.
Board of Works: Chairman, David Eicks; Members, Jack Keesling and Richard Symmes
 Provide oversight and approval of CDBG and HOME contracts, policies and procedures.
Reports to the Mayor of the City of Anderson.

(d)

Program Year and Report Submissions

(updated November 2017)
Report Submission Requirements (24 CFR 570.302)
CDBG and HOME entitlement communities must submit the following documents:
1. Action Plan
2. Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)
3. Consolidated Plan three to five years, as chosen by the entitlement community
Creation of these documents must follow HUD requirements for content and citizen participation
(see 24 CFR 570.486(a) and the City of Anderson Citizen Participation Plan).
Timeline

o
o
o
o
o
(e)

Program Year: Annual-June 1 to May 31
Annual Action: Annual-April 17
Annual CAPER (Consolidated Action Plan Evaluation Report): Annual-August 29
Consolidated Plan (5 Year Plan): April 17, 2020
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (5 year Plan): August 5, 2019

Key Definitions and Terms

This section provides definitions of key CDBG and HOME topics and terms.
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The Act: The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 makes funds available to qualified
cities to develop of viable urban communities, by providing decent housing and a suitable living
environment and expanding economic opportunities.
Action Plan: An annual plan that outlines proposed housing and community development objectives,
activities, and budget in the City of Anderson. The plan includes information regarding federal, state,
and local funding resources, a description of each activity to be implemented, and other actions that
the City will take to address barriers to affordable housing, support anti-poverty strategies, and
facilitate fair housing.
Adjusted Award: Amount of CDBG funds available to sub-recipients after City Programs,
administration, fair housing, and audit allocations are deducted
Administrative Cap: A maximum of 20 percent of the sum of the entitlement grant plus program
income that is received during the program year may be spent on planning and administration costs.
Application Review Committee (ARC): A subcommittee of the Community Development Department
formed to interview applicant and make preliminary funding recommendations.

Capacity Building: Activities that build the capacity of the CDBG program, Sub-recipients, and
program delivery to low income residents. Capacity building activities are subject to the 20 percent
administrative cap.
CDBG: The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program is a flexible program that provides
communities with resources to address a wide range of unique community development needs.
Beginning in 1974, the CDBG program is one of the longest continuously run programs at HUD. The
CDBG program provides annual grants on a formula basis to 1209 general units of local government and
States.
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CDBG Recipient: Local governments are known as grantees or recipients, and also referred to as units
of general local government (UGLGs). Under the Entitlement CDBG Program, the City of Anderson
receives funding directly from HUD.
2 CFR 200: The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) is the codification of the general and permanent rules
and regulations (sometimes called administrative law) published in the Federal Register by the
executive departments and agencies of the federal government of the United States. The CFR is divided
into 50 titles that represent broad areas subject to federal regulation.
CHDO (Community Housing Development Organization):
Citizen: Unless otherwise distinguished by HUD or applicable statute, citizen and resident are used
interchangeably.
Citizen Participation Plan: A plan prepared by the City ofAnderson in accordance with 24 CFR 570.486
which describes how the City will include and encourage citizen participation, especially by low and
moderate income citizens.
City Program: An eligible activity or service provided by City of Anderson staff through a noncompetitive application process.
Conflict of Interest: When an individual or organization is involved in multiple interests, one of which
could corrupt or be perceived corrupt fair and objective allocation of funds or procurement of goods
and services.
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER): An annual report prepared by the
City of Anderson in accordance with 24 CFR Part 91, on the objectives, activities, and budget set forth
in the Annual Action Plan and the progress on the five- year Consolidated Plan.
Consolidated Plan: The Consolidated Plan is a three to five-year strategic plan prepared by the City in
accordance with 24 CFR Part 91, and describes needs, resources, priorities and proposed activities to
be undertaken with respect to HUD’s Office of Community Planning and Development CPD formula
programs, including CDBG and HOME. An approved Consolidated Plan is one which has been approved
by HUD.
Contractors: A contractor is an entity paid with CDBG or HOME funds in return for a specific service
(e.g., construction). Contractors must be selected through a competitive procurement process.
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Corrective Action Plan: A plan prepared by a sub-recipient or city partner to correct issues of noncompliance within a specific schedule or program.
Cost Allocation: The identification, aggregation, and assignment of centralized costs.
Cost Allocation Plan: A description of a process whereby services provided on a centralized basis (e.g.,
motor pools, computer centers, purchasing and accounting services) can be identified and assigned to
benefited departments/agencies (e.g., the department/agency administering the CDBG program) on a
reasonable and consistent basis.
CPD: The Office of Community Planning and Development (CPD) is an office within HUD. CPD
administers and provides federal oversight of the CDBG and HOME program, along with other federal
programs that provide decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expand economic
opportunities for low and moderate income persons.
Davis-Bacon Act: Establishes the requirement for paying the local prevailing wages and fringe benefits,
as determined by the U.S. Department of Labor, laborers and mechanics. It applies to contractors and
subcontractors performing on federally funded or assisted contracts in excess of
$2,000.
Developer: Owns the property and develops a project, or has a contractual obligation to a property owner
to develop a project.
Draw Down: Refers to the process of requesting and receiving CDBG funds. Grantees draw down funds
from a line of credit established by HUD, while sub-recipients typically draw down funds from grantees.
Economic Development: Activities to improve the economic health and standard of living in Anderson.
Depending on the nature of the activity, eligible economic development activities may be subject to the
Public Services or Administrative caps.
Entitlement Community: A city in a metropolitan area with a population of 50,000 or more, a principal
city of a metropolitan area, or an urban county with a population of at least 200,000 (excluding the
population of metropolitan cities located therein) that receives an annual allocation of CDBG and HOME
funds directly from HUD under the CDBG Entitlement Program and the HOME Investment Partnership
Program. An Entitlement Community is sometimes referred to by HUD as a grantee or recipient.
Entitlement Grant: Federal funds received by an entitlement community in a program year.
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Fiscal Sponsor: A non-profit organization that applies for CDBG funding on behalf of an organization or
group, also known as a Fiscal Agent. The fiscal sponsor accepts responsibility
to serve as a fiscal conduit for a City of Anderson-funded project, receiving and disbursing funds related
to the grant, and administering the requirements throughout the City of Anderson grant process. The
sponsored organization or group completes the project activity.
Funding Cycle: The time period associated with the City of Anderson’s allocation of projected CDBG and
HOME funds for the upcoming program year(s). The funding cycle is most commonly an annual cycle
that begins in June and ends in May.
Household: All the persons who occupy a housing unit. The occupants may be a single family, one
person living alone, two or more families living together, or any groups of related or unrelated persons
who share living arrangements.
Housing Quality Standards (HQS): Housing construction and rehabilitation standards.
Housing Rehabilitation: Activities that assist homeowners with the repair, rehabilitation, or
reconstruction of owner-occupied units.
HUD: CDBG funds are provided to states through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). HUD established the regulations and requirements for the program and has
oversight responsibilities for the use of CDBG and HOME funds.
HUD Guidelines: All tools, guidebooks, trainings, notices, and other guiding materials and
correspondence provided by HUD or CPD regarding the laws and regulations of CDBG a n d HO M E
Programs.
Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS): A nationwide database that provides HUD
with current information regarding program activities and funding data. The City of Anderson uses
IDIS to fund and report on its CDBG and HOME Programs.
Income: Adjusted gross income as defined by the IRS Form 1040.
Indirect Costs: Costs that have been incurred for common or joint objectives and cannot be readily
identified with a particular final cost objective.
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Indirect Cost Rate: A device for determining in a reasonable manner the proportion of indirect costs
each program should bear. It is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the indirect costs to a direct
cost base. Indirect cost must be approved by HUD.
Indirect Cost Rate Proposal: The documentation prepared by a governmental unit or subdivision
thereof to substantiate its request for the establishment of an indirect cost rate.Job
Creation/Retention: A mandatory public benefit standard that requires at least one full- time,
permanent job per $35,000 of CDBG funds used must be created or retained.
Low – and Moderate Income: Low- and moderate income (also referred to in this manual as LMI)
means family or household annual income less than the Section 8 Low Income Limit, generally 80
percent of the area median income, or a person within such household, as established by HUD.
Low-Income Household/Family: A household/family having an income equal to or less than the
Section 8 Very Low Income limit (50% of the area median income) as established by HUD.
Moderate-Income Household/Family: A household/family having an income equal to or less than the
Section 8 Low Income limit (80% of area median income) established by HUD, but greater than the
Section 8 Very Low Income limit (50% of area median income) established by HUD.
Microenterprise: A business that has five or fewer employees, one or more of whom own the
enterprise.
Minimum Contracting Standards: A set of standards required before the execution of a Sub-recipient
Agreement. The standards indicate the minimum administrative and financial framework required to
manage public funds.
Minority Business Enterprise (MBE): A business concern that is at least 51% owned by one or more
individuals who are African American, Hispanic American, Native American, Asian- Pacific American or
Asian-Indian American; and whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or
more of these owners.
Monitoring Visits: Visits to sub-recipient and city partner programs by Department of Community
Development staff to evaluate the progress/performance of the program and/or to provide technical
assistance.
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Neighborhood Services: Services that benefit an entire neighborhood and correspond with the
neighborhood’s or census tract’s geographic boundaries.
OMB: The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) is the largest office within the Executive Office of
the President of the United States (EOP). The main function of the OMB is to assist the President in
preparing the budget. The OMB issues budget instructions or information, known as circulars, to
Federal agencies.
PR Reports: Standard CDBG program reports generated in IDIS that provide financial and performance
information. 66 different PR reports are available in a noncontiguous range from PR01 to PR95. PR05
and PR07 provide draw down details.
Presumed Benefit: Benefit a group of clientele that is presumed to be principally Low – and moderate
income. Presumed benefit groups include abused children, battered spouses, severely disabled adults,
homeless persons, illiterate adults, persons with AIDs, migrant farm workers, and elderly persons over
62-years-of-age.
Program Income: Program income is the gross income received by the City and its subrecipients directly generated from the use of CDBG and HOME funds.
Program Year: City of Anderson's Program Year begins June 1 and concludes May 31 of the following
year.
Public Service Activity: Eligible public service activities including but not limited to those concerned
with employment, crime prevention, child care, health, homelessness, drug abuse, education, fair
housing counseling, energy conservation, and welfare. To be eligible for CDBG assistance, a public
service must be either a new service or a quantifiable increase.
Public Services Cap: A maximum of 15 percent of the sum of the entitlement grant plus program
income that is received during the program year may be spent on public service activities.
Resident: Unless otherwise distinguished by HUD or applicable statute, resident and citizen are used
interchangeably. CDBG and HOME funds must serve residents of Anderson.
Revolving Fund (RLF): A separate fund established to carryout eligible housing and/or economic
development activities which generate program income. The fund reuses program income in making
the same types of activities.
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Section 3: Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Act of 1968 established the Section
3 Program, which requires recipients of HUD financial assistance, to the greatest extent possible,
provide job training, employment, and contract opportunities for low- or very- low income residents in
connection with projects and activities in their neighborhoods.
Small Business: The U.S. Small Business Administration is responsible for defining small
businesses. Small Businesses are commonly identified by 500 employees or less for manufacturing
and mining industries and $7.5 million or less in average annual receipts for non-mining industries.
However, there are a number of exceptions.
Statement/Scope of Work: An exhibit of the sub-recipient agreement which must include a project
description, the national objective claimed, activity descriptions, intended beneficiaries (number and
type), detailed budget and location(s) of program-related activity.
Sub-recipient: An entity charged with implementation of one or more activities funded with CDBG and
HOME dollars.
Sub-recipient Agreement: A written agreement between the City of Anderson and the subrecipient
that is required before CDBG and HOME funds are disbursed.
Substantial Amendment: An amendment to the Action Plan or the Consolidated Plan as required
when 25 percent of the original award for an activity or plans to utilize funds under a different activity
category are proposed.
Technical Assistance: Assistance to an entity by another entity more knowledgeable in the applicable
subject field, resulting in increased capacity or knowledge of the assisted entity.
Timeliness: Carrying out CDBG and HOME-funded activities in a timely manner.
Timeliness Spending Test: A test conducted sixty days prior to the end of the current program year, to
ensure that the amount of entitlement grant funds available to the City of Anderson under grant
agreements but undisbursed by the U.S. Treasury is not more than 1.5 times the entitlement grant
amount for the current program year.

Page 15 of 241

Urgent Need: Activities designed to alleviate existing conditions of recent origin (18 months) that pose
serious threats to the health and welfare of the community; this objective may only be used if the
community cannot finance necessary activities with other sources.
Women’s Business Enterprise (WBE): A business concern that is at least 51% owned by one or more
women and whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of these
owners.
HOME Program Acronyms
HOME — Home Investment Partnerships Program
CDBG — Community Development Block Grant
OCD — Office of Community Development
PJ — Participating Jurisdiction
CHDO — Community Housing Development Organization
IRS — Internal Revenue Service
HQS — Housing Quality Standards
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Policy Overview
These policies are a combination of federal rules and local policies used to oversee the Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program for the City of
Anderson. They reflect best practices and policies as set forth by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). These policies will be updated on an ongoing basis and shall always reflect
a coordination of HUD’s National Objectives, Eligible Activities, and City Priorities.
HUD regulations, guidebooks, and manuals will supersede any future conflicting policies. The citation
reference from Title 24 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 570 - Community Development Block
Grants can be found in parentheses next to each heading below.
While there are many aspects that must be considered in selecting activities to assist under the CDBG
program, there are six key steps a grant recipient should take in the early stages of the process of
determining if CDBG funds may be used to assist a proposed activity.

1. Determine if the activity falls within a category of explicitly authorized activities in the CDBG
and HOME statutes. Generally, if an activity does not fall within a category of explicitly
authorized activities in the statute, the activity is considered ineligible. HUD’s Guide to
National Objectives and Eligible Activities describes all categories of basic eligibility that were
authorized at the time of publication. Also see:
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HOME-CDBGGuidebook.pdf.
2. Determine if a proposed activity that appears not to be included in the statute’s list of
eligible activities has actually been interpreted as eligible under the statute by the CDBG
Eligible Activity regulations.

3. Determine if the proposed activity can meet one of the national objectives of the
program, allotted by the eligible activity.
4. Ensure that carrying out the activity with CDBG funds will not result in the City’s certification
that at least 70 percent of CDBG expenditures will be for activities that are considered to
benefit L/M income persons over the one, two, or three consecutive program years specified
by the grant recipient.
5. Review proposed costs of the activity to determine if they appear to be necessary and
reasonable and will otherwise conform with the requirements of The Office of Management
and Budget 2 CFR 200, “Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments,” “Cost
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations,” “Cost Principals for Educational Institutions,” 24 CFR
Part 84, “Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements With Institutions
of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations;” or 24 CFR Part 85,
‘Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and
Local Governments”, as applicable.
6. Complete the environmental review and clearance procedures for the project of which the
activity is a part. Law prohibits HUD from releasing funds for activities until the grant recipient
certifies that it has met its responsibilities with respect to environmental protection.
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Categorical Limits
(24 CFR 570.200 and 570.201)
At least 70 percent of CDBG funds utilized during three consecutive program years, as specified by the
grantee, must be expended for LMI benefit; the costs of planning and program administration are
excluded from this calculation. (24 CFR 570.200(a)(3).
The amount of CDBG funds obligated for public service activities in each program year may not exceed
15 percent of the total entitlement grant for that program year, plus 15 percent of the program income
received during the preceding program year. (24 CFR 570.201(e)(1).
The amount of CDBG funds obligated for planning and administration activities in each program year
may not exceed 20 percent of the total entitlement grant for that program year plus the program
income received during that program year (24 CFR 570.200).
Faith-Based Activities
(24 CFR 570.200)
Religious or faith-based organizations are eligible to participate in the CDBG and HOME programs. Local
government representatives and CDBG and HOME program administrators shall not discriminate
against an organization on the basis of its religious affiliation.
The Sub-recipient must agree that funds provided under CDBG and HOME programs will not be utilized
for inherently religious activities prohibited by 24 CFR 570.200(j), such as worship, religious instruction,
or proselytization.
Location of Activities
(24 CFR 570.309)
CDBG and HOME funds may be awarded to an activity inside the jurisdiction of the entitlement
community only if it can be determined that the activity directly benefits the entitlement community's
residents.
Documentation of these benefits must be provided before CDBG and HOME funds are awarded for the
activity.
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Section 1.02
(a)

General Program Requirements

Grants Management

Policy
Coordination and administration of grant funding for the CDBG and HOME programs remain within the
Community Development Department. The {Responsible Division Here} is responsible for reviewing the
system of grant administration maintained within the Department and ensuring that it is comparable to
that prescribed for other City programs and that it complies with applicable funding source regulations
concerning program management, grant administration, and other provisions of law and policy that may
raise compliance issues.
The policies and regulations for grants shall apply to all activities financed by any funds for which the
City of Anderson has fiduciary or oversight responsibility including state, federal or private grants unless
the terms of the said grant require differently.
The largest funding sources for the City of Anderson’s CDD programs include the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) program:
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program
•
•
•

Benefit low- and moderate-income persons
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight
Meet other community development needs that pose a serious and immediate threat to the
health and welfare of the community

Within the statutory requirements of the Act, the City of Anderson has the flexibility to design its own
program objectives and procedures for program administration and to develop criteria for selection of
grant Sub-recipient. The City has decided to give priority to activities that principally benefit extremely
low- and low-income persons. The City’s CDBG program is intended to supplement the efforts of
organizations in initiating and/or engaging in a community development purpose. Beyond the broad
national objective of benefiting low- and moderate-income persons, the City has established the
following specific objectives for its CDBG program:
•
•
•
•

Infrastructure activities such as curbs and sidewalks;
Handicapped ramps;
Public facility improvement; and
Rehabilitation of qualified owner occupied housing units

HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program
Local governments receiving HOME funds are called “Participating Jurisdictions” or "PJs". The amount of
HOME funds annually available to participating jurisdictions is determined by Congress through passage
of the annual federal budget. HUD is also responsible for management and oversight of the HOME
Program. Each PJ is responsible for deciding how HOME funds will be used in its jurisdiction and for daily
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administration of HOME funds. The HOME Program is intended to increase affordable housing
opportunities, particularly for low-income persons. Specific purposes of the HOME Program are:
•
•
•
•

Expand the supply of decent and affordable housing, particularly rental housing, for low- and
very low-income persons.
Strengthen the abilities of state and local governments to design and implement strategies for
achieving adequate supplies of decent, affordable housing.
Provide both financial and technical assistance to HOME recipients, including the development
of model programs for affordable low-income housing.
Expand and strengthen partnerships among all levels of government and the private sector,
including for-profit and non-profit organizations, in the production and operation of affordable
housing.

The Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (herein called “the Act”), as amended,
makes provisions whereby units of local government may enter into cooperation agreements and form a
Consortium to undertake or assist in undertaking affordable housing pursuant to the HOME Investment
Partnership Program.
To provide local guidance as to the specific administration of the HOME programs, CDD operations are
guided by the adopted Policies and Procedures. The Policies and Procedures outline the process by
which the City of Anderson will solicit applications for funding HOME eligible projects.
Projects are evaluated based on their consistency with the goals and strategies outlined in the current
Consolidated Plan. All applications will be ranked in terms of how well the proposed project addresses
an affordable housing need within the City of Anderson, the demonstrated capacity of the
applicant/organization to meet the goals and objectives of the project, leveraged funds used to
complete the project, the full completion of an application including requested supplemental
documentation, and the degree to which the proposed project furthers a particular strategy/goal as
identified in the City of Anderson’s Consolidated Plan.

(i)

Community Engagement Strategy and Citizen Participation

Policy
As required by HUD, the City adopted a Citizen Participation Plan in 2014 to establish procedures for the
distribution of and administration of federal grants funds, including HOME and CDBG. The complete
text of the Citizen Participation Plan can be found below:
Procedure
Annually: Two Citizen Participation Meetings. The City will schedule one evening meeting. Public
notices are made available through the local Herald Bulletin, the interested parties email list, the
City website and face book pages, and the Community Development face book page. Interested
parties are encouraged to complete a needs assessment, attached to the email notice and to share
the meeting notices among their professional, social, and personal networks. Needs Assessments
are distributed and collected at each Citizen Participation meeting. Residents are made aware of
programs, target areas of work, outcomes of initiatives. The process creates opportunities for
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citizens to ensure actual works for the public good is informed and leads to a viable urban community by
providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and by expanding economic opportunities,
principally for low- and moderate-income persons. We encourage any resident or organization
interested in receiving email notifications from Community Development Department please call
765.648.6098 or email lkelley@cityofanderson.com.
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PRESBMISSION NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR ANNUAL ENTITLEMENTS
AND SPECIAL REPORTS, AS AMENDED
I. Publication of Final Statement of Community Development Objectives and Projected Use of Funds,
1.
The Department shall include within this notice information limited to those activities in which
the Department has elected to undertake; the dollar amount for those activities to be undertaken; and a
statement concerning the department's efforts to minimize displacement. Said Final Notice shall be
published in the legal section of the local newspaper. The Department shall conduct two (2) Public
Hearings to solicit comments and concerns from the general public.
The Department shall make the community aware of the final statement by scheduling not less than two
(2) citizen group meetings to solicit comments during the 30-day comment period. The City’s website will
also be utilized to advertise and make information regarding the use of CDBG funds available to the public.
2.

Grantee Performance Report

The general public shall be granted a time period of not less than 10 days before the submission of these
reports to HUD for the purpose of reviewing the reports and to offer comments. Notification to the
general public shall be accomplished by whatever actions are necessary such as the City’s website, and/or
a newspaper story, to generate public response.
3.

Miscellaneous Programs and Services

Should the Department elect to undertake activities other than those described herein, the Department
Director or his designee shall use prescribed procedures that will satisfy guidelines established by HUD,
where applicable and in accordance with notifications contained in this subpart. Also, at all times, creative
methods will be implemented to gain a higher rate of citizen participation.
4.

Notification to Individuals with Disabilities.

The Department shall exercise special measures to ensure notification by accomplishing the following:
a. Provide special notices of public hearings to agencies or individuals who provide regular services to
persons with disabilities. The Department will utilize a TDD machine in an effort to provide additional
assistance as a way of providing proper notification. The following agencies have been identified to serve
as notification sources:
Anderson Public Library
(TDD machine available)
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St. John's Medical Center
Speech & Hearing Department
(TDD machine available)
Anderson University
(TDD machine available)
Madison County Literacy Coalition
Proof of notification shall be maintained by the Department as a part of the Department's Master File for
Citizen Participation and maintained for a period of not less than five (5) years from the time of
notification.
II. Change (Additions or Deletions) of Activities as advertised in Final Statement of Objectives and
Projected Use of Funds (CDBG Program).
A. If said activity represents a reduction of 20% or more of the City's Entitlement during a calendar or
fiscal year, a minimum of two (2) public hearings must be held within a time frame of 30 days to afford
the public the opportunity to comment. Information at said public hearings shall include why the City
has elected to drop the proposed activity; where the funds allocated to said activity will be transferred,
and what effect(s) the proposed change will have on the Department's goal to provide assistance to
persons of low and moderate income.
In addition, after the thirty-day comment period has expired, notification should be forwarded to the HUD
area Office for their review and comment.
B. If said activity represents a reduction of less than 20% of the city's Entitlement during a fiscal or
calendar year, subpart (A) shall not apply. Within 10 days following the appearance of the legal,
notification to the HUD Area Office should be provided concerning the proposed changes for their
review and comment.
C. If the activity is considered an addition (regardless of amount), the Department will implement a
minimum of two (2) public hearings within a 14-day time frame to allow the general public the opportunity
to comment on the proposed addition information to be disseminated at said public hearings shall include
why the City has elected to add the proposed activity; the origin of funds for the said activity, and what
effect (s) the proposed change will have on the Department's goal to provide assistance to persons of low
and moderate income.
In addition, the Department shall provide a comment period of 15 days from the date of the final public
hearing to allow for public comment. After the 15-day period has expired, notification shall be forwarded
to the area office for their review and comment.
PROCEDURES FOR THE FILING AND ANSWERING
OF COMPLAINTS AND GRIEVANCES
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a.

Section I

(a) The term "Director" means the Director of the Community Development Department
(b) The term "day" or "date" means a calendar day. However, when any period on which action must be
taken expires on a Saturday, Sunday or a national holiday or a state holiday, such period will be extended
to the next business day.
(c) The term "fact finding conference" shall refer to an investigative meeting, the purpose of which shall
be to determine and define the issues at hand, to ascertain the validity of the issue(s) in question and
whether or not they can be resolved at a local level or forwarded to the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. (HUD).
(d) The term "respondent" shall refer to the Community Development Department and any employee
thereof.
(e) The term "complainant" shall refer to the person/persons who file the complaint or grievance.
b.

Section II

Filing of Complaints and Grievance
A. Who may file
Any legal resident of the City of Anderson, Indiana may initiate a grievance and/or complaint against the
Department of Community Development.
B. Where to file
Complaints and/or grievance may be filed against the Department of Community Development at its
office, located in the Anderson City Building, 120 East 8th Street, Room 1, Anderson, Indiana 46016.
Complaints and/or grievances may be filed (in written form) by personal delivery or mail and shall be
deemed filed as of the date of the postmark or upon receipt at the office if delivered in person.
Section III
Answering of Complaints/Grievances
The respondent or his/her duly authorized representatives shall answer the complaint within fifteen (15)
days of the receipt of the initial complaint or grievance at the Community Development Department. The
answer shall be in writing and signed by the respondent or his/her authorized representative. Any new
issues or allegations that may be raised in an answer shall be deemed ineligible for a reply. A separate
complaint must be filed for any new issues or allegations.
Section IV
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A. Fact Finding Conference Investigations and Findings
The respondent may require a fact-finding conference to be held in the office of the director of the
Community Development Department. This conference shall be held no more than (20) days after the
initial receipt of the complaint and/or grievance.
The Director shall preside over the conference and only those individuals who are relevant to the case
shall be in attendance. If they so desire, the complainant and the respondent may have an attorney in
attendance.
After hearing the complaint grievance by the Director, a written response will be provided to the
complainant within a time frame of not less than ten (10) days from the date of the hearing. If the person
filing the complaint is not satisfied with the written response provided he/she might forward the
complaint to:
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
151 North Delaware Street
Indianapolis, IN 46207
PUBLIC HEARING LOCATIONS
In accordance with Section I, the following locations shall be utilized on a rotating basis for Public Hearings,
based on the fact that all of these locations are within areas that (in accordance to 2000 Census
information) are low and moderate income or are located within close proximity to low and moderate
income areas and are accessible to persons with physical or mental disabilities. The Department shall elect
to conduct public hearings at various other facilities as long as they meet the ADA (Americans with
Disabilities Act) requirements.
Anderson Public Library
111 East 12th Street
Anderson, IN 46016
(765) 641-2456
City of Anderson
120 East 8th Street
Anderson, IN 46016
(765) 649-2511

St. John's Health Care Corp.
2015 Jackson Street
Anderson, IN 46016

Westvale Manor Apartments
(PHA: & Lynnwood Village
Anderson Housing Authority
528 West. 11th Street
Anderson, IN 46016
(765) 641-2620

Geater Community Center
1611 Chase Street
Anderson, IN 46016
(765) 648-6860
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Martin Luther King, Jr.
Memorial Commission
2030 West 16th Street
Anderson, IN 46016
(765) 642-5342

Madison County Community Health Clinic
1547 Ohio Avenue
Anderson IN 46016
(765) 641-7499

Dissemination of Information to Individuals with
Hearing and Sight Impairments, Non-English Speaking
Persons and Functionally Illiterate Persons
Request to the Department from agencies or individuals who have hearing and/or sight impairments" or
do not speak English or who are considered illiterate" will be forwarded to the following agencies" who in
turn; have agreed to assist this Department with dissemination of information" relevant to material (s)
requested" are as follows:
Hearing Impaired
St. John's Speech & Hearing
2015 Jackson Street
Anderson, IN 46016
Anderson Public Library
111 E 12th Street
Anderson IN 46016
765.641.2456
Sight Impaired
Workers For The Blind
1818 Broadway
Anderson, IN 46012
(765) 643-6528
(Send cassette tapes for any information)
Anderson Public Library
111 E 12th Street
Anderson IN 46016
765.641.2456
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Citizen Participation
Requirements
Consult with other public
and private agencies that
provide services during
the preparation of the
consolidated plan

City Actions

Projected Date
(s)and Place(s)

There will be at the minimum, two (2) meetings July – November
conducted in order to provide information and
receive comments.
The explanation of the Consolidated Plan process July– September
will be provided to the Anderson Housing
Authority, health and social service providers,
along with interested persons and groups.

Furnish citizens with
information concerning
the amount of funds
expected to be available
for Community
Development and housing
activities, the range of
activities which may be
undertaken with funds,
the estimated amount of
funds which will be used
to benefit low and very
low income persons and
the plans to minimize
displacement of persons
and to assist any persons
displaced, to obtain citizen
views on Community
Development and housing
needs, program
amendments and
performance of included
programs.

Public Hearings will be held in low moderate areas July--November
to increase public comments regarding priorities
and activities to be included in the Consolidated
Plan. Citizen’s comments will be solicited on needs,
policies, priorities and prior program performance,
specifically related to CDBG and HOME. Citizens
will be provided draft policies for all programs
included in the Consolidated Plan including the
City’s commitment to expend at least 70% of CDBG
funds to benefit low and moderate-income
persons.
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If the potential for relocation exists within the On-Going
geographic location of a project, the city will be
responsible for benefits required under Section 104
(d) of the Housing and Community Development
Act of 1974, as amended.
Citizens will be notified of the availability of CDBG
and HOME funding application forms for yearly
entitlement funding.
The City must receive proposals no later than the
3rd quarter. Notice of proposal availability will be
sent to sub recipients and, social service agencies
that receive funding as well as other interested
citizens and/or groups
At least two Public hearings will be held to review
and receive citizen’s comments on the
consolidated plan.
A draft copy of the consolidated plan will be
provided to the social service agencies and
interested groups and/or persons. As well as be
distributed to the various public hearing locations.

July--November

35 days prior to
submission to
HUD

Copies of the City’s adopted consolidated plan will Upon Approval
be available for citizen review at the City of of the Plan by
Anderson Community Development Department as HUD
well as public hearing locations and social service
agencies. Upon request, information will be
provided in other formats for persons with
disabilities.
Provide technical
assistance to groups
representing low-income
persons in developing
proposals for funding
under any of the programs
covered by the
consolidated plan.

This department will provide technical assistance On-Going
as long as adequate notice is provided. Technical
assistance will include attendance at meetings to
provide educational training on CDBG as well as
reviewing and critiquing proposals.

Page 27 of 241

Publish a summary of the
consolidated plan and
making copies available in
public locations, giving
citizens at least 30 days to
comment
prior
to
submission to HUD.

A summary of the consolidated plan will be TBD
published in the Anderson Herald Bulletin at least
30 days prior to the submission to HUD as well as
being posted on the City’s website. Copies will also
be available to the Community Development
Department, and at all social service agencies and
public hearing locations.
Upon request,
information will be provided in other formats for
persons with disabilities.

Hold at least two public Notice of any public hearing shall be published in
hearings at two different the Anderson Herald Bulletin, one (1) time at least
stages of the program year ten (10) days before the hearing.
to address housing and
Community Development
needs, development of
proposed activities and
review
of
program
performance.
The hearings shall be held at times and locations
convenient for potential and actual beneficiaries
and will accommodate persons who are physically
challenged.
Consider any comments
received in writing or orally
at public hearings and
prepare a summary of
comments to be included
with final document to
cover all public hearings
for the Consolidated Plan.

All comments will be received and considered in
the preparation of the final consolidated plan, and
a summary of comments not accepted with reasons
therefore will be included in the final plan.

Specify
criteria
for Changes (additions or deletions) of activities as On-going
determining
what advertised in the final statement of objectives and
constitutes a substantial projected use of funds.
change in jurisdictional
activities that require an
amendment
to
the
consolidated plan.
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The City, from time to time
within a calendar year may
elect to carry out an
activity contained in the
final statement or to carry
out activities other than
those described in the final
statement. This section
will first address instances
in which the City elects to
delete an activity.
A. If said activity would represent a reduction of
20% or more of the City’s Entitlement during a
calendar or fiscal year, a minimum of two (2) public
hearings must be held within a time frame of 30
days, to afford the public an opportunity to
comment. Information at said public hearings shall
include why the City has elected to drop the
proposed activity; where the funds allocated to
said activity will be transferred and what effect(s)
proposed change will have on the Departments
goal to provide assistance to persons of low and
moderate income.
In addition, after the thirty-day comment period
has expired, notification should be forwarded to
HUD area office for their review and comment.
B. If said activity represents a reduction of less
than 20% of the City’s entitlement during a fiscal or
calendar year, subpart (a) shall not apply. Within
ten (10) days following the appearance of the legal
notice, notification to the HUD area office should
be provided concerning the proposed changes, for
their review and comment.
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C. If said activity is considered an addition On-Going
(regardless of amount) the Department will
implement a minimum of two (2) public hearings
within a 14-day time frame to allow the general
public the opportunity to comment on the
proposed addition. Information to be disseminated
at said public hearings shall include why the City
has elected to add the proposed activity; where
funds for the said activity came from; and what
effect(s) the proposed change will have on the
Department’s goal to provide assistance to persons
of low to moderate income.
In addition the Department shall provide a
comment period of fifteen (15) days from the date
of the final public hearing to allow for public
comment. After fifteen (15) day period has
expired, notification shall be forwarded to the HUD
area office for their review and comment.
Describe the procedures Filing of complaints and grievances
for handling complaints
form citizens related to the
consolidated
plan,
amendments
and
performance report.
A. Who may file

Any legal resident of the City of Anderson, Indiana On-Going
may file a grievance and/or complaint the
Department of Community Development.
Complaints and/or grievances may be registered
against the following areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Consolidated Plan
Amendment to the consolidated plan
Annual performance report
National Environmental Protection Act
(NEPA) as they relate to the environmental
review process.
CDBG and HOME programs
Any past, present or proposed activities
undertaken in whole by the City of Anderson
Community Development Block Grant
Program
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B. Where to file

Complaints and/or grievances may be filed against
the Department of Community Development at its
office located in the Anderson City Building, 120
East 8th Street, Anderson, IN 46016. Complaints
and grievances may be filed (in written form) by
personal delivery or mail and shall be deemed filed
at the office if delivered in person.

Complaints/Grievances

The respondent or his/her duly authorized
representatives shall answer the complaint within
fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the initial
compliant or grievance at the Community
Development Department. The answer shall be in
writing and signed by the respondent or his/her
authorized representative. Any new issues or
allegations that may be raised in an answer shall be
deemed ineligible for a reply. A separate compliant
must be filed for any new issues or allegations.

C. Fact finding conference The respondent may require a fact-finding
and investigations.
conference to be held in the office of the
Department of the Development Department. This
conference shall be held not more than twenty
days after the initial receipt of the complaint
and/or grievance.
Provide
citizens
with
reasonable
notice
to
provide an opportunity to
comment on performance
reports.

The general public shall be granted a time period of
not less than fifteen (15) days before the
submission of these reports the HUD for the
purpose of reviewing the reports and offer
comments. Notification to the general public shall
be accomplished at least by placing notice in the
legal section of the local newspaper.

Provide citizens, public Any comments or views of citizens reviewed in
agencies
and
other writing, or orally shall be attached to the
interested parties with performance report.
reasonable and timely
access to information and
records relating to the
consolidated plan and the
jurisdiction’s
use
of
assistance
under
the
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programs covered for a
five year period

The City will provide information relating to the On-Going
consolidated plan and use of funding under the
programs covered in a timely manner. The
requesting entity must provide sufficient lead-time
to accommodate their request.

(ii)

Consolidated Plan

Policy
24CFR 91.1
The City of Anderson Consolidated Plan identifies community development and housing needs and
includes a comprehensive list of priorities and goals designed to address those needs over a projected
five (5) year period.
The Consolidated Plan is submitted to HUD and serves as a:
•
•
•
•

Planning document for the jurisdiction, which builds on a participatory process among citizens,
organizations, businesses, and other stakeholders
Submission for federal funds under HUD's formula grant programs for jurisdictions
Strategy to be followed in carrying out HUD Community Planning and Development formula
grant programs (e.g., CDBG, ESG, HOME, and HOPWA) programs
Management tool for assessing performance and tracking results.

The City of Anderson’s Consolidated Planning program year is June 2020. The City of Anderson is
required to submit its consolidated plan to HUD at least 45 days before the start of its program year.
24CFR 91.100
When preparing the consolidated plan, the City of Anderson shall consult with public and private
agencies that provide assisted housing, health services, and social and fair housing services (including
those focusing on services to children, elderly persons, persons with disabilities, persons with HIV/AIDS
and their families, homeless persons).
24CFR 91.200
The complete consolidated plan shall consist of:
•
•
•

Executive summary
Housing and homeless needs assessment
Housing market analysis
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•
•
•
•

Strategic plan
Action plan
Certifications
Monitoring.

The City of Anderson’s Consolidated Plan shall describe:
•
•
•

The agency responsible for the development of the plan and the significant aspects of the
process by which the consolidated plan was developed
The agencies, groups, organizations, and others who participated in the process,
Consultations with:
o The Continuum of Care
o Public and private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment,
or education needs of low-income individuals and families, of homeless individuals and
families, of youth, and/or of other persons with special needs;
o Publicly funded institutions and systems of care that may discharge persons into
homelessness (such as health-care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and
other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions);
o Other entities.

Procedure
The City of Anderson Community Development Department shall be the office responsible for the
development of the Consolidated Plan following federal and local Consolidated Plan policies.
At the conclusion process, the City of Anderson shall hold a public hearing to listen to any comments or
recommendations for the Plan. Following the hearing, the City of Anderson shall incorporate any public
testimony into the Plan.
The City of Anderson shall make all final decisions regarding the reasonable and appropriate use of
CDBG and HOME funds based upon the findings and strategies identified in the Consolidated Plan.

(iii)

Application Guidelines

Policy
The City of Anderson shall seek to ensure that:
1. Federal funds are allocated fairly and in a fashion to maximize the public benefit
2. All applicants are given the opportunity to submit a competitive proposal.
To that end the City shall:
•
•
•
•

Make every reasonable effort to inform the community of its funding opportunities
Maintains an on-going mailing list of interested and potential applicants
Reject incomplete and unresponsive proposals
Deny funding to applicants that have been unresponsive in carrying out the grant requirements
for previously funded projects
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•
•

Not reimburse any applicant for the costs associated with the completion of a funding
application
Provide complete and thorough application instructions.

Scoring criteria may be updated annually, or as appropriate. However, the City shall include in its
consideration the following factors:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The project is clearly defined as it relates to the scope, location, need, budget, goals
The project is in alignment with the Consolidated Plan and meets the Strategic Plan Objectives
The project has adequate community support and/or supports an identified community need
The project maximizes the use of outside funds
The project provides maximum impact
The applicant demonstrates the capacity to successfully implement the project
The applicant has established means for program evaluation and accomplishment tracking
The applicant is able begin immediately and finish within the contracted time.

Procedure
The Department of Community Development shall solicit applications from entities throughout the City
and region. The Department of Community Development shall advertise application funds and
application workshops in the following manner:
•
•
•
•

A legal notice in the newspaper of legal record,
At least one advertisement in a local newspaper with minority readership,
A notice on the City of Anderson main webpage,
Email to the Department of Community Development’s email list, current and previously funded
organizations, and area social service agencies.

The Department of Community Development will host an application workshop. A representative of
each entity applying for CDBG and HOME funds is required to attend the application workshop. The
application workshop sign-in sheet will be used to determine if an applicant organization participated in
the application workshop.
Applicants will have a minimum of 30 days from application announcement until the due date.
Recordkeeping: All applications, supporting application information, and applicable correspondence
shall be placed in a permanent file. All files shall be maintained in a secure place with access by
authorized personnel.

(iv)

Application Underwriting and Review

Policy
Applicants will have the opportunity to submit CDBG funding proposals for activities. Priority/Target
Program Areas are included in public notices, mandatory grantee meeting, Citizen Participation
public meetings, and in the grant application. All submitted proposals must include information
relating to goals, outputs, outcomes, budget/financing, detailed activity descriptions, capacity, future
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funding, and performance. Board Chairs and Directors must sign the proposal. Applications must
include a copy of the IRS determination Letter, copy of the most current financial statements,
preferably, the annual audit report, Letters of Support for the project. Applications must include the
Census Tract Area the project will be carried out and must define the population served by the
project. Community Development along with its Grant Committee will perform an administrative
review of each proposal to also ensure that:
Proposed activities are included within the listing of eligible activities (24.CFR.570.201) Proposed
activities do not fall within a category of explicitly ineligible activities (24.CFR.570.207). Proposed
activities will meet one of the national objectives of the program (24.CFR.570.200), allotted by the
eligible activity.
Single Audits: Applicants who meet the threshold expenditure of $750,000 or more of Federal Funds
must indicate on their grant applications, on the signature page, and submit the Single Audit with the
grant application (2CFR 200 Subpart F).
Procedure
Projects are evaluated based on their consistency with the goals and strategies outlined in the current
Consolidated Plan. All applications will be ranked in terms of how well the proposed project addresses a
public service need within the City of Anderson and/or a targeted program area as determined by
Community Development, the demonstrated capacity of the applicant/organization to meet the goals
and objectives of the project, leveraged funds used to complete the project, the full completion of an
application including requested supplemental documentation, and the degree to which the proposed
project furthers a particular strategy/goal as identified in the City of Anderson’s Consolidated Plan. The
City of Anderson Department of Community Development staff shall maintain the required
documentation, listed above, in each project file.

(v)

Written Agreements

Policy
The written agreement is a legally binding document executed between the City of Anderson and the
organization receiving funds for the purposed of carrying out an eligible CDBG or HOME activity(s).
All written agreements are administered according to law and regulations found at 2 CFR 200 “Uniformed
Administrative Requirements” and include either CDBG regulations (24 CFR 570.503) or HOME
regulations (24 CFR Part 92). The regulations require that the City of Anderson have written Agreements
in effect for each sub-recipient before distributing HUD funds. The written Agreement must remain in
effect during any period that the sub-recipient, CHDO, or Developer has control over any HUD funds,
including program income.
HUD regulations specify that the written agreement must include at least the following provisions:
•
•
•

National Objective Compliance/Eligibility
Scope of Work
Time of Performance
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Personnel Assigned to Scope of Work
Levels of Performance 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
Budget
Project Schedule/Milestones
Compensation and Method of Payment
Program Income
Record-Keeping Requirements 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
Reporting Requirements
Public Access to Program Records
Record Retention
Grant Closeout Procedures
Uniform Administrative and Program Management Standards
Use and Reversion of Assets
Real Property
Other Program Requirements
Suspension of the agreement if the sub-recipient materially fails to comply with any term of
the award
Termination for convenience in accordance with 24 CFR 85.44
Compliance with Laws/Regulations
Antidiscrimination/Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity
Financial Management 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
Audits 2 CFR 200 Subpart F
Religious and Lobbying Activities
Budget Modifications
Monitoring 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
Conflict of Interest
Procurement Standards and Methods
Environmental Issues
Affirmative Marketing
Date in which the agreement is valid.

The written agreement shall specify when The City of Anderson must provide prior approval of
programmatic or budget changes related to the CDBG funded activity(ies). For example, the subrecipient shall be required to obtain the City’s approval in the following situations:
•
•
•
•
•
•

A revision to the scope or objectives of the CDBG activities, including purpose, location, or
beneficiaries
The need to extend the period of availability of funds
Changes in key personnel (when specified in the application package or grant award) or when
the subrecipient intends to contract out a portion of a non-construction activity to a third
party
Additional funding
Budget changes in excess of ten percent for any line item
Expenditures on items for which the applicable cost principles (2 CFR 200) require prior
approval (see 570.200(h) for pre-award/pre-agreement costs).
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CDD of Anderson, working in conjunction with authorized legal representation, will ensure written
agreements covering the award of HOME funds meet the specifications of 24 CFR 92.504.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Use of the HOME funds
Program income
Uniform administrative requirement
Other program requirements.
Affirmative marketing.
Requests for disbursement of funds.
Reversion of assets.
Records and reports.
Enforcement of the agreement
Requirements surrounding the repayment or recapture of HOME funds, specifically are they
remitted to the City of Anderson or retained by the sub-recipient for additional eligible
activities
Fees
Date at which the agreement is valid.

Procedure
To the greatest extent possible, the City’s HOME and CDBG agreements will be formatted in such a
manner to enable re-issue of a similar “boilerplate” or standardized document to future award
recipients.
The City of Anderson Community Development Department staff will send out the written agreement
upon completion of all application requirements and completion of the environmental review, unless
there is administrative funding included in the budget for the purpose of reimbursement of
environmental review preparation funds.
1. The Annual Action Plan is approved by HUD.
2. The City of Anderson Community Development Department uses the boiler-plate written
agreements approved by its legal counsel to prepare the written agreements
3. The City of Anderson Community Development Department customizes the pre-approved
boiler-plate written agreement based on specifics of each project
4. Legal counsel reviews and approves the customized written agreement
5. The written agreement is executed by the sub-recipient
6. The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CD Director approves
and signs the agreement
7. The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement are
committed to that IDIS activity
8. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff will periodically review the IDIS
reports and track written agreements, comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up
and all related reporting.
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(vi)

Conflict of Interest Policy

Policy

All personnel involved with CDBG funds must be aware of CDBG conflict of interest regulations found at
24 C.F.R. 570.489. The CDBG conflict of interest regulation applies:
City of Anderson staff
City of Anderson elected officials
Sub-recipient agencies that receive CDBG funds.

•
•
•

No such person may have any financial interest or benefit, or other interest in a contract, subcontract, or
agreement concerning CDBG activities or the proceeds from these activities "either for themselves or
those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter."
570.489(h)(3)
Any individual or entity seeking CDBG funds for any activity in which they or related individuals
or organizations have an interest must disclose that interest when applying for CDBG funding.
Once the conflict of interest has been disclosed, the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) is authorized to determine whether an exception may be granted.
The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has also determined that the federal conflict
of interest regulation applies to those situations where a unit of general local government, a designated
public agency or a sub-recipient uses CDBG funds to replace other funds for which they are responsible,
or otherwise reduce their risk while increasing risk to the CDBG funds. These situations must be
disclosed as soon as possible so that HUD may decide whether to grant an exemption from the conflict.
24 C.F.R. § 570.489(h)(2).
With respect to procurement activities, the sub-recipient must maintain written standards of
conduct governing the performance of its employees engaged in the award and administration of
contracts. At a minimum, these standards must:

•

Require that no employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or
administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict
would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when any of the following parties has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award:

o
o
o
o
•

an employee, officer, or agent of the sub-recipient;
any member of an employee's, officer's, or agent's immediate family;
an employee's, agent's, or officer's partner; or
an organization which employs or is about to employ any of those in the
preceding section.

Require that employees, agents, and officers of the sub-recipient neither solicit nor
accept gratuities, favors, or anything of value from contractors, or parties to subPage 38 of 241

agreements. However, sub-recipients may set standards for situations in which the
financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value.
Provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for any violations of such standards by
employees, agents, or officers of the sub-recipient.
With respect to all other CDBG and HOME-assisted activities, the general standard is that no employee,
agent, or officer of the sub-recipient, who exercises decision-making responsibility with respect to the
funds and activities, is allowed to obtain a financial interest in or benefit from the funded activities, or
have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement regarding those activities or in the
proceeds of the activities.
Procedure
Conflict of Interest Form
The City of Anderson will require all staff, elected officials, and program staff with decision-making
authority for CDBG funds to complete the Conflict of Interest (COl) Form. The COl Forms will be
maintained on site at the Anderson City Attorney’s Office. A spreadsheet will be maintained with a list
of all City and Program staff and their stated conflict. This spreadsheet will be reviewed for potential
conflicts prior to awarding contracts or grant.
Conflict of Interest Process
If a stated or perceived conflict of interest arises, the first step will be to determine if a conflict exists. If
no conflict exists, this will be documented and put into the COl Program files. If a conflict does exist,
then the Exception Process shall be pursued.
Exception Process
The Exception Process will be in accordance with CDBG regulations found at 24 CFR 570.489 (h)(5).

•

(vii)

Upon written request, exceptions may be granted by HUD on a case-by-case basis, after
consideration of the cumulative effect of various factors listed at 24 CFR 570.611(d), and
only with: (a) full disclosure of the potential conflict, and (b) a legal opinion of the grantee’s
attorney that there would be no violation of state or local laws in granting the exception.
(Exceptions cannot be made retroactively.)

Monitoring

Policy
The City CDD staff will conduct an on-going monitoring process in order to review the programmatic and
financial aspects of its program. The CDD staff will review monthly and quarterly reports submitted by
Public Service providers as a Sub-recipient for compliance with federal regulations regarding use of
federal funds and the implementation of the program, project or activity. Development projects will be
reviewed on at least a quarterly basis along with the Request for Funds submitted by the Sub-recipient
or CHDO. Annual On-site monitoring visits are determined, in part, on a project risk analysis.
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Procedure
The monitoring process is oriented towards resolving problems, offering technical assistance and
promoting timely implementation of projects. To this end CDD staff may require corrective actions of
the Sub-recipient or CHDO. Following are examples of significant problems which will trigger corrective
action by the Sub-recipient or CHDO:
a. Service(s) is/are not documented
b. Goal(s) is/are not being met
c. Project files not in order
d. Complaints by clients
e. Required reports not being submitted in a timely manner
Sub-recipients and CHDOs will submit a monthly or quarterly report as determined in the written
agreement, detailing the implementation and administration of the activity, program or project. The
quarterly programmatic report is due by the 10th calendar day of the following end of the quarter
(January 10, April 10, July 10, October 10). Monthly reports are due by the 10th Calendar day of the
month. Both reports shall include the following:
1) Progress in meeting the Scope of Service in the Agreement.
2) Changes in staff or Board of Directors.
3) Problems encountered and steps taken to resolve them.
4) Other general information as appropriate.
5) If a Sub-recipient’s or CHDO’s project involved the creation of or placement of clients within
housing units, the “HOME Beneficiary Information Form must be submitted within 30 days of
closing.
CDD staff will perform financial and accounting status of the activity, program or project by the Requests
for Payments submitted. Additionally, the CDD staff will analyze IDIS reports from the HUD Computer
System to determine if projects are on schedule.
Reports not submitted on time or behind will cause future reimbursements to be withheld until the
agency is current.
On-Site Monitoring
Based on monitoring results, the CDD staff may hold discussions with Sub-recipient or CHDOS whose
performance does not appear to be sufficient to meet the goals and achievements as outlined in the
agreement. An on-site visit may occur to discuss the service activity shortfall. An on-site visit may also
be conducted in order to ascertain that the eligible clients for whom the program or project was
intended are being served and that in the event of an audit, the required client information is being
maintained. A project risk analysis shall determine further action.
Non-compliance
CDD staff may recommend corrective action to be taken by the City of Anderson‘s Board of Works
should other efforts at obtaining compliance be ineffective.
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(viii)

Recordkeeping and Reporting (IDIS)

Policy
Each Sub-recipient or CDHO is required to maintain documentation on clients benefitting from activities,
program or projects funded through the City’s CDBG and/or HOME programs according to Federal
Regulation 2 CFR 200. As a condition of the HUD grant, the City and the Sub-recipient or CHDO, must
certify that low and moderate income persons are being served. HUD also requires information on the
race and ethnic background of the clients, how many are female heads of households their residency in
the City and how many are very-low income. City CDD staff and HUD must also have access to the names
of the clients. Any information regarding applicants for services funded through federal monies shall be
held in strict confidence and all personally identifiable information (PII) and sensitive information shall
be held in locked filing cabinets in accordance with 2 CFR 200.303 (e); 24 CFR 570.502 (a) .
Procedure
Documentation under this category is extensive and is found throughout the policy manual. Therefore,
the City of Anderson shall advise applicants through mandatory meetings, public meetings, individual
consultation, technical assistance, and referral to various sections of the policy of these reporting
burdens and ensure adequate staff oversight throughout the reporting period, (See Accounting Policy.)

(ix)
Policy

Program Income
(24 CFR 570.500 and 570.504)
Program income retained by the City is treated as additional CDBG or HOME funds subject to all
CDBG and HOME requirements.
Program income that is held in a revolving fund does not have to be used before grant funds are drawn
down for a different type of CDBG or HOME project. However, program income in a revolving fund must
be used before additional grant funds are drawn down for revolving fund.
The City may reuse any revenue generated from projects undertaken with CDBG and HOME funding
towards any other eligible activities within the entitlement community. The City shall prioritize City
infrastructure projects for these funds. Furthermore, any program income earned by a sub-recipient
or City Program may be retained by the sub-recipient upon prior approval determined in the initial
agreement provided the income is treated as additional CDBG or HOME funds and thus subject to all
applicable federal and local requirements.
Program Income Defined: Program income is the gross income received by the City and its subrecipients directly generated from the use of CDBG and HOME funds.
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Program income includes:
a. Proceeds from the sale or lease of property purchased or improved with CDBG and HOME
funds;
b. Proceeds from the sale or lease of equipment purchased with CDBG funds;
c. Gross income from the use or rental of real or personal property acquired, constructed
or improved by the City less costs incidental to the generation of income;
d. Payments of principal and interest on loans made using CDBG and HOME funds;
e. Proceeds from the sale of loans or obligations secured by loans made with CDBG and HOME
funds;
f. Interest earned on an RLF pending its disposition;
g. Interest earned on program income;
h. Funds collected through special assessments on properties not owned and occupied
by LMI households in order to recover the CDBG portion of a public improvement or
HOME assisted project.
i. Sub-grantee income from an ownership interest in a for-profit entity that was
assisted with CDBG and HOME funding.
Program income does not include:
j. Any income received in a single year by the City’s sub-recipients, that does not exceed
$25,000;
and
k. Amounts generated by activities that are financed by a loan guaranteed under
section 108 of the Act; and
l. proceeds from fundraising activities carried out by sub-recipients receiving CDBG
a n d H O M E assistance; and
m. funds collected through special assessments used to recover the non-CDBG portion of a
public improvement; and
n. proceeds from the disposition of real property acquired or improved with CDBG funds
when the disposition occurs after the applicable time period specified in 24 CFR
570.503(b)(7)(i) for subrecipient-controlled property, or in 24 CFR 570.505 for
recipient-controlled property.
Program income paid to the City is always program income and is not subject to the $25,000
exclusion and must be distributed under the method of distribution. The program income should be
distributed, as feasible, prior to additional draws from Treasury.
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Procedure
The City of Anderson Department of Community Development shall receipt any program income in
accordance with any financial management policies.
Program income shall be tracked separately and consistent with HUD policy for tracking and expending
program income.
Program income will be expended first before any new CDBG funds are requested from HUD.
1. Prior to drawing funds for activities, staff will verify that program income has been receipted
into IDIS and its internal PI tracking system.
2. Program income available for funding will be applied to the EN activities and drawn down.
EN funds committed to the activity will be reduced by the amount of program income applied to the
activity so the total funding for the activity remains consistent with the written agreement. Interest
from these program income deposits will be tracked separately by the city and any amount over $250.00
will be sent to HUD on a quarterly basis in March, June, September and December.

(x)

Financial Management

Policy
The City of Anderson Department of Community Development shall administer HOME and CDBG
funds in accordance with all federal guidelines and according to the City of Anderson’s Financial
Policies and Procedures below:

Standards for Financial Management Systems

City, Sub-recipients, CHDOs, Developers, and Owners

The City, Sub-recipients, CHDOs, Developers, and Owners must have financial management systems
in place to comply with the following2 CFR 200; 24 CFR Part 570 CDBG; and 24 CFR part 92, HOME
standards:
o. Provide effective control over and accountability for all funds, property and other assets;
p. Identify the source and application of funds for federally-sponsored activities, including
records and reports that:
i. Verify the “reasonableness, allowability and allocability” of costs; and
ii. Verify that funds have not been used in violation of any of the restrictions
or prohibitions that apply to the federal assistance (through the use of
budget controls and adequate accounting records).
iii. Permit the accurate, complete and timely disclosure of financial results in
accordance with HUD reporting requirements or, for City, state reporting
requirements.
iv. Minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the U.S.
Treasury and disbursement by the state or City.
v. Track and Review Sub-recipient’s Single Audits; $750,000 expenditure
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threshold (2 CFR 200 Subpart F)
Governing Regulation and Financial Accountability: 2CFR 200 200 https://www.ecfr.gov/cgibin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl
CDBG: 24 CFR Part 570 https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3689/24-cfr-part-570-cdbg/
HOME: 24 CFR Part 92 https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2333/24-cfr-part-92-homeinvestment-partnerships-program-final-rule/

Accounting Records
The City is required to have accounting records that sufficiently identify the source and application
of CDBG and HOME funds provided to them.
To meet this requirement, the City’s accounting system (IDIS) should include at least the
following elements:

•

Administration – the Administrative oversight of all activities ensure the financial status of
each CDBG and HOME project of an organization is in compliance with federal regulation 2
CFR 200; 24 CFR Part 570 CDBG; and 24 CFR part 92, HOME . Information is transferred to
the IDIS system after it is approved by the Director. Entries transferred to IDIS should be
cross-referenced to the applicable source documentation tracing of all claims submitted
for re-imbursement.

•

Chart of activities - This is a list of activity names and the numbers assigned to each of the
activity names. The names provide a description of the type of allowable expenditures that
will be recorded in each activity. The activity number is required by IDIS accounting system
and is assigned to an activity name. A typical activity will generally include the following
categories: activity name, national objective, activity goal, client data, fund balance and
expenses.

•

Cash disbursements - A cash disbursements are reported in chronological order, when an
expense was incurred, for what purpose, how much was paid and to whom it was paid.

•

Payroll - Payroll documentation, related benefit expenses on salaries, and benefits
for regulatory purposes.

All IDIS entries must be properly approved and supported by source documentation. Documentation
must show that costs charged against CDBG and HOME were:

•

Incurred during the effective period of the agreement with HUD or for Sub-recipients,
Developers, Owners and CHDOs, with the City;
o Actually paid out;
o Expended on eligible items; and
o Approved by the appropriate official(s) within the organization.

•

Source documentation must explain the basis of the costs incurred and the actual dates
of the expenditure. For example:
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o Source documentation for payroll would include employment letters,

authorizations for rates of pay and benefits and approved time-sheets specific
to the program.
o Source documentation on supplies would include purchase orders or purchase
requisition forms, invoices from vendors, canceled checks and credit card
payments made to vendors, information on the purpose for which they are being
used.
o Source documentation on clients would include household income verification,
household size and demographic, race/ethnicity, age, address, and marital status
o All Source documents must accompany approved claim sheets and project
monitoring reports.

•

The City must ensure that their accounting records include reliable, up-to-date
information on the sources and uses of CDBG and HOME funds, including:
o Amount of federal funds received;
o Current authorization of funds;
o Obligations of funds;
o Unobligated balances;
o Assets and liabilities; o
Program income; and
o Actual expenditures broken down by the grant program and year for which the
funds are derived and the activity on which the funds were used.

Cost Principles

2 CFR 200 Subpart E provide basic guidelines for determining whether a cos allowable. To be
allowable under CDBG and HOME, cost must meet the general criteria:
q. Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration
of the federal award;
r.

Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in 2 CFR 200, federal laws, terms
and conditions of the federal award, or other governing regulations as to types or
amounts of cost items;
s. Be consistent with policies, regulations and procedures that apply uniformly to
both federal awards and other activities of the governmental unit;
t. Be accorded consistent treatment; a cost may not be assigned to the CDBG program as a
direct cost if any other cost incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances has been
allocated to the program as an indirect cost;
u. Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
v. Not be included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching requirements of
any other federal award in either the current or a prior period, except as specifically
provided by federal law or regulation;
Be adequately documented.
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2 CFR 200 Subpart E also contain a “selected” list of costs that are allowable or unallowable.
However, the fact that an item of cost in not included does not mean it’s unallowable. Rather the
cost’s allowability is determined by reference to the basic guidelines.

Cost Allocation

2 CFR 200 Subpart E provide basic guidelines for determining cost principles
Costs charged to CDBG and HOME must also be allocable to the respective program.
A cost is allocable if it is treated consistently with other costs incurred for the same purpose in like
circumstances (i.e., states/ units of general local government must treat costs consistently for all
grant programs); and:
w. Is incurred specifically for the CDBG or HOME program;
x. Benefits both the CDBG or HOME program and other work and can be distributed in
reasonable proportion to the benefits received; or
Is necessary to the overall operation of the organization, although a direct relationship to any
particular cost objective cannot be shown.
Any costs allocable to a particular federal award or cost objective such as CDBG may not be
charged to other federal awards to overcome funding deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed
by law or the terms of the federal award, of tor other reasons.

Indirect Costs – State and Local Governments

2 CFR 200.414 Subpart E provide basic guidelines for determining indirect costs
2 CFR 200 Subpart E requires that governmental entities support indirect costs with a cost
allocation plan or an indirect cost proposal prepared in accordance with the circular. Indirect costs
should be allocated in a manner which will result in the grant program bearing its fair share of total
indirect costs.
A central service cost allocation plan is required if the local government has indirect costs resulting
from centralized services that will be charged to federal awards.
A central service cost allocation plan, for the purposes of local governments, refers to a description
of a process whereby services provided on a centralized basis (e.g., motor pools, computer centers,
purchasing and accounting services) can be identified and assigned to benefited
departments/agencies (e.g., the department/agency administering the CDBG program) on a
reasonable and consistent basis.
Refer to Subpart E 200.414 Indirect Costs for additional information.
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An indirect cost rate proposal is required if the local government has indirect costs resulting from
centralized services that will be charged to federal awards and other indirect costs originating in
various departments/agencies carrying out federal awards.
An indirect cost rate proposal is the documentation prepared by a governmental entity to
substantiate its request for the establishment of an indirect cost rate. This rate, expressed in
percentage terms, is applied to direct costs in order to determine the amount of reimbursement a
state can obtain for indirect costs.

Indirect Costs – Nonprofits

A written agreement is executed between the nonprofit and the approving federal
agency (such as HUD) signifying the approval of the proposed indirect cost rate.
Under 2 CFR 200 Subpart E, there are three methods nonprofits are required to utilize for allocating
indirect costs. Each method is applicable to certain specific circumstances.
Simplified allocation method:
y. Used when a nonprofit organization has only one major function, or where all its major
functions benefit from its indirect costs to approximately the same degree.
z. The indirect cost rate is calculated by separating the organization’s total costs for the
base period (e.g., fiscal year) as either direct or indirect, and dividing the total allowable
indirect costs by an equitable distribution base (total direct costs, direct salaries or
other equitable distribution base).
Multiple allocation base method:
aa. Used when major functions benefit in varying degrees from indirect costs.
bb. Costs are separated into distinct groupings, and each grouping is then allocated to
cc. benefiting functions by means of a base which best measures relative benefits.
Direct allocation method:
dd. This method may be used for those nonprofits that treat all costs as direct costs
except general administration and general expenses.
ee. These joint costs are prorated individually as direct costs to cost objectives using a base
most appropriate to the particular cost being prorated. The base must be established
in accordance with reasonable criteria and must be supported by current data.
ff. Indirect cost rates determined through one of the three prescribed methods must be
submitted to and approved by the federal agency that provides the largest dollar value
of funds to the nonprofit.
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Section 1.03
(a)

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Grant Management

CDBG Eligible Activities

Policy
The following activities are eligible for CDBG funding per 24 CFR 570.201:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Acquisition of Real Property
Disposition
Public Facilities/Improvements
Clearance
Public Services
Interim Assistance
Relocation
Loss of Rental Income
Privately-Owned Utilities
Housing Rehabilitation
New Housing Construction
Code Enforcement
Special Economic Development
Microenterprise Assistance
Special Activities by CBDOs
Home Ownership
Planning and Capacity Building
Program Administration Costs
Miscellaneous Other Activities

Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall ensure that all funded projects meet the CDBG program eligible activities
using the list of eligible activities per 24 CFR 570.201 and shall maintain the required documentation in
each project file.

(i)

Income Definition and Eligibility

Policy
INCOME
All persons assisted with CDBG funds must be low-to-moderate income unless clients have "Presumed
Benefit" status. In order to document eligibility, an application must be completed by each client. If the
client is under the age of 18, the form should be completed by the client’s parent or legal guardian.
AREA BENEFIT
An activity, the benefits of which are available to all the residents in a particular area, where at least 51
percent of the residents are low and moderate income persons. Such an area need not be coterminous
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with census tracts or other officially recognized boundaries but must be the entire area served by the
activity.
PRESUMED BENEFIT
The sub-recipient’s written agreement shall state if the target clientele of an activity is presumed
benefit. Clients who are abused children, battered spouses, elderly persons, severely disabled persons,
homeless persons, persons with AIDS, illiterate persons, or migrant farm workers are presumed by HUD
to be low-income.
•
•

Elderly is defined as persons age 62 or older.
Severely Disabled Adult is defined as persons are classified as having a severe disability if they:
(a) used a wheelchair or had used another special aid for 6 months or longer; (b) were unable to
perform one or more functional activities or needed assistance with an Activity of Daily Living or
Instrumental Activity of Daily Living; (c) were prevented from working at a job or doing
housework; or (d) had a condition including autism, cerebral palsy, Alzheimer's disease, senility,
or mental retardation. Finally persons who are under 65 years of age and who are covered by
Medicare or receive SSI are considered to have a disability (and a severe disability). Functional
activities include seeing, hearing, having one's speech understood, lifting and carrying, walking
up a flight of stairs, and walking. Activities of daily living include getting around inside the house,
getting in and out of bed or a chair, bathing, dressing, eating, and toileting. Instrumental
Activities of Daily Living include going outside the home, keeping track of money or bills,
preparing meals, doing light housework, and using the telephone.

Sub-recipient’s serving presumed benefit clients do not need to collect income documentation.
However, sub-recipients are required to maintain documentation of the applicable presumed benefit
classification needs in the client file.
CLIENTS NOT CLASSIFIED AS "PRESUMED BENEFIT"
Verification of the household and/or family income must be provided prior to providing services.
Public Service Activities
Activities deemed a public service in the written agreement are required to verify family income.
•
•

Family is defined as all persons living in the same household who are related by blood, marriage,
or adoption, including adult children who continue to live at home with their parent(s) and a
dependent child who is living outside of the home (e.g, students living in a dormitory).
An individual living in a housing unit that contains no other person(s) related to him/her is
considered to be a one person family for this purpose.

The sub-recipient shall be required to obtain documentation concerning the income of all family
members over 18 and living in the home.
Non-Public Service Activities
Activities not referred to as a public service activities in the written agreement are required to verify
household income. Household income considers the income of all persons over 18 years of age and
living in the house.
Income Documentation
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Documentation of income must be obtained for each client prior to providing services from CDBG. A
recent pay stub, showing year-to-date income (including overtime), is an acceptable means to do this.
Using the pay stub, the City of Anderson or the sub-recipient shall project their income forward for 12
months to determine annual income for purposes of the grant. If they were paid in cash, and no other
documentation can be produced, the client must sign a form, under penalty of perjury, stating their
income. The client should be made to understand that they are signing a legal document, and that they
are certifying the truth of the information in the entire document.
Procedure
The City of Anderson shall advise applicants of the reporting burdens and ensure approved claim forms
and monthly/quarterly monitoring forms accompany all written agreements, and ensure adequate staff
oversight throughout the reporting period. The City of Anderson Department of Community
Development staff shall maintain the required documentation, listed above, in each project file.

(ii)

CDBG Timeliness and IDIS Reports

Procedure
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has published new criteria regarding
the implementation schedule, meeting required milestones as well as the timeliness of commitments
and the expenditure of CDBG funds. From the time the City of Anderson signs a CDBG Agreement for
funds with HUD, the following CRITICAL time frame apply:
•

Grantees cannot have more than 1.5 times their current program year grant in their line of
credit (24 CFR 570.902(a))

•

Calculation made 60 days prior to the end of the current program year

Link from HUD exchange for each program.
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/idis/guides/ and
https://www.hudexchange.info/onecpd/assets/File/IDIS-Online-Reports-User-Guide.pdf
IDIS Reports for CDBG:
PR01: HUD Grants and Program Income
PR02: List of Activities by Program Year and Project
PR26: CDBG Financial Summary Report
PR56: CDBG Timeliness Report
PR59: CDBG Activities at Risk and Cancelled with Draws Report
Procedure
Involve leadership in development of the plan. • Clearly show how you will meet the 1.5 timeliness
standard by a specific date. • Identify all the expected actions to take to meet the specified timetable •
Include all projects as well as funds available for reprogramming. • Submit quarterly status reports to
HUD • Revise the workout plan as often as necessary to reflect actual progress • Draw down funds on a
regular basis; at least quarterly. • Review expenditure of funds for each activity on a regular basis. •
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Incorporate regularly running the IDIS PR56 into program management. • Reallocate funds as needed. •
Try to anticipate program income and plan for its use. • Track revolving fund expenditures and volume
of activity – reprogram as necessary.
CDD staff shall run quarterly reports and ensure the adherence to the timeliness test and project
schedules. The annual Timeliness Test date is Mach 31. All invoices must be paid by March 15 to
ensure inclusion in the spend-down requirement.

(iii)

Planning and Administrative Cost/Cap

Policy
The City may utilize up to 20% of CDBG funds and 10% of HOME funds plus program income for
program administration and planning. Program administration costs include staff and related costs
required for overall program management, coordination, monitoring, reporting, and evaluation, as
described at 24 CFR 570.206(a)(1).
Procedure
Planning and Administrative Cost Caps are determined based upon the annual allocation award for
each program. The Caps are included in the Annual Action Plan “Use of Funds Section” and made
available for public comment.

(iv)

National Objectives

Policy
All CDBG-funded activities must meet at least one of the National Objectives stated in 24 CFR
570.200(a)(2):
1. At least 70% of the program’s participants must have low or moderate income as defined
by HUD,
2. The project must eliminate slum and blight as defined by HUD,
The project must meet an urgent need designated as an emergency (e.g. by the Anderson City
Council).
In order to qualify under the LMI Benefit (#1 listed above), a CDBG activity must meet at least one of the
following criteria:
1. Area Benefit Activity – An activity, the benefits of which are available to all the residents in a
particular area, where at least 51% of the residents are low and moderate-income. Such an area
need not align directly with a census tract or other officially recognized boundary, but must
include the entire service areas of the activity. An activity that serves an area that is not
primarily residential in character does not meet this criterion.
2. Limited Clientele Activity – An activity which benefits a limited clientele, at least 51% of whom
are low or moderate-income persons. To meet this criterion the activity must meet one of the
following tests:
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a. Benefit a clientele who are generally presumed to be principally low and moderateincome persons. The following groups are presumed by HUD to meet this criterion:
abused children, battered spouses, elderly persons, disabled adults, homeless persons,
illiterate adults, persons living with AIDS, and migrant farm workers,
b. Require information on family size and income so that it is evident that at least 50% of
the clientele are persons whose family income does not exceed the low and moderateincome limit,
c. Have income eligibility requirements which limit the activity exclusively to low and
moderate-income persons, or
d. Be of such a nature and be in such a location that it may be concluded that activity’s
clientele will be primarily low and moderate-income persons.
3. Housing Activity – A low and moderate-income housing activity is an activity which adds or
improves permanent, residential structure which will be occupied by low and moderate-income
households upon completion. The housing can be either owner-occupied or renter-occupied in
either one-family or multi-family structures. Rental units occupied by low and moderate-income
persons must be occupied at affordable rents (not to exceed 30% of household income).
4. Job Creation or Retention Activity – An activity designed to create or retain permanent jobs
where at least 51% of the jobs, computed on a full-time equivalent basis, includes the
employment of low and moderate-income persons.
In order to qualify under the Slum and Blight National Objective (#2 listed above), a CDBG activity must
meet the criteria for 1. Slum and Blight on an Area Basis or 2. Slum and Blight on a Spot Basis.
1. Slum and Blight on an Area Basis – To qualify under this objective, an activity must meet all of
the following criteria:
a. The area must be clearly delineated and designated by municipal resolution and must
meet a definition of a slum, blighted, deteriorated or deteriorating area under State law.
b. There must be a substantial number of deteriorating or deteriorated buildings or public
improvements throughout the area including either:
i. At least 25% of all the buildings in the area must be in a state of deterioration,
or
ii. Public improvements taken as a whole (not only one type of public
improvement, such as streets) throughout the area are in a general state of
deterioration.
2. Slum and Blight on a Spot Basis – To qualify under this objective an activity must not be a public
infrastructure activity and meet all of the following criteria:
a. The activity must be designed to eliminate specific conditions of blight or physical decay
on a spot basis not located in a designated slum or blight area, and
b. The activity must be limited to:
i. Acquisition
ii. Clearance
iii. Historic preservation of public property excluding buildings for the general
conduct of government
iv. Rehabilitation of building, but only to the extent necessary to eliminate specific
conditions detrimental to public health and safety.
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Procedure
The City of Anderson Department of Community Development shall require each recipient of a CDBGfunded activity to provide it with the following documentation. The Department of Community
Development shall review the documentation to ensure accuracy and eligibility at the appropriate
time(s) during the project period.
DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED TO VERIFY ELIGIBILTY
LMI Benefit - Area Benefit Activity
1. Boundaries of the service area
2. Location(s) of the activity
3. Census track and block group data using the most recent available Census data
LMI Benefit - Limited Clientele Activity
For each CDBG-funded activity, one of the following types of documentation must be provided by the
recipient organization to the City of Anderson Community Development Department: Under the criteria
for "limited clientele activities
1. 570.208 (a) (2) Limited clientele activities. (i) An activity which benefits a limited clientele, at
least 51 percent of whom are low and moderate-income persons.
2. elderly
3. Disabled
4. Homeless
5. Abused children
6. Battered spouses
7. Persons living with HIV or AIDS
8. Migrant Workers
To qualify, the activity must meet one of the following tests:
(A) It must benefit a clientele who are generally presumed to be principally low and moderate-income
persons.
B) It must require information on family size and income so that it is evident that at least 51 percent of
the clientele are persons whose family income does not exceed the low and moderate-income limit; or
(C) It must have income eligibility requirements which limit the activity exclusively to low and moderate
income persons; or
(D) It must be of such a nature, and be in such a location, that it may be concluded that the activity's
clientele will primarily be low and moderate-income persons.
LMI Benefit - Housing Activity
Compliance with the National Objective shall be based on initial occupancy of the housing following
completion of the CDBG-assisted work.
Household income data for the initial occupants must be used to determine compliance.
1. The size and income of the household for each unit occupied by a low or moderate-income
household.
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2. For rental housing:
a. Rent charged (or to be charged) after assistance for each dwelling unit in each structure
assisted, and
b. Information as necessary to show the affordability of units occupied (or to be occupied)
by low or moderate-income households.
3. For each property acquired on which there are no structures, evidence of commitments
ensuring that the above criteria will be met when the structure(s) are built.
LMI Benefit - Job Creation or Retention Activity
Documentation under this category is extensive and ongoing as is the determination for ‘appropriate
financial assistance.’ Therefore, the City of Anderson shall advise applicants of these additional
reporting burdens and ensure adequate staff oversight throughout the reporting period.
Slum and Blight – Area Basis
1. Boundaries of the area
2. Certified copy of the municipal resolution designating the area, including all reports,
documentation and public hearing processes required by the law under which the designation
occurs
3. Description of the conditions which qualified the area at the time of its designation in sufficient
detail to demonstrate how the area met the policy criteria (listed above)
a. Buildings survey, including code violations for structured deemed substandard
b. Local definition of substandard
c. Details and scope of CDBG-assisted rehabilitation, by structure
d. Engineering survey/analysis documenting the condition of all public improvements to
the extent necessary to qualify the area
Slum and Blight – Spot Basis
1. Description of the specific condition of blight or physical decay treated and
2. For rehabilitation carried out, a description by structure of:
a. Specific conditions detrimental to public healthy and safety which were corrected
b. Details and scope of CDBG-assisted rehabilitation.
Recordkeeping - The City of Anderson Department of Community Development staff shall maintain the
required documentation, listed above, in each project file.

(v)

Public Service Costs/Caps

Policy
Per 24 CFR 570.201(e)(1), funding of Public Services activities may not exceed 15% of the total
CDBG grant award plus 15% of the total program income it received in the preceding program year.
The primary objective of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, is
the development of viable communities by the provision of decent housing and a suitable living
environment, and the expansion of economic opportunities, principally for persons of low- and
moderate income. The City Anderson receives an annual federal entitlement of Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to implement the Act locally.
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I.

PUBLIC SERVICE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Procedure
Public Service funds are used to achieve the following national objective:
 To benefit low and moderate income persons.
Verification of the household and/or family income must be obtained prior to providing services.
Public Service Activities
Activities deemed a public service are required to verify family income.
•
•

Family is defined as all persons living in the same household who are related by blood, marriage,
or adoption, including adult children who continue to live at home with their parent(s) and a
dependent child who is living outside of the home (e.g, students living in a dormitory).
An individual living in a housing unit that contains no other person(s) related to him/her is
considered to be a one person family for this purpose.

The sub-recipient shall be required to obtain documentation concerning the income of all family
members over 18 and living in the home.
II. PUBLIC SERVICE APPLICATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS
Procedure
a. The CDBG application packet is available online at http://www.cityofanderson.com no later than
30 days prior to the submission deadline.
b.

Submit a separate proposal for each project or activity, for which CDBG funding is requested
(e.g., operating costs, acquisition or construction costs). ONE ORIGINAL AND TWO COPIES OF
EACH PROPOSAL. Secured each copy with a binder clip or rubber band. No staples. Proposals
may be disqualified if the pages come apart and the review staff is unable to determine
completeness of the application.

c.

Incomplete applications are disqualified from further consideration without further review.

d.

Applications must be typed in either 10 or 12 point font. No handwritten applications are
accepted.

e.

Each applicant must attend the mandatory information session. It is strongly recommended
that a fiscal person and at least one other person attend.

f.

Applications for CDBG funding must be mailed or hand-delivered to: Board of Public Works,
120 E. 8th Street – 5th Fl., City Hall, Anderson, IN 46016. No faxed or emailed proposals will be
accepted.

g.

Application must be signed by Chief Executive Officer and Board Chairperson and delivered in a
sealed envelope.
Page 55 of 241

h.

Deadline for submission of completed proposals with copies and attachments is 3:00 P.M. on
on the date specified in the public notice and legal notice. Late proposals are not considered
for funding. City staff will not print or make copies of any proposals.

i.

The following documentation must be included with each proposal:
 Copy of the agency’s most recent audit or financial statement
 IRS Determination Letter
 Current list of Board Members
 Letters of support from partner agencies
 Agency’s policy on Diversity
 Completed Conflict of Interest Form (Included in the application)
 Itemization of Salaries (if salaries will be paid with CDBG funds)
 Acknowledgment of receipt of $750,000 or more annually and a copy of the most
recent single audit

III. PUBLIC SERVICE PROPOSAL TIMELINE
No later than 30 days prior to
submission deadline
Dates published: Public Notice,
Interested Parties Email list, City
website and Facebook page, and
various locations throughout the city
of Anderson
Dates published: Public Notice,
Interested Parties Email list, City
website and Facebook page, and
various locations throughout the city
of Anderson

Applications available.
Mandatory Pre-application Information Session.
Applicants are encouraged to bring 2 people including
the financial manager..
Please call 765.648.6096 to be placed on the interested
parties email list.
Application Deadline. Applications must be received no
later than 3:00 p.m.
Please call 765.648.6096 to be placed on the interested
parties email list.

Applications are generally accepted annually in the Fall during the months of October and November.
 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Procedure
The grantee (Community Development Office) must develop and follow a detailed plan that provides for
and encourages citizen participation. This integral process emphasizes participation by persons of low or
moderate income, particularly residents of predominantly low and moderate income neighborhoods,
slum or blighted areas, and areas in which the grantee proposes to use CDBG funds. The plan must provide
citizens with the following: reasonable and timely access to local meetings; an opportunity to review
proposed activities and program performance; provide for timely written answers to written complaints
and grievances; and identify how the needs of non-English speaking residents will be met in the case of
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public hearings where a significant number of non-English speaking residents can be reasonably expected
to participate.
The schedule for the two (2) Annual Public Hearings to develop the Action Plan are schedule as follows:
Dates published: Public Notice, Interested Parties Email list, City website and Facebook page
Please call 765.648.6096 to be placed on the interested parties email list, and various locations
throughout the city of Anderson including: The Geater Center, The Impact Center, Public Library, and
various other locations. All public notices are shared with the Anderson City Council members.
IV.

PUBLIC SERVICE APPLICATION SELECTION CRITERIA

Procedure
The City will take the following factors into consideration when evaluating a project for CDBG funding:
a. Does the proposed program/activity meet a national objective under CDBG regulations?
b. Is the proposed program/activity eligible under CDBG regulations?
c. Does the program/activity meet a goal and/or priority as identified in the Consolidated Plan?
d. What amount of public benefit will be achieved by the program/activity relative to the cost?
e. Past performance (for organizations requesting continued funding).
f.

Does the organization have any audit concerns or findings in the past three (3) years that have
not been resolved?

g. Did the organization define the outcomes and measurement of those outcomes, e.g. for an
employment training activity, the number of persons actually securing a job as a result of the
training should be emphasized rather than just the number of persons that will be provided
employment training.
h. Does the program/activity leverage other funding sources, demonstrating cost sharing
opportunities, program sustainability, and in-kind contributions?
i. Will the project be ready to commence upon notification of funding?
i. Does the organization have the administrative capacity to successfully carry out the
program/activity, e.g., has previous experience with similar projects.
j. Does the organization have the financial capacity to operate the program until funds are
available and the ability to operate on a reimbursement basis?
k. Does the application describe collaborative efforts (as applicable) with other service
providers and/or agencies?
NOTE: CDBG funds are limited. It is therefore important that applicants identify other resources for their
projects/activities. Continuous CDBG funding is not guaranteed.
V.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
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Procedure
The general rule is that no persons, as defined below, who exercise or have exercised any functions or
responsibilities with respect to CDBG activities, or who are in a position to participate in a decision making
process or to gain inside information with regard to such activities may obtain a financial interest or
benefit from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or
agreement with respect to CDBG assisted activity, or with respect to proceeds of the CDBG activity, either
for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year
thereafter. (Section 24 CFR 570.611(b) – “Conflicts prohibited” of the CDBG regulations).
Persons covered. The conflict of interest provisions apply to any person who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the recipient, or of any designated
public agencies, or sub-recipients who are receiving funds under this part.
No employee, officer or agent of the grantee shall participate in selection, or in the award or
administration of a contract supported by Federal funds, if a real or apparent conflict of interest would
be involved. Such a conflict would arise when any of the parties noted below have a financial or other
interest in the firm selected for award.
•

The employee, officer or agent;

•

Any member of his/her immediate family;

•

His or her partner; or

•

An organization, which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above,

The officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors of anything of
monetary value from contractors or parties to sub-agreements (24 CFR PART 84.42 – “Codes of
Conduct”).
Conflict of interest situations that are not properly addressed will result in a loss of CDBG funding,
and in some cases may result in civil or criminal liability. Community Development staff should be
contacted immediately if there is a suspected conflict of interest.
To ensure compliance, please review the regulations noted above to determine whether an actual
or perceived conflict of interest exists, and, if so, what action should be taken to avoid a violation of
the law. All applicants must complete the “Conflict of Interest Questionnaire” and submit with the
proposal.
VI. IMPORTANT NOTICES
Procedure
The City of Anderson reserves the right to reject any and all proposals.
Historically, the Action Plan must be submitted by the City before the actual allocation amounts are
announced by the federal government. Consequently, the Action Plan and awards are based on funding
estimates. Awards based on submitted proposals shall be subject to receipt of sufficient funds from the
U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development. In the event the funding is less than estimated, amounts
will be modified in direct proportion to the difference between the estimated and actual award.
All materials submitted shall become public records retained by the City of Anderson, except for the
following, which will be discarded:
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 Late and/or incomplete proposals
 Materials not requested as part of the proposal packet
Prior to discarding materials, the applicant will be notified and given ten days to pick up the materials
if they so desire. Materials not claimed within the ten days will be discarded.
If an applicant makes a false statement or misrepresentation in the proposal to obtain Federal funds and
funds are awarded, the funds and contract will be in default and the City may declare any and all funds
paid out for the project immediately due and repayable to the City, and the contract voided.
Appeals
Upon notification of award decisions, applications that were not approved for funding will have 15 days
to submit an appeal of the decision. Applicants who wish to appeal the funding recommendation must
submit a formal appeal in writing to the Mayor no later no later than the fifteenth day following the formal
denial letter. Appeals submitted after this time will not be considered. All appeals will be reviewed by
the Mayor and/or the Executive Director of Community Development, whose decision will be final.
Faith-Based Organizations
Faith-based organizations are eligible and also encouraged to apply for CDBG funding. However, per the
regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development, organizations may not use HUD
funds to support inherently religious activities such as worship, religious instruction, etc.
VII.

GRANT PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS

Name of Project: List the name project or activity for which you are applying to receive funds.
Name of Organization: The legal name of the organization or entity that will be responsible for the
implementation of the project or activity if funds are awarded.
Organization Address: The mailing address for the responsible organization. The mailing address of the
organization does not necessarily have to be the same as the project address.
City/State/Zip: City, state and zip code for mailing address of the responsible organization.
Federal ID: List the responsible organization’s federal identification number.
DUNS Number: All organizations receiving federal dollars must provide their Dun & Bradstreet (D&B)
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number. The DUNS number must be and remain current.
Applicants should verify that they have a DUNS number or take steps needed to obtain one immediately.
To obtain a DUNS or to find out if an organization already has a DUNS number, applicants may call 1-866705-5711 or visit the website at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/pages/CCRSearch.jsp
Contact Name/Title: List the name and title for a contact person for this project. This individual will be
the primary point of contact for any question that may arise or additional information needed during the
proposal process. This individual will also be the primary contact for the program/activity if funds are
awarded.
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Phone: list the phone number that will provide the best possible contact to reach the contact person.
Email: Periodically, the Community Development office will send or request information by email.
Provide an email address that will allow communication to be sent to the contact person for this
program/activity.
Program Location/Address: List the address or briefly describe the area where this activity/project will
take place. If the activity/project is for a particular area, please include a map of the area in the
attachments.
Amount Requested: List the amount of CDBG funds the agency is requesting for this activity/project.
VIII.

Glossary of Terms
CDBG is the acronym for Community Development Block Grant. The program was developed
under the Community Development Act of 1974. The CDBG entitlement program allocates annual
grants to larger cities and urban counties to develop viable communities by providing decent
housing, a suitable living environment, and opportunities to expand economic opportunities,
principally for low- and moderate-income persons. For each activity undertaken with CDBG funds,
one of three National Objectives must be met; 1. Aid to low and moderate income persons, 2.
Elimination of Slums & Blight and 3. Urgent Needs.
Creating Suitable Living Environments relates to activities that are designed to benefit
communities, families, or individuals by addressing issues in their living environment. This
objective relates to activities that are intended to address a wide range of issues faced by low and
moderate income persons, from physical problems with their environment, such as poor quality
infrastructure, to social issues such as crime prevention, literacy, or elderly health services.
Providing Decent Housing covers the wide range of housing activities that are generally
undertaken with HOME or CDBG funds. This objective focuses on housing activities whose
purpose is to meet individual family or community housing needs. It does not include programs
where housing is an element of a larger effort to make community-wide improvements, since
such programs would be more appropriately reported under Suitable Living Environments.
Creating Economic Opportunities applies to activities related to economic development,
commercial revitalization, or job creation.
Availability/Accessibility applies to activities that make services, infrastructure, public services,
public facilities, housing, or shelter available or accessible to low and moderate income people,
including persons with disabilities. In this category, accessibility does not refer only to physical
barriers, but also to making the basics of daily living available and accessible to low- and
moderate-income people where they live.
Affordability applies to activities that provide affordability in a variety of ways to low and
moderate income people. It can include the creation or maintenance of affordable housing,
basic infrastructure hook-ups, or services such as transportation or day care. Affordability is an
appropriate objective whenever an activity is lowering the cost, improving the quality, or
increasing the affordability of a product or service to benefit a low-income household.
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Sustainability applies to activities that are aimed at improving communities or neighborhoods,
helping to make them livable or viable by providing benefit to persons of low and moderate
income or by removing or eliminating slums or blighted areas, through multiple activities or
services that sustain communities or neighborhoods
Personnel Costs applies to each position that will be paid in whole or in part through CDBG funds.
Under calculation, indicate the rate of pay (hourly/salary) and the percentage of time to be spent
on the project. Total Wages is the total amount that position will be paid during the program year
or the duration of the program/activity. CDBG amount is the amount from the total that will be
charged to the CDBG program for the program year or the duration of the program/activity.
IX.

Record Keeping● Reporting● Payment● Monitoring● Procurement● Assets
Procedure
A. Accounting Standards
Comply with 24 CFR 84.21−28 and 2 CFR 200. Adhere to the accounting principles and
procedures required therein, utilize adequate internal controls, and maintain necessary
source documentation for all costs incurred.
***Single Audits: The City is required to track the receipt and review the audit thoroughly
and verify if it met the $750,000 federal funds expenditure threshold per 2 CFR 200
Subpart F audit requirements. All applicants must verify whether the threshold was met.
And, if so, provide a copy of the annual single audit documentation.
Cost Principles
Administer its program in conformance with 2 CFR 200, “Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations.” These principles shall be applied for all costs incurred whether charged
on a direct or indirect basis.
B. Documentation and Record Keeping
Records to be Maintained
Maintain all records required by the Federal regulations specified in 2 CFR 200 and 24 CFR
570.506, that are pertinent to the activities funded. Such records include but not be
limited to:
a. Records providing a full description of each activity undertaken;
b. Records demonstrating that each activity undertaken meets one of the
National Objectives of the CDBG program;
c. Records required to determine the eligibility of activities;
d. Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and equal
opportunity components of the CDBG program;
e. Financial records as required by 24 CFR 570.502, and 24 CFR 84.21−28; and
f. Other records necessary to document compliance with Subpart K of 24 CFR
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Part 570.
Retention
Retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other
records for a minimum period of five (5) years after the end of the project.
Client Data
Verify client eligibility before providing services and maintain client data demonstrating
client eligibility for services provided. Verification may include, but not be limited to, client
name, address, income level and other basis for determining eligibility, and description of
service provided. Client information must be made available to the City of Anderson and
the Department of HUD to monitor for review upon request and for a minimum period of
five (5) years after the end of the project.
Disclosure
The Sub-recipient understands that client information collected under this contract is
private and the use or disclosure of such information, when not directly connected with
the administration of the Grantee’s or Sub-recipient’s responsibilities with respect to
services provided under this contract, is prohibited unless written consent is obtained
from such person receiving service and, in the case of a minor, that of a responsible
parent/guardian.
Close-outs
The Public Service providers (Sub-recipient’s) obligation to the City does not end until all
close-out requirements are completed. Activities during this close-out period include, but
are not limited to: making final payments, disposing of program assets (including the
return of all unused materials, equipment, program income balances, and accounts
receivable to the City), and determining the custodianship of records.
Audits & Inspections
All project records must be made available to the City of Anderson, HUD, and the
Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives, at
any time during normal business hours, as often as deemed necessary, to audit, examine,
and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any deficiencies noted in audit
reports must be fully cleared by the Sub-recipient within 30 days after receipt by the Subrecipient. Failure of the Sub-recipient to comply with the above audit requirements will
constitute a violation of the project agreement and may result in the withholding of future
payments. Project records may be subject to annual audit conducted in accordance with
current Community Development policy concerning sub-recipient audits and Federal
Regulation 2 CFR 200, 24 CFR 570.502, and 24 CFR 84.21−28.
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Reporting and Payment Procedures
Program Income
All program income (as defined at 24 CFR 570.500(a)) generated by activities carried out
with CDBG funds must be reported upon program closeout. The use of program income
by the Sub-recipient comply with the requirements set forth at 24 CFR 570.504. Subrecipients may use program income during the project period for activities permitted
under the project agreement. Program Income will reduce requests for additional funds
by the amount of the program income balances on hand. All unexpended program income
is returned to the City at closeout. Any interest earned on cash advances from the U.S.
Treasury and from funds held in a revolving fund account is not program income and is
remitted promptly to the City of Anderson.
Payment Procedures
The City of Anderson will pay on a re-imbursement basis only. Reimbursement is based
upon proper documentation submitted by the Sub-recipient on approved claim forms.
Reimbursement of funds are not permitted without appropriate source documentation
AND completed Project Progress Reports. All payments must be consistent with the
approved budget and policy concerning payments. Payments will be made within 30 days
for eligible expenses actually incurred by the Sub-recipient.
Progress Reports
The Sub-recipient must submit quarterly or monthly Progress Reports, as determined in
the project agreement, to the City in the form, content, and frequency as required by the
City.
Procurement
Compliance
Comply with current CDBG policy concerning the purchase of equipment and maintain
inventory records of all non-expendable personal property as defined by the policy and
procured with grant funds provided. All program assets (unexpended program income,
property, equipment, etc.) shall revert to the City upon closeout.
2 CFR 200 Standards
Unless specified otherwise, procurement of all materials, property, or services must be in
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200 and 24 CFR 84.40−48.
Travel
Written approval from the City must be granted for any travel outside the metropolitan
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area with funds provided with CDBG funds.
Use and Reversion of Assets
The use and disposition of real property and equipment must be in compliance with the
requirements of 24 CFR Part 84 and 24 CFR 570.502, 570.503, and 570.504, as applicable,
which include but are not limited to the following:
In all cases in which equipment acquired, in whole or in part, with CDBG funds is sold,
the proceeds become be program income. Equipment not needed for activities will
be (a) transferred to the City for the CDBG program or (b) retained after compensating
the City [an amount equal to the current fair market value of the equipment less the
percentage of non-CDBG funds used to acquire the equipment].
The City of Anderson shall advise applicants of the reporting burdens and ensure approved claim forms
and monthly/quarterly monitoring forms accompany all written agreements, and ensure adequate staff
oversight throughout the reporting period. The City of Anderson Department of Community
Development staff shall maintain the required documentation in each project file.

(vi)

Non Low/Mod benefit Cap

Procedure

Section 104(b)(3)(A) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended.
In addition to the requirement that all CDBG funds be used to meet one of the three national
objectives, at least 70% of all CDBG-funded projects must meet the national objective of benefiting
predominately low and moderate-income persons.
The City will certify every one, two, or three program years that at least 70% of CDBG funds
expended were for activities meeting the national objective of benefiting predominately low and
moderate-income persons.
This requirement applies to expenditures of CDBG funds during the specific one, two, or three
program year time period. CDBG funds shall include all funds received in the form of:
•
•
•
•
•

CDBG grant received by HUD
CDBG program income received by the City of Anderson and any sub-recipients
EDI (Section 108(q) of HCD Act of 1974
Proceeds of loans guaranteed by HUD under Section 108
Urban renewal surplus grant funds.

The City of Anderson shall ensure adequate staff oversight throughout the reporting period. The City of
Anderson Department of Community Development staff shall maintain the required documentation in
each project file.
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Section 1.04
(a)

Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME)

Grant Management

Policy
The HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) Program was created by the National Affordable
Housing Act of 1990 to strengthen public-private partnerships and to expand the supply of decent, safe,
sanitary and affordable housing for very low income and low-income individuals or families. The City of
Fort Smith receives an annual federal entitlement of HOME funds to implement the Act locally and is
defined by federal regulation as a Participating Jurisdiction (PJ).
HOME funds are used to achieve the following objectives:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Provide decent affordable housing to lower-income households,
Expand the capacity of nonprofit housing providers,
Strengthen the ability of state and local governments to provide housing, and
Leverage private-sector participation

The HOME Program provides funds for projects that primarily assist low- and moderate-income persons
in securing:
•
•
•
•
•
•

New home construction
Down payment and closing cost assistance
Property for affordable housing
Major rehabilitation of owner-occupied homes
Demolition of dilapidated housing
Site improvements for HOME assisted projects

Procedure
The Community Development Department (CDD) will administer several HOME Program
activities. Eligible activities are defined in the City of Anderson’s 5 Year Consolidated Plan and includes
the primary goal of the City to increase or strengthen homeownership. The categories include:
•
•
•

Homebuyer Activities
Housing Rehabilitation of owner-occupied units
Other Eligible Housing Activities

Further, HOME funds are set aside for use by CHDOs (Community Housing Development Organization).
CHDOs are nonprofit organizations certified by the City of Anderson as meeting the federal criteria to
undertake certain housing development activities. Those activities include acquisition and/or
rehabilitation of rental housing and homebuyer properties or to construct rental or homebuyer
properties. CHDOs must act as Owner, Developer or Sponsor. Additional guidance on the use of CHDOs
is provided in HUD CPD Notice 97-11, CPD Notice 97-09, and CPD Notice 96-09. The Code of Federal
Regulations contains regulatory guidance on CHDOs.

Page 65 of 241

(i)

Eligible Activities

Policy
HOME funds may be used to provide incentives to develop and support affordable rental housing and
homeownership affordability through the acquisition (including assistance to homebuyers), new
construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of non-luxury housing with suitable amenities, including
real property acquisition, site improvements, conversion, demolition, and other expenses, including
financing costs, relocation expenses of any displaced persons, families, businesses, or organizations; to
provide tenant-based rental assistance, including security deposits; to provide payment of reasonable
administrative and planning costs; and to provide for the payment of operating expenses of community
housing development organizations. The housing must be permanent or transitional housing.
Acquisition of vacant land or demolition must be undertaken only with respect to a particular housing
project intended to provide affordable housing.
Conversion of an existing structure to affordable housing is rehabilitation, unless the conversion entails
adding one or more units beyond the existing walls, in which case, the project is new construction for
purposes of this part.
Manufactured housing. HOME funds may be used to purchase and/or rehabilitate a manufactured
housing unit, or purchase the land upon which a manufactured housing unit is located. Except for
existing, owner-occupied manufactured housing that is rehabilitated with HOME funds, the
manufactured housing unit must, at the time of project completion, be connected to permanent utility
hook-ups and be located on land that is owned by the manufactured housing unit owner or land for
which the manufactured housing owner has a lease for a period at least equal to the applicable period of
affordability.
**Mobile Homes are not eligible for rehabilitation.
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall ensure that all funded projects meet the HOME program eligible
activities.

(ii)

Income Definition and Eligibility

Policy
The City of Anderson uses the Adjusted Gross Income method of calculating annual income for HOME
program participants. Projects receiving HOME funds must follow this method in the determination of
participant eligibility in HOME-assisted housing units. Properties with multilayered financing such as Tax
Credits will be allowed to use the Section 8 definition as prescribed by HUD.
Rental projects subsidized by the HOME Program must comply with the Program Funds Rule and the
Project Rule, as established by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Program
Funds Rule states that 90% of the total households assisted (HOME subsidized units) must have incomes
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that do not exceed 60% of the Area Median Income (AMI). The Project Rule specifies the occupancy of
units in each rental project. In projects of 5 or more HOME-assisted units, at least 20% of the HOME
assisted units must be occupied by families who have annual incomes that are 50% or less of the AMI
(Low Home Rent Units). Projects with fewer than 5 HOME-assisted units do not have to restrict any units
to Low HOME Rents or limit occupancy to tenants at 50% or below of the AMI.
HUD provides an online income calculation tool that project owners may use to determine income
eligibility of tenants. It can be found at https://www.onecpd.info/incomecalculator/
Procedure
Income Documentation
Documentation of income must be obtained for each client prior to providing housing opportunities. A
recent pay stub, showing year-to-date income (including overtime), is an acceptable means to do this.
Using the pay stub, the City of Anderson or the sub-recipient shall project their income forward for 12
months to determine annual income for purposes of the grant. If they were paid in cash, and no other
documentation can be produced, the client must sign a form, under penalty of perjury, stating their
income. The client should be made to understand that they are signing a legal document, and that they
are certifying the truth of the information in the entire document.
The City of Anderson shall advise sub-recipients of housing funds of the reporting burdens and ensure
approved claim forms, tenant data forms accompany all written agreements, and ensure adequate staff
oversight throughout the reporting period. The City of Anderson Department of Community
Development staff shall maintain the required documentation, listed above, in each project file.

(iii)

HOME Timeliness and IDIS Reports

Policy
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has published new criteria regarding
the implementation schedule, meeting required milestones as well as the timeliness of commitments
and the expenditure of HOME funds. From the time the City of Anderson signs a HOME Investment
Partnerships Agreement for HOME funds with HUD, the following CRITICAL time frames apply:
• 24 months to enter into written agreements with an Owner/Developer to reserve
HOME funds;
• 24 months to commit funds in the HOME IDIS System for specific projects; and
• Four years to actually expend funds.
Link from HUD exchange for each program.
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/idis/guides/ and
https://www.hudexchange.info/onecpd/assets/File/IDIS-Online-Reports-User-Guide.pdf
IDIS Reports for HOME:
PR01: HUD Grants and Program Income
PR02: List of Activities by Program Year and Project
Pr05: Drawdown Report by Project and Activity
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PR25: Status of CHDO Funds by Fiscal Year Report
PR27: Status of HOME Grans Report
PR46: HOME Flagged Activities Report
PR49: HOME Deadline Compliance Status Report
Procedure
CDD staff shall run reports quarterly and ensure the adherence to commitment and expenditure of
funds, and project schedules.

(iv)

Planning and Administration Cost/Cap

Policy
The City of Anderson may expend, for payment of reasonable administrative and planning costs of the
HOME program, an amount of HOME funds that is not more than ten percent of the sum of the Fiscal
Year HOME basic formula allocation plus any funds received in accordance with § 92.102(b) to meet or
exceed participation threshold requirements that Fiscal Year. The City may also expend, for payment of
reasonable administrative and planning costs of the HOME program, a sum up to ten percent of the
program income deposited into its local account or received and reported by its state recipients or Subrecipient during the program year. The City may expend such funds directly or may authorize its Subrecipient, if any, to expend all or a portion of such funds, provided total expenditures for planning and
administrative costs do not exceed the maximum allowable amount. Reasonable administrative and
planning costs include:
a. General management, oversight and coordination. Reasonable costs of overall program management,
coordination, monitoring, and evaluation. Such costs include, but are not limited to, necessary
expenditures for the following:
1.

Salaries, wages, and related costs of the participating jurisdiction’s staff. In charging costs to
this category the participating jurisdiction may either include the entire salary, wages, and
related costs allocable to the program of each person whose primary responsibilities with regard
to the program involves program administration assignments, or the prorated share of the
salary, wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program administration
assignments. The participating jurisdiction may use only one of these methods. Program
administration includes the following types of assignments:
o
o
o
o

o
o
o

Developing systems and schedules for ensuring compliance with program requirements;
Developing interagency agreements and agreements with entities receiving HOME
funds;
Monitoring HOME-assisted housing for progress and compliance with program
requirements;
Developing agreements and monitoring housing not assisted with HOME funds that the
participating jurisdiction designates as a matching contribution in accordance with §
92.219(b) for compliance with applicable program requirements;
Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for submission to HUD;
Coordinating the resolution of audit and monitoring findings;
Evaluating program results against stated objectives; and
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o

Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with regard to the
program include such assignments as those described in paragraphs above

2. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;
3.

Administrative services performed under third party contracts or agreements, including such
services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit services;

4. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the program, including such
goods and services as rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance (but not purchase) of office space; and
5. Costs of administering tenant-based rental assistance programs.
b. Staff and overhead. Staff and overhead costs directly related to carrying out the project, such as work
specifications preparation, loan processing, inspections, and other services related to assisting potential
owners, tenants, and homebuyers (e.g., housing counseling); and staff and overhead costs directly
related to providing advisory and other relocation services to persons displaced by the project, including
timely written notices to occupants, referrals to comparable and suitable replacement property,
property inspections, counseling, and other assistance necessary to minimize hardship. These costs may
be charged as administrative costs or as project costs under § 92.206 (d)(6) and (f)(2), at the discretion
of the participating jurisdiction.
c. Public information. The provision of information and other resources to residents and citizen
organizations participating in the planning, implementation, or assessment of projects being assisted
with HOME funds.
d. Fair housing. Activities to affirmatively further fair housing in accordance with the participating
jurisdiction’s certification under 24 CFR part 91.
e. Indirect Costs. Indirect costs may be charged to the HOME program under a cost allocation plan
prepared in accordance with 2 CFR 200 as applicable.
f. Preparation of the consolidated plan. Preparation of the consolidated plan required under 24 CFR part
91. Preparation includes the costs of public hearings, consultations, and publication.
g. Other Federal requirements. Costs of complying with the Federal requirements in subpart H of this
part. Project-specific environmental review costs may be charged as administrative costs or as project
costs in accordance with § 92.206(d)(8), at the discretion of the participating jurisdiction.

(v)

Minimum and Maximum HOME Subsidy Limits

Policy
The minimum amount of HOME funds that must be invested in a project involving rental housing or
homeownership is $1,000 times the number of HOME-assisted units in the project.
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The maximum amount of HOME funds that may be invest on a per-unit basis in affordable housing may
not exceed the per-unit dollar limitations established under section 221(d)(3)(ii) of the National Housing
Act (12 U.S.C. 17151(d)(3)(ii)) for the area in which the housing is located. If local per-unit subsidy
amount has already been increased to 210% as permitted under section 221(d)(3)(ii) of the National
Housing Act, upon request to the Field Office, HUD will allow the per-unit subsidy amount to be
increased on a program-wide basis to an amount, up to 240% of the original per unit limits.
Procedure
The minimum amount of HOME subsidy per unit is $1,000. The maximum amount of HOME subsidy per
unit is:
*** Keep this data updated annually by contacting the HUD field office.

(vi)

0 Bedroom
140,107.00

1 Bedroom
160,615.00

2 Bedroom
195,304.00

3 Bedroom
252,662.00

4 Bedroom
277,344.00

CDBG and HOME Subsidy Layering: Home Owner Occupied Rehabilitation

Policy
Before committing funds to a project, the City must evaluate the project in accordance with guidelines
that it has adopted for this purpose and will not invest any more HOME funds, in combination with
other governmental assistance, than is necessary to provide affordable housing. Required under Section
212(f) of statute and under Con Plan rule at 24 CFR Part 91 In HOME regulations at 92.250(b)
Procedure
Project Name, Location, Narrative Description of Project, including: Total number of units, Type of unit,
number of bedrooms, Portion and type of units receiving assistance, compliance with partial
assistance requirements. Sources of Funds: Each Source Listed separately with details, Principle, Interest
Rate, and Amortization Term. Uses of Funds: Detailed Breakdown of Project Costs (per bids received),
including hard and soft cost items, Commitment Letters From All Sources of Financing Disclosing
Significant Terms. Tax Assessors Property Record: the assessed value of the property before
rehabilitation and the Tax Liability Record: proof of ownership and current tax liability status.

(vii)

Match Requirements

Policy
When applicable, HOME funds must be matched by non-federal resources, which include but are not
limited to: private cash or contributions from organizations, individuals or other sources; in-kind salary
or materials; Low Income Housing Trust Fund; or other non-federal sources as defined in Section 92.220.
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a. General. Each participating jurisdiction must make contributions to housing that qualifies as
affordable housing under the HOME program, throughout a fiscal year. The contributions must total
not less than 25 percent of the funds drawn from the jurisdiction’s HOME Investment Trust Fund
Treasury account in that fiscal year, excluding funds drawn for purposes identified in paragraph (c) of
this section.
b. Shortfall amount from local resources. Amounts made available under § 92.102(b)(2) from the
resources of the local participating jurisdiction, to enable the local participating jurisdiction to meet the
participation threshold amount are not required to be matched and do not constitute matching
contributions.
c. HOME funds not required to be matched. HOME funds used for administrative and planning costs
(pursuant to § 92.207); community housing development organization operating expenses (pursuant to
§ 92.208); capacity building (pursuant to 92.300(b)) of community housing development organizations;
and project specific assistance to community housing development organizations (pursuant to § 92.301)
when the participating jurisdiction waives repayment under the provisions of § 92.301(a)(3) or §
92.301(b)(3) are not required to be matched.
Eligible match includes non-federal investment in HOME-eligible (and not HOME-assisted) housing
include:
• Non-HOME-assisted affordable housing projects (rental, homeowner rehabilitation and
homebuyer), and a low-income household receiving non-federal tenant-based rental assistance.
For investment in a rental, homebuyer or owner-occupied project to count as match, it must meet the
following requirements of the HOME regulations (as applicable):
• Section 92.203 - Income determinations
• Section 92.251 - Property standards
• Section 92.252 - Rental housing
• Section 92.253(a) – Lease
• Section 92.253(b) - Prohibited lease terms
• Section 92.254 – Homeownership
For an investment in tenant-based rental assistance, including security deposits, to count as match, it
must meet the HOME requirements including:
• Section 92.203 - Income determinations
• Section 92.209(a) - Eligible costs
• Section 92.209(c) - Tenant selection
• Section 92.209(f) - Rent reasonableness
• Section 92.209(I) - Housing quality standards
Local Jurisdictions
When a local jurisdiction meets one of the distress criteria, it is determined to be in fiscal distress and
receives a 50 percent reduction of the match. If a local jurisdiction satisfies both of the distress criteria,
it is determined to be in severe fiscal distress and receives a 100 percent reduction of the match.
FY 2016 Calculations
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For a jurisdiction to qualify as distressed based on the poverty criterion, its percent of families in poverty
must have been at least 14.08 percent, which is 125 percent of the average national rate for families in
poverty of 11.26 percent.
For a jurisdiction to qualify as distressed based on the PCI criterion, its average PCI must have been less
than to $20,885, which is 75 percent of the average PCI of 27,846.

State

Participating
Jurisdiction/State

% Families
in Poverty
(≥14.08%)

IN

Anderson

19.5%

% Income
Growth
(<3.04%)

$PCI
(<$20,885)

Y $18,823

Y

Match Reductions
Fiscal
Distress

Presidential
Disaster

100%

Procedure
When applicable, the City will execute a written agreement with the owner (or manager or developer if
the City is the owner) that imposes all of the requirements outlined above. The agreement must be
executed before an investment will count as match.
The City will maintain procedures to monitor continued compliance with the written agreement. The
term of compliance will be computed by applying the appropriate period of affordability based on the
amount of match investment per unit.
Match invested in HOME-eligible housing can be in in any form except:
•
•
•
•

(viii)

Waived taxes, fees or charges;
Infrastructure improvements;
Cost of supportive services; and
Costs of homebuyer counseling.

Program Income

Policy
Program income is received by the City generated from the use of HOME funds or matching
contributions. Program income includes, but is not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Proceeds from the sale or long-term lease of real property acquired, rehabilitated or
constructed with HOME funds or matching contributions;
Income from the use or rental of real property owned by the City or Sub-recipient that was
acquired, rehabilitated, or constructed with HOME funds or matching contributions, minus the
costs incidental to generating that income;
Payments of principal and interest on loans made with HOME or matching funds, and proceeds
from the sale of loans or obligations secured by loans made with HOME or matching
contributions;
Interest or other return on investment of HOME and matching funds;
Interest on program income;
Any other interest or return on the investment of HOME and matching funds.
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Not all income is considered program income. Some examples of items that are not considered program
income include:
•
•

Repaid loans guaranteed with HOME funds are not considered program income and are not
subject to HOME requirements
Recaptured HOME funds are the repayment of original HOME investments, and are technically
not program income.

Procedure
Refer to Program Income Section in Section 102, General Program Requirements, of this manual.

(ix)

CHDOs Certification and Capacity Review

Policy

HUD has established standard criteria for organizations to be eligible for CHDO certification per
24 CFR 92 Subpart G. 24 CFR 92.208 - Eligible community housing development organization
(CHDO) operating expenses and capacity building costs. 24 CFR 92.300 - Set-aside for community
housing development organizations. 24 CFR 92.301 - Project-specific assistance to community
housing development organizations.

1. Legal Requirements
a. Organized under State/Local Law: The nonprofit organization must show their Charter
of Articles of Incorporation as evidence of being organized under state and local law.
b. Purpose of Affordable Housing: Providing decent and affordable housing must be the
organization’s primary purpose. This is evidenced by the organization’s By-Laws,
Charter or Articles of Incorporation.
c. Benefit No Individual: No part of the CHDO’s profits may benefit any members,
founders, contributors, or individuals. This requirement must be evidenced in the
Articles of Incorporation.
d. Service Area: The organization must have a clearly defined geographic service area in its
Articles of Incorporation and/or By-Laws and a map of the service area must be attached
to the application.
e. IRS Nonprofit Status: Organizations must have a 501(c)(3) or (4) nonprofit status of
exemption letter of certification from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).
Additional Considerations
f.

Strategic Plan. CHDOs and CHDO aspirants are required to submit a comprehensive
strategic plan to DCED. In order to be a comprehensive plan, the document submitted
must address the following:
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•
•
•
•
•
•

The mission, goals, and vision of the organization
Whom you will serve
The organization’s role in the community
The programs, services, and products you offer
The resources needed to succeed
The best way to combine resources, programming and relationships to
accomplish the organization’s mission

2. Organizational Structure Requirements for CHDO Certifications
HUD has established organizational structure requirements for CHDOs to ensure that the governing
board is not controlled by influence from outside the community it serves. These requirements are also
designed to ensure that the CHDO is capable of independent decisions and actions designed to best
serve the community needs.
The requirements relating to the organization’s board must be evidenced in the Articles of Incorporation
or By-Laws.
a. Low Income Representation: At least one-third of the organization’s board must be
representatives of the low-income community the CHDO serves. To meet the one-third
minimum requirement, the organization’s board may consist of either:
•
•
•

Residents that live in the low-income community where 51 percent or more of the
residents are low-income. The persons need not be low-income;
Residents of the community who are qualified as low-income (below 80 percent of the
median income); or
Elected representatives of low-income neighborhood organizations.
The CHDO is required to certify the status of all low-income representatives and the
low-income Board representation should be included in the CHDO’s By-Laws, Charter or
Articles of Incorporation.

b. Public Sector Limitations: No more than one-third of the governing board members may be
representatives of the public sector. These include any elected officials, appointed public
officials (e.g. members of a planning commission or any other advisory board appointed by a
public official), public employees (e.g. police, fire, city employee, etc.), or anyone appointed by a
public official to serve on the CHDO board. The organization must submit for each board
member their job title, whether they are an elected official, whether they are an appointee to
any public boards or commissions, or whether a public official has appointed them to the board.
If a person qualifies as a low-income representative and a public sector representative, the role
of public sector representative supersedes their residency or income status. This person would
therefore count toward the one-third public sector limitation.
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Additional Considerations
c.
Board Stability. There should be stability/continuity of board members over the last
several years.
d. Development Oversight. The Board should have a committee structure or other means of
overseeing planning and development.
e. Board Skills. The Board members should have professional skills directly/indirectly
relevant to housing development. For example, real estate, legal, architectural, planning,
construction, finance and management experience are all professional skills that are relevant to
housing development.
f.
Decision-Making. The Board should demonstrate the ability to make timely decisions
using an appropriate process.
3. Low Income Advisory Process
The CHDO must provide a formal process for low-income program beneficiaries to advise the CHDO on
design, location of sites, development and management of affordable housing. This process must be
described in the CHDO’s By-Laws or Resolutions. Each project the CHDO undertakes should allow for the
potential program beneficiaries to provide input on the project from start to finish. This may be
accomplished by creating a project advisory committee for each project located in the areas the project
will serve. Proof of low-income beneficiary input will be required at the CHDO’s annual recertification.
4. For-Profit Sponsorship & Limitation
CHDOs may be sponsored by for-profits; however, the CHDO cannot be controlled by the for-profit and
must be free to contract for goods and services evidenced by CHDO’s By-Laws, Charter or Articles of
Incorporation. The primary purpose of the for-profit cannot be housing ownership/management as
evidenced by the for-profit’s Articles of Incorporation.
If a CHDO is sponsored by a for-profit, the for-profit may not appoint more than one-third of the board,
as evidenced by the CHDO’s By-Laws, Charter or Articles of Incorporation. Board members appointed by
the for-profit may not appoint the remaining two-thirds of the board members.
5. Experience and Capacity Requirements for CHDO Certification
Organizations must demonstrate sufficient experience, capacity and financial accountability to be
certified as a CHDO.
a. Capacity and Experience: Key staff and board members must have significant experience
and capacity to carry out CHDO eligible HOME-assisted projects in the community where it
intends to develop affordable housing. Resumes of key staff and board members will serve as
evidence of experience and capacity. Additionally, within the first year of operation, capacity can
also be demonstrated by contracts with consulting firms or individuals who have successfully
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completed projects similar to those to be assisted with CHDO funds. The consulting firms or
individuals must have written plans detailing the training of CHDO personnel.
b. Serving the Community: CHDOs must demonstrate a history of serving the community in
which the housing activities will take place. This can be demonstrated by providing:
•
•

A statement that documents one year of experience serving the community, or
A statement that a parent organization (if applicable) has at least one year experience
serving the community.

Additional Considerations:
c.
Needs. Current plans should be well grounded in an understanding of current housing
conditions; housing needs, and need for supportive services. The organization should have an
analysis of the local housing market and the housing needs of low-income households.
d. Relations. The organization should have a good reputation and a positive relationship
with the community it services.
e. Local Government Relations. The CHDO should have a positive relationship with the local
government(s) of the community(s) that it serves.
6. Financial Accountability Requirements for CHDO Certification
7. Financial Accountability: CHDOs must have financial accountability standards that conform to
the requirements detailed in 24 CFR 82.21, “Standards for Financial Management Systems”.
This can be evidenced by a notarized statement by a Certified Public Accountant or the Chief
Financial Officer of the CHDO to certify the organization’s financial system is in compliance with
financial accountability standards of 24 CFR 82.21.
8. Audit Requirements: Organizations having revenues in excess of $500,000 MUST submit an
audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, along with their most recently filed IRS Form
990.
Organizations having income less than $500,000 MUST submit the organization’s most recently
filed IRS Form 990, along with the items from either (i) or (ii):
9. A set of Basic Financial Statements, which MUST include the industry equivalent of a “Balance
Sheet”, “Statement of Cash Flows”, “Income Statement” and the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”. These must have been certified as official financials and evidenced by a copy of
the board minutes showing that they were presented and accepted as official financial
statements by the entity’s board or governing body.
OR
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10. A compiled set of Basic Financial Statements, along with a letter that the compilation was
performed in accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ industry
standards. The compilation must include the industry’s equivalent of the “Balance Sheet”,
“Statement of Cash Flows”, “Income Statement” and the “Notes to the Financial Statements”.
NOTE: Audit or Certified Financial Statements must be completed in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and prepared during the last fiscal year.
Procedure
Each CHDO shall complete the “Office for Community Development CHDO Recertification Form
annually. The Director or designee shall review the form for compliance in the areas of: Status,
Recertification, Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation, Standards for Financial Management, Audit
Reports, 990 Form, Board makeup, Board membership and Compliance Standards, and Staff
Profiles, Strategic and/or Annual Plans.
Re-certifications are due by April 1 of each year.

(b)

Cross Cutting Federal Requirements

Policy
The City of Anderson will administer all Federal programs in accordance with all cross cutting Federal
requirements.
Procedure
CDD staff shall utilize the CDBG Crosscutting Toolkit found at
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/34/cdbg-crosscutting-issues-toolkit-contents/ to guide
regulatory compliance and to provide training on issues facing entitlement grantees such as: financial
management, environmental review, labor standards, acquisition, relocation and fair housing.

(i)

Fair Housing and Civil Rights (including Section 504, ADA)

Policy
The City of Anderson shall adhere to all the basic tenets of the fair housing and equal opportunity
regulations. To demonstrate support ensuring these tenets, the city shall endorse in attitude and deed
all regulations for fairness in the provision of CDBG funded programs and projects.
Procedure

The City of Anderson Community Development Department (CDD) shall administer all
applicable laws related to fair housing; handicap accessibility; and equal opportunity to protect
individuals from discrimination in housing, employment, through business opportunities such as
contracting or through other benefits created by CDBG projects. The following chart includes all
applicable laws:
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Federal and State Laws and Regulations (including
amendments)
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964: This Act
provides that no person shall be excluded from
participation, denied program benefits, or subject to
discrimination based on race, color, and/or national
origin under any program or activity receiving Federal
financial assistance.
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (The Fair
Housing Act):
This Act prohibits discrimination in housing on the
basis of race, color, religion, sex and/or national
origin. This law also requires actions which
affirmatively promotes fair housing.
Restoration Act of 1987.
This Act restores the broad scope of coverage and
clarifies the application of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
It also specifies that an institution which receives
Federal financial assistance is prohibited from
discriminating on the basis of race, color, national
origin, religion, sex, disability, or age in a program or
activity which does not directly benefit from such
assistance.
Section 109 of Title 1 of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974:
The Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988:
This section of Title I provides that no person shall be
excluded from participation (including employment),
denied program benefits, or subject to discrimination
on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex
under any program or activity funded in whole or in
part under Title I of the Act.
The Housing for Older Persons Act of 1995 (HOPA):
Retained the requirement that the housing must
have one person who is 55 years of age or older living
in at least 80 percent of its occupied units. The Act
also retained the requirement that housing facilities
publish and follow policies and procedures that
demonstrate intent to be housing for persons 55 and
older.
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975: This Act
provides that no person shall be excluded from
participation, denied program benefits, or subject to
discrimination on the basis of age under any program
or activity receiving Federal funding assistance.
Effective January 1987, the age cap of 70 was deleted
from the laws.

Fair Housing and
Nondiscrimination

Accessibility

Equal
Employment
and
Contracting
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Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973:
It is unlawful to discriminate based on disability in
Federally assisted programs. This section provides
that no otherwise qualified individual shall, solely by
reason of his or her disability, be excluded from
participation (including employment), denied
program benefits, or subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity receiving Federal
funding assistance. Section 504 also contains design
and construction accessibility provisions for multifamily dwellings developed or substantially
rehabilitated for first occupancy on or after March
13, 1991.
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA):
This Act modifies and expands the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 to prohibit discrimination against “a qualified
individual with a disability” in employment and public
accommodations. The ADA requires that an
individual with a physical or mental impairment who
is otherwise qualified to perform the essential
functions of a job, with or without reasonable
accommodation, be afforded equal employment
opportunity in all phases of employment.
Executive Order 11063:
This Executive Order provides that no person shall be
discriminated against on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin in housing and related
facilities provided with Federal assistance and lending
practices with respect to residential property when
such practices are connected with loans insured or
guaranteed by the Federal government.

Executive Order 11259:
This Executive Order provides that the administration
of all Federal programs and activities relating to
housing and urban development be carried out in a
manner to further housing opportunities throughout
the United States.
Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974:
Requires that no person shall be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity funded with CDBG funds on the basis of race,
color, religion, national origin, or sex.
The Equal Employment Opportunity Act:
This Act empowers the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) to bring civil action
in Federal court against private sector employers
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after the EEOC has investigated the charge, found
“probable cause” of discrimination, and failed to
obtain a conciliation agreement acceptable to the
EEOC. It also brings Federal, State, and local
governments under the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
The Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA) of
1986.
Under IRCA, employers may hire only persons who
may legally work in the U.S., i.e., citizens and
nationals of the U.S. and aliens authorized to work in
the U.S. The employer must verify the identity and
employment eligibility of anyone to be hired, which
includes completing the Employment Eligibility
Verification Form (I-9).
The Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection
Procedures adopted by the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission in 1978: This manual
applies to employee selection procedures in the
areas of hiring, retention, promotion, transfer,
demotion, dismissal and referral. It is designed to
assist employers, labor organizations, employment
agencies, licensing and certification boards in
complying with the requirements of Federal laws
prohibiting discriminatory employment.
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development
Act of 1968, as amended: Requires the provision of
opportunities for training and employment that arise
through HUD-financed projects to lower-income
residents of the project area, to the greatest extent
feasible and consistent with Federal, State and local
laws and regulations. Also required is that contracts
be awarded to businesses that provide economic
opportunities for low- and very low-income persons
residing in the area. Amendments to Section 3 in
1992 included requirements for providing these
opportunities in contracts for housing rehabilitation,
including lead-based paint abatement, and other
construction contracts.
The Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Act of
1974 (revised Jobs for Veterans Act of 2002): This
Act was passed to ensure equal employment
opportunity for qualified disabled veterans and
veterans of the Vietnam War. Affirmative action is
required in the hiring and promotion of veterans.
Executive Order 11246: The Executive Order applies
to all
Federally assisted construction contracts and
subcontracts. It provides that no person shall be
discriminated against on the basis of race.
24 CFR Part 85 (the Common Rule):
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This rule provides that the grantee shall take
affirmative steps to encourage contracting with small
minority and female owned business enterprises
when possible as sources of supplies, equipment,
construction, and services.
The Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988: This Act
amended the original Fair Housing Act to provide for
the protection of families with children and people
with disabilities, strengthen punishment for acts of
housing discrimination, expand the role of the Justice
Department to bring suit on behalf of victims in
Federal district courts, and create an exemption to
the provisions barring discrimination on the basis of
familial status for those housing developments that
qualify as housing for persons age 55 or older.




Fair Housing Activities
Community Development and project Sub-recipients, as Sub-recipients of CDBG funds, are responsible
for taking necessary and appropriate actions to prevent discrimination in federally assisted housing and
lending practices related to loans insured or guaranteed by the Federal government.
Further, Sub-recipients should strive to promote a strategy for increasing the choice of housing
opportunities for low and moderate income persons including minorities and female-headed
households. Possible actions which project Sub-recipients, particularly municipalities or public agencies,
can take are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

review zoning, building, and housing codes and revise if necessary to
encourage equal opportunity in housing;
consider fair housing priorities when developing land use plans for public
facilities and housing;
develop or strengthen local fair housing laws, including enforcement powers
and sanctions;
require private developers and real estate agents to use HUD affirmative
marketing and advertising practices; and,
make available at public locations the City of Anderson "Fair Housing, It's The
Law" brochure.

2) Accessibility Requirements
Americans with Disabilities Act: The Americans with Disabilities Act provides comprehensive civil rights to
individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local
government services and telecommunications. The Act, also referred to as the ADA, also states that
discrimination includes the failure to design and construct (built for first occupancy after January 26, 1993)
that are accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. The ADA also requires the removal of
architectural and communication barriers that are structural in nature in existing facilities. Removal must
be readily achievable, easily accomplishable and able to be carried out without much difficulty or expense.
Page 81 of 241

This section outlines Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. Recipients cannot discriminate against an
otherwise qualified individual with disabilities, solely by reason of his or her disability, in participating in
any program or activity receiving federal funds. This section defines responsibilities in terms of physical
and program accessibility of the federal funded programs.
Recipients must include the accessibility logo on all client related brochures, applications and
correspondence.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
“No otherwise qualified individual with disabilities, shall, solely by reason of his or her disability, be
excluded from the participation in, or denied the benefits, or be subjecte of the units (but not less than
one unit) in such a project must be accessible for persons with hearing or vision impairments. d to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance from HUD.”
a) Accessibility Requirements
i) New Construction
5 or more units

15 or more units

Required minimum of 5% of the units or at least
one unit accessible for mobility impairments;
Minimum of 2% or at least one unit accessible
for hearing or vision impairments

Required minimum of 5% of the units or at least
one unit accessible for mobility impairments;
Minimum of 2% or at least one unit accessible
for hearing or vision impairments

ii)

Substantial Rehabilitation
5 or more units

15 or more units

Recommended minimum of 5% of the units or at
least one unit accessible for mobility
impairments; recommended minimum of 2% or
at least one unit accessible for hearing or vision
impairments

Required minimum of 5% of the units or at least
one unit accessible for mobility impairments;
Minimum of 2% or at least one unit accessible
for hearing or vision impairments

iii)

Rehabilitation
5 or more units

15 or more units

Recommended minimum of 5% of the units or at
least one unit accessible for mobility
impairments; recommended minimum of 2% or

Recommended minimum of 5% of the units or at
least one unit accessible for mobility
impairments; recommended minimum of 2% or
Page 82 of 241

at least one unit accessible for hearing or vision
impairments

at least one unit accessible for hearing or vision
impairments

Physical Accessibility
All new construction housing projects with five or more units or projects involving substantial
rehabilitation must be designed and constructed to be readily accessible to and usable by individuals
with disabilities.
A minimum of five percent or at least one of the units (whichever is greater) must be accessible for
persons with mobility impairments. A unit that is on an accessible route and is adaptable and otherwise
in compliance with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS) is accessible for purposes of this
section. An additional two percent
Substantial Rehabilitation is defined as having 15 or more units (in a project) and the cost of the
rehabilitation is greater than 75% of the replacement cost of the completed facility.
Distribution of accessible dwelling units.
Accessible dwelling units shall, to the maximum extent feasible and subject to reasonable health and
safety requirements, be distributed throughout projects and sites and shall be available in a sufficient
range of sizes and amenities so that a qualified individual with disabilities' choice of living arrangements
is, as a whole, comparable to that of other persons eligible for housing assistance under the same
program. This provision shall not be construed to require provision of an elevator in any multifamily
housing project solely for the purpose of permitting location of accessible units above or below the
accessible grade level.
Occupancy of accessible dwelling units.
Recipients with accessible units shall adopt suitable means to assure that information regarding the
availability of accessible units reaches eligible individuals with disabilities, and shall take reasonable
nondiscriminatory steps to maximize the utilization of such units by eligible individuals whose disability
requires the accessibility features of the particular unit. To this end, when an accessible unit becomes
vacant, the owner or manager before offering such units to a non-disabled applicant shall offer such
unit:
(1) First, to a current occupant of another unit of the same project, or comparable projects under
common control, having disabilities requiring the accessibility features of the vacant unit and
occupying a unit not having such features, or, if no such occupant exists, then
(2) Second, to an eligible qualified applicant on the waiting list having a disability requiring the
accessibility features of the vacant unit.
When offering an accessible unit to an applicant not having disabilities requiring the accessibility
features of the unit, the owner or manager may require the applicant to agree (and may incorporate this
agreement in the lease) to move to a non-accessible unit when available.
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(c)

CDBG ownership programs

Recipients are required to ensure that any newly constructed or rehabilitated housing units for purchase
i.e. single family (including semi-attached and attached) units receiving Federal financial assistance shall
be made accessible upon request of the prospective buyer if the nature of the disability of an expected
occupant so requires.
In such cases, the buyer shall consult with the seller or builder/sponsor regarding the specific design
features to be provided. If accessibility features selected at the option of the CDBG buyer are ones covered
by the standards prescribed by the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, those features shall comply
with the standards prescribed in the UFAS. The buyer shall be permitted to depart from particular
specifications of these standards in order to accommodate his or her specific disability.
The cost of making a facility accessible under this paragraph may be included in the mortgage amount
within the allowable mortgage limits, where applicable. To the extent such costs exceed allowable
mortgage limits, they may be passed on to the prospective CDBG buyer, subject to maximum sales price
limitations (see 24 CFR 235.320.)
24 CFR Part 8/Accessibility Standards for Design, Construction, and Alteration
This regulation deals with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS) for construction. The UFAS
outline specific requirements in terms of creating units accessible for people with disabilities. The UFAS
contain specs and guidance on access ramps, doorway widths, handles on doors, cabinets, sink heights,
etc.
These standards are used in new construction and substantial rehabilitation as defined under Physical
Accessibility above.
Copies of UFAS are available through HUD’s Publications Office. (800) 767-7468/ HUD’s TDD (hearing or
speech impaired) number is 202-708-0113.
Recipients also need to ensure that the space where clients apply for housing is accessible. COACDD staff
will review either the physical offices of the recipient, sub recipient and/or award administrator in order
to determine the accessibility of the offices.
Program Accessibility
In addition to physical accessibility, recipients are also required to have accessibility
programs. Recipients must ensure that people have access to apply for that program.
For example, if an applicant required an application in Braille or in a language other than English, the
recipient is required to make that accommodation.
Recipients must have a communication system in place for the hearing and speech impaired. Relay
Indiana is a free service that relays calls between a person using a text telephone (TTY/TTD) and users of
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the general telephone network in Indiana. If the need to use this service arises, recipients should call
Relay Indiana at 800-743-3333.
Section 504 Handicap Accessibility Policy: Section 504 was enacted as part of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973. It prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap in all programs and activities receiving federal
assistance and, in 1978, it was amended to apply to all programs conducted by the Federal Government.
This regulation provides that no qualified individual with handicaps shall, because a recipient's facilities
are inaccessible to or unusable by individuals with handicaps, be denied the benefits of, be
excluded from participation in, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
that receives federal financial assistance. COACDD will provide a TDD phone for the hearing impaired and
will provide sign interpreters for public meetings upon request for all federal funded program accessibility
program accessibility. All public meeting sites are handicap accessible and auxiliary aids are available for
those individuals requesting them.
Structures built or rehabilitated must be made handicapped accessible. Structures designed, built, or
altered (rehabilitated) with CDBG funds shall conform to the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards
(UFAS), which was published in the Federal Register on August 7, 1984 (49 CFR 13518). The UFAS technical
requirements meet or exceed comparable provisions of ANSI 117.1-1980 Specifications For Making
Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, and Useable by Physically Handicapped People.
3) Lead-Based Paint (applies to residential housing projects/programs)
The use of lead-based paint is prohibited. Recipients of federal funds must certify that no lead-based
paint will be used in residential units assisted with CDBG funds and must document that all occupants of
structures built before 1978 have been notified of the hazard of lead-based paint.
The Federal requirements pertaining to Lead-Based Paint are contained in 24 CFR Part 35. A fact sheet
containing information about current efforts to protect children from lead-based paint poisoning has been
prepared by the Environmental Protection Agency and HUD. A copy may be obtained from the City of
Anderson CDBG/CDBG Program.
A) Notification Requirements: Landlords renting units in structures built before 1978 must utilize the
pamphlet entitled “Protect Your Family from Lead in Your CDBG” to notify their tenants of the potential
hazards of lead-based paint (copies of this pamphlet are available from the City of Anderson
CDBG/CDBG Program). The same pamphlet must also be used to notify buyers of CDBGs built before
1978 of the hazards of lead-based paint. The landlord/seller must document that the tenant/buyer was
provided with the pamphlet.

Section 1.05
(a)

Davis Bacon Act

Labor Standards

Policy
The City of Anderson shall ensure that construction work that is financed in whole or in part with CDBG
funds must adhere to certain Federal labor standards requirements. In order to accomplish goal, the city
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has established procedures that must be followed when undertaking construction projects with CDBG
funds to ensure compliance with the labor laws and requirements
Procedure
Section 110; 40 USC, Chapter 3, Section 276a-276a-5; 29 CFR Part 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7; 40 USC, Chapter 3
Section 276c; 18 USC, Part 1, Chapter 41, Section 874; 29 CFR Part 3; 40 USC Chapter 5, Sections 326332; 29 CFR Part 4, 5, 6 and 8; 29 CFR Part 70 to 240
OVERVIEW OF THE LABOR STANDARDS REQUIREMENTS
Under the labor laws, the prime or general contractor is responsible for full compliance with applicable
requirements, including all employers/subcontractors on the project. The City of Anderson is responsible
for the administration and enforcement of the requirements to ensure compliance.
Before general labor laws and regulations are checked for compliance requirements, the first task that
the City must conduct is to ensure any contractor or subcontractor are not listed on the Federal
government’s Excluded Parties List prior to the execution of any contract. The website for checking
excluded parties is https://www.epls.gov/

LABOR LAWS AND REQUIREMENTS
The labor laws that may apply to CDBG-funded construction work include the following:






The Davis-Bacon Act (40 USC, Chapter 3, Section 276a-276a-5; and 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7)
is triggered when construction work over $2,000 is financed in whole or in part with CDBG
funds. It requires that workers receive no less than the prevailing wages being paid for similar
work in the same area. Davis-Bacon does not apply to the rehabilitation of residential structures
containing less than eight units or force account labor (construction carried out by employees of
the UGLG). HUD has concluded that new construction (as well as rehabilitation) of residential
property is exempt from Federal labor standards if the property contains less than 8 units. HUD
should be contacted if there is any situation where the applicability of Davis-Bacon is in
question; however, here are a few examples of 8+ unit properties:
o 5 townhouses side-by-side which consist of 2 units each.
o 3 apartment buildings each consisting of 5 units and located on one tract of land.
o 8 single-family (not homeowner) houses located on contiguous lots.
The Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (40 USC, Chapter 3, Section 276c and 18 USC, Part 1, Chapter
41, Section 874; and 29 CFR Part 3) requires that workers be paid weekly, that deductions from
workers’ pay be permissible, and that contractors maintain and submit weekly payrolls.
The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC, Chapter 5, Sections 326-332; and
29 CFR Part 4, 5, 6 and 8; 29 CFR Part 70 to 240) applies to contracts over $100,000 and requires
that workers receive overtime compensation (time and one-half pay) for hours they have

worked in excess of 40 hours in one week. Violations under this Act carry a liquidated
damages penalty ($10 per day per violation).
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Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended requires the
provision of opportunities for training and employment that arise through HUD-financed
projects to lower-income residents of the project area.
Also required is that contracts be awarded to businesses that provide economic opportunities
for low- and very low-income persons residing in the area.

BIDDING AND CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS
Once it is determined that a construction project is subject to Federal labor standards requirements,
certain steps must be taken to ensure compliance. Specifically, the City of Anderson shall include all
applicable labor standards language and the appropriate wage decision in construction bid and contract
documents.




Wage Rate Decisions:
o The Davis-Bacon wage decision that applies to a project contains a schedule of work/job
classifications and the minimum wage rates that must be paid to persons performing
particular jobs. Some wage decisions cover several counties and/or types of
construction work.
o The City of Anderson may access Federal wage rate decisions through the internet at
www.wdol.gov.
o Federal wage determinations are generally issued for four categories: Building,
Residential, Heavy, and Highway. It is important to understand the differences when
determining which rate category to request to avoid paying wages from an
inappropriate determination.
 Building construction generally includes construction of sheltered enclosures
with walk-in access for housing persons, machinery, equipment or supplies. This
includes all construction within and including the exterior walls, both above and
below grade.
 Residential projects involve the construction, alteration or repair of single-family
houses or apartment buildings no more than four stories tall.
 Heavy construction is generally considered for all construction not properly
classified as highway, residential, or building. Water and sewer line construction
will typically be categorized as heavy construction.
 Highway projects include construction, alteration or repair of roads.
o HUD should be consulted if there are questions about properly identifying the type of
wage determination and/or modifications.
o If a work classification that is needed for the project does not appear on the wage
decision that will be used, the City will request an additional classification and wage rate
from the state and HUD. Requests will be made in writing through the state and must
meet certain criteria to be approved. Requests which fail to meet HUD approval are
forwarded to DOL for final determination.
o Apprentices and trainees may be paid less than the journeyman's rate for their craft
only if registered in a program approved by the DOL or a state apprenticeship agency
recognized by DOL.
Labor Clauses and Wage Decisions in Bid and Contract Documents
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o

The labor clauses, which are contained in HUD-4010, and the applicable wage rate
decision (and any additional classifications), will be a physical part of the bid package.
The labor clauses obligate the contractor to comply with the Davis-Bacon wage and
reporting requirements and provide remedies and sanctions should violations occur.
 Ten days prior to bid opening, the city will check to see if the wage decision has
been modified. If so, the city will notify all potential bidders appropriately in
conformance with local procurement procedures.
 If a contract has been awarded but construction has not yet begun within 90
days of the award, the city will also determine if any modifications have been
issued to the wage decision. If so, the contractor must adhere to the modified
wage decision.

ENFORCEMENT OF REQUIREMENTS DURING CONSTRUCTION
During construction, the city is responsible for enforcing the labor standards requirements described in
this chapter. This includes good construction management techniques (e.g., pre-construction
conferences, issuance of notices to proceed and payments tied to compliance with the labor
requirements), in addition to payroll reviews and worker interviews.


Pre-construction Conference
o A City of Anderson employee acting as compliance officer shall do the following:
 Provide the contractor with a copy of the “Contractor's Guide to Prevailing
Wage Requirements for Federally-Assisted Construction Projects” if the
contractor has no prior experience with Davis Bacon Projects. This guide can be
downloaded from at: http://www.hud.gov/offices/olr/library.cfm.
 Explain that the contractor must submit weekly payrolls and Statements of
Compliance signed by an officer of the company, and that the prime contractor
is responsible for obtaining and reviewing payrolls and Statements of
Compliance from all subcontractors.
 Explain that wages paid must conform to those included in the wage rate
decision included in the contract. Discuss the classifications to be used. If
additional classifications are needed, contact HUD immediately.
 Explain that employee interviews will be conducted periodically during the
project.
 Emphasize that a copy of the wage rate decision must be posted at the job site.
 Explain that apprentice or trainee rates cannot be paid unless the apprentice or
training program is certified by the State Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training.
If apprentices or trainees are to be used, the contractor must provide the UGLG
with a copy of the State certification of his/her program.
 If the contract is $100,000 or greater, explain that workers must be paid
overtime if they work more than 40 hours in one week, and that failure to pay
workers at least time and a half whenever overtime violates the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards law. In addition to restitution, noncompliance with
this law makes the contractor liable for liquidated damages of $10 per day for
every day each worker exceeded 40 hours a week without being paid time and a
half.
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Notice to Proceed
o



Explain that no payroll deductions can be made that are not specifically listed in
the Copeland Anti-kickback Act provisions unless the contractor has obtained
written notarized permission from the employee. Unspecified payroll
deductions are a serious discrepancy and must be resolved prior to further
contractor payments.
Provide contractor with posters for the job site, such as the “Notice to All
Employees Working on Federal or Federally Financed Construction Projects.”
These posters and others that are required are available at:
http://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/posters/fedprojc.pdf.
The City will also describe the compliance monitoring that will be conducted
during the project, and indicate that discrepancies and underpayments
discovered as a result of compliance monitoring must be resolved prior to
making further payment to the contractor.
The City will remind the contractor that labor standards provisions are as legally
binding as the technical specifications, and failure to pay specified wages will
result in contractor payments being withheld until all such discrepancies are
resolved and potentially restitution, liquidated damages and/or
recommendation for debarment.

Following execution of the contract documents and completion of the pre-construction
conference, it is typical practice to issue a Notice to Proceed to the prime/general
contractor to begin performance of the work.
 The Notice to Proceed establishes the construction start date and the scheduled
completion date, and provides the basis for assessing liquidated damages.
 The construction period and basis for assessing liquidated damages must be
consistent with those sections of the contract documents.

Payroll Review
o

o

o

o

Once construction is underway, the prime/general contractor should complete a
weekly payroll report for its employees on the covered job and sign the Statement of
Compliance. The prime/general contractor must also obtain weekly payrolls (including
signed Statements of Compliance) from all subcontractors as they work on the project.
Certified payroll reports should be submitted by the prime/general contractor to the
city within a reasonable timeframe so as to ensure compliance, typically no more than
10 working days following the end of the payroll period.
The HUD payroll form (WH-347) does not have to be used, but alternative payroll
documentation must include all of the same elements in order to determine
compliance with applicable regulations. The Statement of Compliance must be
completed and signed by an authorized representative of the company and submitted
in conjunction with the payroll form (or alternate equivalent payroll documentation).
The payrolls should be reviewed by the general contractor to ensure that there are no
discrepancies or underpayments. Remember that the prime contractor is responsible
for the full compliance of all subcontractors on the project and will be held accountable
for any wage restitution that may be necessary. This includes restitution for
underpayments and, potentially, liquidated damages that may be assessed for
overtime violations.
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The City will review a payroll to ensure that workers are being paid no less than the
prevailing Davis-Bacon wages and that there are no other falsifications.
o In addition to the falsification indicators described in the HUD guidance, items to be
spot- checked should include:
 The correct classification of workers;
 A comparison between the classification and the wage determination to
determine whether the rate of pay is at least equal to the rate required by the
determination;
 A review to ensure that work by an employee in excess of 40 hours per week is
being compensated for at rates not less than one and one-half times the basic
rate of pay;
 Review of deductions for any non-permissible deductions; and
 The Statement of Compliance has been signed by the owner or an officer of the
firm.
o Any discrepancies and/or falsification indicators must be reported to the state and
HUD, along with the steps being taken by the City to resolve the discrepancies. Where
underpayments of wages have occurred, the City will ensure the correct wages are paid
and that the employer will be required to pay wage restitution to the affected
employees. Wage restitution must be paid promptly in the full amounts due, less
permissible and authorized deductions. The City of Anderson will contact HUD for
assistance if a violation occurs.
On-Site Interviews
o The labor standards requirements include periodically conducting job site interviews
with workers. The purpose of the interviews is to capture observations of the work
being performed and to get direct information from the laborers and mechanics on the
job as to the hours they work, the type of work they perform and the wage they
receive.
o The City shall conduct Interviews throughout the course of the construction and
include a sufficient sample of job classifications represented on the job as well as
workers from various companies to allow for a reasonable judgment as to compliance.
o Information gathered during an interview is recorded on the Record of Employee
Interview form (HUD-11).
o The interview will take place on the job site and conducted privately (this is a one-onone process).
 The interviewer should observe the duties of workers before initiating
interviews. Employees of both the prime contractor and subcontractors should
be interviewed.
 To initiate the interview, the authorized person shall:
• Properly identify himself/herself;
• Clearly state the purpose of interview; and
• Advise the worker that information given is confidential, and his/her
identity will be disclosed to the employer only with the employee's
written permission.
• When conducting employee interviews, the interviewer should pay
particular attention to:
o The employee's full name;
o
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The employee's permanent mailing address;
The last date the employee worked on that project and number
of hours worked on that day. The City interviewer will make it
clear that these questions relate solely to work on the project
and no other work.
o Basically CDBG for States (April 2012) 12-7
o HUD, Office of Block Grant Assistance
o The employee's hourly rate of pay. The aim is to determine if
the worker is being paid at least the minimum required by the
wage decision.
 The interviewer should be sure the worker is not
quoting their net hourly rate or "take-home" pay.
 If it appears the individual may be underpaid, the
interviewer should closely question the worker:
• Ask for any records.
• Arrange to re-interview the employee.
o Enter the worker's statement of his/her classification.
o Observe duties and tools used:
 If worker's statements and observations made by the
interviewer indicate the individual is performing duties
conforming to classification, indicate this on the Record
of Employee Interview form.
 If there are discrepancies, detailed statements are
necessary.
o Enter any comments necessary.
o Enter date interview took place.
o The HUD-11s must be compared to the corresponding contractor and subcontractor
payroll information.
 If no discrepancies appear, "None" should be written in the comment space of
the Record of Employee Interview form and it should be signed by the
appropriate person.
 If discrepancies do appear, appropriate action should be initiated. When
necessary action has been completed, the results must be noted on the
interview form.
o If there are wage complaints, the interviewer should complete the Federal Labor
Standards Complaint Intake Form (HUD Form 4731). The complaint must be
investigated and resolved. Contact HUD if necessary.
Progress Payments
o Upon receipt of requests for payment during construction, the City of Anderson will
check that labor standards compliance is being met.
 All weekly payrolls and Statements of Compliance have been received, reviewed
and any discrepancies resolved; and
 Employee interviews have been conducted as necessary, checked against
payrolls and the wage rate decisions, and all discrepancies corrected.
o The City of Anderson will maintain 10 percent retainage from partial payments until
after final inspection, in case of any unresolved problems.
o
o
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Final Payment
o When construction work has been completed, the contractor will submit a final request
for payment. Before making final payment, the city will ensure that:
 All weekly payrolls and Statements of Compliance have been received and any
discrepancies have been resolved;
 All discrepancies identified through job site interviews have been resolved; and
 All files are complete

RESTITUTION FOR UNDERPAYMENT OF WAGES














Where underpayments of wages have occurred, the city shall require the employer will be
required to pay wage restitution to the affected employees. Wage restitution must be paid
promptly in the full amounts due, less permissible and authorized deductions
Wage restitution is simply the difference between the wage rate paid to each affected employee
and the wage rate required on the wage decision for all hours worked where underpayments
occurred. The difference in the wage rates is called the adjustment rate. The adjustment rate
times the number of hours involved equals the gross amount of restitution due.
The city shall notify the prime contractor in writing of any underpayments that are found during
payroll or other reviews. The notification should describe the underpayments and provide
instructions for computing and documenting the restitution to be paid. The prime contractor is
allowed 30 days to correct the underpayments.
The city shall require the employer to report the restitution paid on a correction certified
payroll. The correction payroll will reflect the period of time for which restitution is due (e.g.,
payrolls #1 through #6; or a beginning date and ending date). The correction payroll must list:
o Each employee to whom restitution is due and their work classification; – The total
number of work hours;
o The adjustment wage rate (the difference between the required wage rate and the
wage rate paid);
o The gross amount of restitution due;
o Deductions; and
o The net amount to be paid.
A signed Statement of Compliance must be attached to the corrected payroll form and each
employee who has received restitution should sign the corrected payroll as evidence of their
receipt of the payments.
The City will should review the correction payroll to ensure that full restitution was paid. The
prime contractor shall be notified in writing of any discrepancies and will be required to make
additional payments, if needed. Additional payments must be documented on a supplemental
correction payroll within 30 days.
Sometimes, wage restitution cannot be paid to an affected employee because, for example, the
employee has moved and can't be located. In these cases, at the end of the project the prime
contractor will be required to place in a deposit or escrow account an amount equal to the total
amount of restitution that could not be paid because the employee(s) could not be located. The
City will continue to attempt to locate the unfound workers for three years after the completion
of the project. After three years, any amount remaining in the account for unfound workers
should be forwarded to HUD. Additional information is available from HUD on disputes,
withholding, deposits and escrow accounts including in the publication
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“Making Davis-Bacon Work: A Contractor’s Guide to Prevailing Wage Requirements for
Federally-Assisted Construction Projects.”

DOCUMENTATION & REPORTING REQUIREMENTS




Documentation
o The City of Anderson shall maintain documentation to demonstrate compliance with the
labor standards requirements including, but not limited to:
 Bid and contract documents with the labor standards clause and wage decision;
 Payroll forms from the contractor and subcontractors, including signed
statements of compliance;
 Documentation of on-site job interviews and review of the corresponding
payroll to detect any discrepancies;
 Documentation of investigations and resolutions to issues that may have arisen
(e.g., payments to workers for underpayments of wages or overtime); and
 Enforcement reports (see below for more information).
o The labor standards compliance documents contain highly sensitive and confidential
information. With the growing rise in identity theft and fraud, the city shall carefully
guard this sensitive information so that the person(s) for whom the information has
been collected are not unduly exposed to financial or personal risk.
o The standard compliance documents must be preserved and retained for a period of five
years following the completion of work. Therefore, the city shall follow guidelines
outlined in the Labor Relations Letter 2006-02 to minimize risk of improper and/or
unnecessary disclosure, including:
 Keeping sensitive materials secret at all times (in locked file cabinet, not left in
areas accessible to the public);
 The city will not include Social Security Numbers on documents and records
unless it is absolutely necessary;
 The city will not disclose the identity of any informant unless it is necessary and
only if authorized by the informant; and
 The city will dispose of documents and records containing sensitive information
responsibly.

Reporting
o

o

The City of Anderson shall report to the Department of Labor on all covered contracts
awarded and on all enforcement actions taken each six months. HUD collects the
reports from its client agencies and compiles a comprehensive report to DOL covering
all of the Davis-Bacon construction activity.
The Semi-Annual Report form (HUD-4710) and instructions (HUD-4710i) are available on
HUD’s web site and HUDClips (http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/) or on the
website, CDBG – Toolkit on Crosscutting Issues.

Procedure

PROJECT SET-UP: Infrastructure and Public Facilities and Improvements
•

Projects are selected by designating targeted areas indicated in Annual Action Plan
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•

•

•

Once site is selected, designated CD personnel shall contact the City Engineer’s Office to submit
project for cost estimates and design work. If project is within budget, the City Engineer’s
Office, along with CD staff will do an initial walkthrough of the selected area.
City Engineering will assess project area and provide preliminary estimates to CD before
commencing further work. If work is to move forward, it is the responsibility of the CD staff to
prepare quote/bid documents. Samples of each packet are available electronically in the
directory of the CD office
BIDS VS. QUOTES: If the project estimates to bid below $150,000, quotes can be obtained. If the
project estimates to bid above $150,000, a formal bidding process must take place.

Quote/Bid Process:
•
•

•

•
•

•

•

Once plans are underway, CD personnel must request, in writing, to the Board of Works a date
to receive quotes/bids.
Upon BOW approval, a legal notice containing; date and time of quote opening, pre-quote
conference and Federal Requirements, must be submitted to local newspaper, 5 days before
desired run date and needs to appear 7 days prior to quote opening. If project is over $150,000,
a legal notice shall be published two (2) times within a 14 day period and bids must be
accompanied by; Bid form 96, a bid bond equal to 10% of the bid amount and a non-collusion
affidavit.
CD staff shall make available the quote/bid documents in the CD office and state times and days
contractors can pick up materials. All packets must be accompanied by a sign in sheet. In
addition, quote/bid documents shall be placed on the CD department’s webpage.
Pre-quote/bid conference shall consist of an agenda, explanation of Federal Requirements,
project quote/bid dates and walkthrough with the contractors and City Engineering.
Quotes/Bids must be submitted to Board of Public Works no later than the time of start of the
meeting. Quotes/Bids received after that time will be returned unopened. CD staff shall explain
that no quote or bid is to be submitted to CD office or any staff of that office. No discussion of
quote/bid amounts shall take place between contractor and CD staff.
Once quotes/bids are opened and read aloud, CD staff shall ask BOW to allow time to take
quotes/bids under advisement, along with City Engineering and return with an award letter and
contract.
CD staff will notify contractor of their quote/bid acceptance by letter and advise them to submit
required federal documents, insurance certificates, performance bonds and other applicable
documents as outlined in quote/bid packages. CD staff shall also advise of a mandatory preconstruction conference that will take place prior to receiving notice to proceed and before
work can commence.
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Section 1.06
(a)

Environmental Review

Grant Management

Policy
24 CFR Part 50, 24 CFR Part 58, 24 CFR Part 51, 24 CFR Part 55, 24 CFR Part 35, 24 CFR Part 570, 36 CFR
Part 800, 40 CFR Part 1500-1508
The City of Anderson shall not obligate CDBG or HOME funds or expend funds from any source, private
or otherwise, for use in a CDBG/HOME-assisted project; no new construction, excavation, demolition,
rehabilitation, repair, modification, or property acquisition, including all types of easements, can
commence, nor commitment made to undertake such activities, until the environmental review is
complete and a formal release of funds/environmental approval has been issued.
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES


Responsible Entity (RE) - The City of Anderson shall be the Responsible Entity (RE) who assumes
responsibility for the environment review, environmental decision-making, and all
environmental actions.
o The city shall have the technical capacity and administrative capability to conduct
environmental review. The city will have environmental expertise, either in-house or
through consultants, and ensure thorough record keeping and compliance with Part 58
processes.
o The city staff will to have sufficient knowledge of the Federal laws and authorities, as
well as an understanding of Part 58 requirements in order to make informed decisions
about whether:
 The appropriate level of review has been completed;
 Compliance with Federal laws and authorities has been achieved;
 The public notification requirements have been met (if required); and
 When HUD approval is necessary.
o The city staff will have sufficient knowledge about the Part 58 procedures to understand
when funds may be committed and spent, the time periods for the public notification
and release of funds process, and the minimum content of the ERR.
o The city will be responsible for ensuring that any environmental conditions or
safeguards resulting from completion and approval of the environmental review
document are implemented.
 If necessary, the city will develop an implementation/monitoring plan to ensure
conditions that were identified as necessary for protecting and enhancing
environmental quality or minimizing adverse environmental impacts are
included in agreements or other relevant documents, and implemented during
completion of the project.
o The city will re-evaluate its environmental findings and decision if:
 Substantial changes in the nature, magnitude, or extent of the project are
proposed by the project proponent (e.g., new activities not anticipated in the
original project scope);
 New circumstances and environmental conditions arise that were not previously
considered or evaluated for effect (e. g, conditions discovered during
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implementation of the project, such as archeological resources, asbestos
containing materials, endangered species, underground storage tanks, dry wells,
etc.); or
 The project proponent proposes selection of an alternative not previously
considered.
o Upon re-evaluating its original findings and conclusions:
 The city will decide whether or not its original determination is still valid, or that
a new environmental review document must be prepared instead.
 If the original findings are still valid, document this in the ERR in writing.
Certifying Officer (CO) - For purposes of compliance with NEPA and Part 58, the chief executive
officer of the City of Anderson, or its formal designee, is the Certifying Officer (CO) (§ 288 of the
Act). The certifying officer is recognized as the “responsible Federal official under NEPA” (§
58.13, 40 CFR 1508.12) and, therefore, the decision-maker concerning whether a project is
approved or rejected on the basis of the environmental review findings.
o This is a Federal legal responsibility. As such, if someone other than the chief executive
officer for the city is designated to fulfill this role, HUD requires there be a formal
designation by the governing body identifying this officer.
o The CO represents the city in Federal court if there is legal challenge to the content of
the environmental review record and the city’s decision based upon that record [§
58.13(a)]. The CO is also the only person with the legal authority to sign the Request for
Release of Funds and Certification (HUD form 7015.15).
o The CO ensures that the city reviews and comments on all EIS documents prepared for
Federal projects that may have an impact on the CDBG grantee or HOME
PJ’s/Consortium member’s program [§ 58.13(b)];
o The CO makes health and safety decisions related to whether or not to approve
residential construction projects that are exposed to high levels or noise from major
roadways, railroads, and/or military or civilian airports [HUD regulation on Noise
Abatement and Control, 24 CFR 51.104(a)(2) and (b)(2)]; and
o The CO makes health and safety decisions related to the construction, rehabilitation, or
conversion of buildings exposed to blast overpressure or thermal radiation from aboveground storage tanks within line-of-site of the project (HUD regulation on the placement
of HUD-assisted projects in the vicinity of explosive or flammable operations, 24 CFR
51.206).
Environmental Review Record (ERR) - The city will ensure that activities or projects that are
funded by CDBG/HOME assistance, in total or in part, are in compliance with NEPA and Part 58
requirements. This means creating a written environmental review record (ERR) for every
activity and project regardless of the level of review (§ 58.38).
o The ERR is a type of “environmental diary” that the city uses to substantiate its decisions
and conclusions concerning protection and enhancement of the environment as a result
of approving the project. Keeping good records and having complete documentation is
necessary to fulfill the RE’s environmental review obligations.
o The ERR shall:
 Describe all activities that are part of the project
 Evaluate effects of project on human environment
 Document compliance with applicable authorities,
 Perform the environmental review particularly 58.5 and 58.6.
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Record determinations and findings.
Contain verifiable source documents and relevant base data
• Maps (including the location of the project)
• Letters of correspondence, approvals or required permits
• Record of performing the environmental review
• 8-step process for floodplain and wetland management (If required)
• Phase I and Phase II ESA reports (If required)
• Pictures of the site and future renderings

Procedure

BASIC GUIDELINES


In the preparation of an environmental assessment the environmental analyst should bear in mind
the following guidelines:
o Consider environmental issues as early as possible.
o Group related projects for environmental review so that cumulative impacts can be
considered and repetitious paperwork avoided.
o Maintain good records of documentation.
o Use the most relevant and recent sources of information people, reports, and past
environmental reviews. Verify the utility of prior work, but avoid duplicate efforts.
o Make phone calls freely - there may be individuals spending full time collecting just the
information needed, and time spent locating these people is well rewarded.
o Schedule staff time to develop and enforce effective environmental safeguards and
mitigation measures. Avoiding adverse effects; enhancing the quality of the
environment is what the review process is all about.
o Check carefully for compliance with the NEPA procedures contained in 24 CFR Part 58
and with the other statutes and regulations for all CDBG/HOME projects. Remember
that the project should also conform to other Federal, State and local laws. Inattention
to these requirements could cause delays and reflect poorly on the recipient's
CDBG/HOME performance.

LIMITATIONS PENDING ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE




Once a project participant (i.e., subrecipients, CHDO’s, developers, owners, sponsors of housing,
and third party contractors) has submitted an application for HOME or CDBG funds to the
County, or the City has designated funds for a specific project in its Consolidated Plan or annual
action plan, Part 58 requirements are applicable to the project:
o The City will advise the participant to cease all project activity until the environmental
review (ER) has been completed. Part 58 prohibits further project activities and actions
from being undertaken prior to completion of the ER and the determination of
environmental clearance.
o Projects in violation of this prohibition risk the denial of CDBG/HOME funds.
Once the city contemplates assisting a project or activity with HUD funds, (§ 58.32), neither HUD
funds nor non-HUD funds may be committed (§ 58.22) until compliance with Part 58 has been
achieved and documented.
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AGGREGATION OF PROJECT ACTIVITIES


To determine the appropriate level of environmental review for a project, the city will group
together (aggregate) all related project activities, whether or not the project is funded entirely
by CDBG or HOME funds, or only certain portions of the project will be funded by CDBG/HOME
funds. An environmental review must evaluate all activities that are geographically or
functionally related, or part of a multi-year project. The appropriate level of environmental
review for an aggregated project will be determined by whichever activity or activities being
undertaken by the RE or its partners will have the greatest environmental impact. There are
three types of project aggregation:
o “Functionally related” describes a specific type of activity that will be undertaken in
several locales or jurisdictions. The environmental impacts will be the same or similar no
matter where the project is located. For example, rehabilitation of single family units, or
tenant-based rental assistance programs are functionally related.
o “Geographically related” project activities, for example, might include a proposal to
acquire four units for rehabilitation and resale to first time homebuyers. All the related
activities are occurring on a single site. In aggregation, all these activities must be
evaluated in a single review, regardless of the fact that HOME funds may only be used
for rehabilitation. One activity cannot occur without the others, and therefore all the
associated environmental impacts must be evaluated together. The environmental
review for the acquisition of the properties cannot be separated from the
environmental review for the rehabilitation of the properties.
o “Multi-year aggregation” is a process that addresses phased project activities. For
instance, consider a three-year project, during which, real property will be acquired in
the first year, infrastructure improvements will be installed in years two and three,
along with several phases of affordable housing construction. Again, a single
environmental review must be completed for all phases of the project before any of the
activities may be undertaken. Only one request for release of funds (covering all project
phases) needs to be submitted to HUD for approval. After HUD approval is received, no
other approval or environmental action is required, unless circumstances arise that
require the County to re-evaluate its original environmental findings.

OVERVIEW OF LEVELS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The environmental review requirements are divided on the basis of the level of impact that a proposed
project might be anticipated to have were the RE to go through with funding approval. There are four (4)
levels of environmental review identified in Part 58. The criteria for these levels span the range of
possible impacts, from none whatsoever to significant physical impact.


Exempt Activities have no physical impact or result in no physical change on the environment.
Other than documenting the level of review as Exempt, the RE does not have to comply with
actions under NEPA and other provisions of laws or authorities cited in §58.5. Funds from any
source may be used for Exempt activities once the Finding of Exemption form is completed. The
following activities are Exempt under §58.34:
o Environmental and other studies, resource identification and development of plans and
strategies;
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Information and financial services;
Administrative and management activities;
Public services that will not have a physical impact or result in any physical changes,
including but not limited to services concerned with employment, crime prevention,
child care, health, drug abuse, education, counseling, energy conservation and welfare
or recreational needs;
o Inspections and testing of properties for hazards or defects;
o Purchase of insurance;
o Purchase of tools;
o Engineering or design costs;
o Technical assistance and training;
o Assistance for temporary or permanent improvements that do not alter environmental
conditions and are limited to protection, repair, or restoration activities necessary only
to control or arrest the effects from disasters or imminent threats to public safety
including those resulting from physical deterioration;
o Payment of principal and interest on loans made or obligations guaranteed by HUD;
o Any of the categorical exclusions listed in §58.35(a) provided there are no circumstances
which require compliance with any other Federal laws and authorities cited in §58.5 1.
Categorically Excluded Activity are those excluded from NEPA requirements, but may be subject
to review under other Federal laws and authorities listed in 24 CFR 58.5. There are two
classifications of Categorically Excluded activities; those listed under §58.35 (a) and those listed
under §58.35(b).
o Categorical Exclusions Not Subject to § 58.5 (CENST):
 Tenant-based rental assistance;
 Supportive services including, but not limited to, health care, housing services,
permanent housing placement, day care, nutritional services, short-term
payments for rent/mortgage/utility costs, and assistance in gaining access to
local, State, and Federal government benefits and services;
 Operating costs including maintenance, security, operation, utilities, furnishings,
equipment, supplies, staff training and recruitment and other incidental costs;
 Economic development activities, including but not limited to, equipment
purchase, inventory financing, interest subsidy, operating expenses and similar
costs not associated with construction or expansion of existing operations;
 Activities to assist homebuyers to purchase existing dwelling units or dwelling
units under construction, including closing costs and down payment assistance,
interest buy-downs, and similar activities that result in the transfer of title.
 Affordable housing pre-development costs including legal, consulting, developer
and other costs related to obtaining site options, project financing,
administrative costs and fees for loan commitments, zoning approvals, and
other related activities which do not have a physical impact.
o
o
o



58.5 - The “Statutory Checklist”• Clean Air Act • Coastal Zone Management Act • Contamination and Toxic
substances • Endangered Species Act • E.O. 12898 on Environmental Justice Perform the environmental review
• Explosive and Flammable Hazards • Farmlands Protection Policy Act • E.O. 11988 on Floodplain Management
• National Historic Preservation Act • Noise Abatement Regulation • Sole Source Aquifers • E. O. 11990 on Wetlands
• Wild and Scenic Rivers Act

1
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Approval of supplemental assistance (including insurance or guarantee) to a
project previously approved under this part, if the approval is made by the same
responsible entity that conducted the environmental review on the original
project and re-evaluation of the environmental findings is not required under
§58.47.
Categorical Exclusions Subject to § 58.5 2 (CEST):
 Acquisition, repair, improvement, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of public
facilities and improvements (other than buildings) when the facilities and
improvements are in place and will be retained in the same use without change
in size or capacity of more than 20 percent (e.g., replacement of water or sewer
lines, reconstruction of curbs and sidewalks, repaving of streets).
 Special projects directed to the removal of material and architectural barriers
that restrict the mobility of and accessibility to elderly and handicapped
persons.
 Rehabilitation of buildings and improvements when the following conditions are
met:
• In the case of a building for residential use (with one to four units), the
density is not increased beyond four units, the land use is not changed,
and the footprint of the building is not increased in a floodplain or in a
wetland;
• In the case of multifamily residential buildings:
o Unit density is not changed more than 20 percent;
o The project does not involve changes in land use from
residential to non-residential; and
o The estimated cost of rehabilitation is less than 75 percent of
the total estimated cost of replacement after rehabilitation.
• In the case of non-residential structures, including commercial,
industrial and public buildings:
o The facilities and improvements are in place and will not be
changed in size or capacity by more than 20 percent; and
o The activity does not involve a change in land use, such as from
non-residential to residential, commercial to industrial, or from
one industrial use to another.
 Individual Action
• An individual action on up to four dwelling units where there is a
maximum of four units on any one site. The units can be four oneunit buildings or one four-unit building or combination in between; or


o

Converting to Exempt – Only those projects determined Categorically Excluded Subject To review of laws and
authorities at 58.5 (CEST) may be converted to Exempt. A Statutory Checklist is completed first to review any project
impacts. In order to convert, the Statutory Checklist review must result in no adverse effects on protected resources,
with no mitigation needed, no permitting or agreements required, etc. The project cannot occur in a floodplain or
wetland, and the Section 106 Review for assessing Historic Properties must result in a “No Historic Properties
Affected” determination by the SHPO. Projects requiring the use of Tiering cannot be converted to Exempt. No
publications, comment periods, and Request for Release of Funds process would be required.

2
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An individual action on a project of five or more housing units
developed on scattered sites when the sites are more than 2,000 feet
apart and there are not more than four housing units on any one site.
• The first two points of this section do not apply to rehabilitation of a
building for residential use (with one to four units.
 Acquisition (including leasing) or disposition of, or equity loans on an existing
structure, or acquisition (including leasing) of vacant land provided that the
structure or land acquired, financed, or disposed of will be retained for the
same use.
 Combinations of the above activities.
Environmental Assessment (EA) is conducted if a project is not Exempt or Categorically
Excluded.
o The purpose of the EA is to determine the significance of environmental effects of a
project and to assess alternative means to achieve an city’s objectives. Does the project:
 Pose threats to health or safety, or
 Has regional rather than local impact, or
 Has long-term rather than short-term impacts, or
 Has an impact on unique resources?
o Once actual and potential impacts of each project alternative are identified, the RE must
then assess if mitigation measures are needed to undertake the project. It is at this
point the city is capable of determining if the project is generally feasible, with the
ability to identify the most suitable project alternative to meet the needs of the city and
its beneficiaries.
o If significant impacts are anticipated with no reasonable means of mitigation apparent,
the city may reject the project or complete an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). In
all circumstances, the completed EA must provide sufficient evidence and analysis for
determining whether to prepare an EIS.
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is the highest level of review typically required after
completion of an EA where the project is determined to have potentially significant impacts on
the environment. Pursuant to 40 CFR 1508.27, “Significant” as used in NEPA requires
consideration of both context 3 and intensity 4 for measuring the severity of impacts.
o An EIS is normally required for the following circumstances [58.37(b)(1),(2), & (3)]:
•





Context is the significance of an action relative to its setting. An impact can be of local, regional, and/or global
importance. For example, if an action is occurring on a specific site, the significance of the impact would likely be
greater on a local level rather than world-wide. Short-term and long-term impacts are relevant when assessing the
context of an action.
4
Intensity is the severity of an impact. Whether an impact is adverse or beneficial, significant effects may exist. When
evaluating the intensity of an action, the following should be evaluated:
•
degree of threat to health and safety;
•
impacts to unique characteristics - local resources, historic resources/properties,
•
endangered species, rivers, etc.;
•
whether a project or actions are highly controversial or have the ability to establish a precedent for future
actions with significant effects; significant cumulative, long-term impacts of actions;
•
Whether actions could violate Federal, State, or local laws specific to protecting the environment.
3
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Project would provide a site or sites for, or result in the construction of,
hospitals or nursing homes containing a total of 2,500 or more beds
 Project would remove, demolish, convert, or substantially rehab 2,500 or more
housing units, or would result in the construction or installation of 2,500 or
more housing units, or would provide sites for 2,500 or more housing units
 Project would provide enough additional water and sewer capacity to support
2,500 or more housing units.
• A project does not have to be intended specifically for residential use
nor does it have to be totally new construction.
• If the project is designed to provide upgraded service to existing
development as well as to serve new development, only that portion of
the increased capacity which is intended to serve new development
should be counted.
A project causing significant impacts to a small rural community may not pose the same
of level of significance to a large urban community. Context and intensity are keys in
evaluating the significance of impacts.


o

HUD ESTIMATED TIMEFRAMES FOR COMPLETING ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW LEVELS


HUD has estimated the amount of time it will take the EP to complete the environmental
process at each level of environmental review in Part 58.
o Exemptions – An hour or less to complete. It requires a project description and simple
written determination.
o Categorical exclusions not subject to § 58.5 (CENST) – An hour or less to complete. It
requires a project description and simple written determination.
o Categorical exclusions subject to § 58.5 (CEST) – Takes 45 to 75 days to complete. Some
of the Federal laws and authorities trigger consultation with other Federal agencies. This
estimate also factors in that some projects will require public notification and approval
from HUD or the state (in the case of state recipients.
o Environmental Assessment (EA) – Takes 75 to 110 days to complete. This estimate takes
into account more environmental issues to be addressed, and a longer public comment
period that is required.
o Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) – Takes 1-1/2 to 2 years to complete. This level of
review requires intensive study and evaluation of the environmental impacts. It also
requires public hearings and multiple public notices (including three that must appear in
the Federal Register).

The City will solicit as much assistance or information as possible from the applicant to facilitate the
environmental review process. The City should determine whether there is any other assistance being
provided from HUD or other agencies (Federal, state, or local). If so, the City may utilize another
agency’s review to facilitate its environmental review. Or, if this information is timely, the City may be
able to coordinate the Part 58 review with the other agencies review process.
Environmental Review Web Sites
FEMA
https://msc.fema.gov/portal
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Environmental Justice (EJ)
https://ejscreen.epa.gov/mapper/index.html?wherestr=anderson%2C+indiana
Wetland Mapper
https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html
EnviroMapper
https://www.epa.gov/emefdata/em4ef.home
Day/Night Noise Level Calculator
https://www.hudexchange.info/environmental-review/dnl-calculator/
NEPA Assist
https://www.epa.gov/nepa/nepassist
National Wild & Scenic Rivers
https://www.rivers.gov/
American Fact Finder
https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml?_ts=440069990118
National Priorities List (NPL)
https://www.epa.gov/superfund/superfund-national-priorities-list-npl
Endangered Species
https://www.fws.gov/endangered/
EJSCREEN
https://ejscreen.epa.gov/mapper/index.html?wherestr=anderson%2C+indiana
EJ Scorecard
http://scorecard.goodguide.com/ej-index.tcl
Acceptable Distance Guidebook
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/2762/acceptable-separation-distance-guidebook

Tribal Directory Assessment Tool (TDAT)
https://www.hudexchange.info/ environmental-review/historic-preservation /tribal-consultation
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Section 1.07
(a)

Lead-Based Pain

Grant Management

Policy
Whenever Federal funds, such as CDBG, are used to assist housing built before 1978, the City of
Anderson requires that all steps to address lead hazards are undertaken. This applies to all assisted
housing units, including single and multi-family units, whether publicly or privately owned.
Procedure
24 CFR Part 35)
TYPES OF REQUIREMENTS
 The lead-based paint requirements established by the regulation fall into the three major
categories listed below:
o Notification: Recipients must meet four notification requirements:
 Lead Hazard Information Pamphlet - Occupants, owners, and purchasers must
receive the EPA/HUD/Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) lead hazard
information pamphlet, or an EPA-approved equivalent.
• Pamphlets should be provided to all households at time of application.
• It is recommended that states develop an acknowledgement form and
have all households sign to document they received and understood the
pamphlet.
• A copy of this acknowledgment form should then be placed in the file.
o Disclosure - Check that property owners have provided purchasers and lessees with
available information or knowledge regarding the presence of lead-based paint and
lead-based paint hazards prior to selling or leasing a residence.
 A disclosure notice must be provided to purchasers before closing so that they
are aware that there may be lead in the home they are purchasing. A copy of
the disclosure notice must be placed in the file.
 Tenants must receive a disclosure notice before moving into the unit. Ideally,
they should receive a disclosure notice at time of application so they can make
an informed decision when choosing housing for their household. A copy of the
disclosure notice should be kept by the landlord in the tenant’s file.
o Notice of Lead Hazard Evaluation or Presumption - Occupants, owners, and purchasers
must be notified of the results of any lead hazard evaluation work or the presumption of
lead-based paint or lead hazards.
 A copy of this notice must be provided to owners and tenants within 15 days of
the evaluation.
 A copy of this notice should be kept in the project file.
o Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction Activity - Occupants, owners, and purchasers must be
notified of the results of any lead hazard reduction work.
 A copy of this notice must be provided to owners and tenants within 15 days of
the project achieving clearance.
 A copy of this notice should be kept in the project file.
o Lead Hazard Assessment/Evaluation: Assessment/evaluation methods include visual
assessments, paint testing, and risk assessments. Each method has specific
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o

requirements (defined in Subpart R of the regulation) and must be done by qualified
professionals. The specific method required depends on the activity undertaken.
Lead Hazard Reduction: Lead hazard reduction may include paint stabilization, interim
controls, standard treatments, or abatement. Each method has specific requirements
(defined in Subpart R of the regulation) and must be done by qualified professionals.
The specific method required depends on the activity undertaken.

EXEMPTIONS
 Some projects may be exempt from the Lead Safe Housing Rule if they meet the
criteria listed below:
o Housing units constructed after 1978.
o Emergency repairs to the property are being performed to safeguard against imminent
danger to human life, health or safety, or to protect the property from further structural
damage due to natural disaster, fire or structural collapse. The exemption applies only
to repairs necessary to respond to the emergency.
o The property will not be used for human residential habitation. This does not apply to
common areas such as hallways and stairways of residential and mixed-use properties.
o Housing “exclusively” for the elderly or persons with disabilities, with the provision that
children less than six years of age will not reside in the dwelling unit.
o An inspection performed according to HUD standards found the property contained no
lead-based paint.
o According to documented methodologies, lead-based paint has been identified and
removed, and the property has achieved clearance.
o The rehabilitation will not disturb any painted surface.
o The property has no bedrooms.
o The property is currently vacant and will remain vacant until demolition.
 If the City of Anderson were to administer emergency repair programs, the City will pay
particular attention to the exemption “The rehabilitation will not disturb any painted surfaces.”
Many emergency repair programs replace only water heaters or roofs where no painted
surfaces are disturbed and thus may be exempt from the Rule.
 All exemptions must be documented in the project file. HUD has developed a Lead Safe
Housing Rule Applicability form that can be found in the August 19, 2003, memo from Roy A.
Bernardi, Assistant Secretary for Community Planning and Development, with the subject LeadSafe Housing Rule Checklist and Associated Guidance for Implementing and Documenting
Compliance.
REQUIREMENTS FOR REHABILITATION PROJECTS
 The City of Anderson may utilize CDBG funds for rehabilitation of existing units. When such an
activity is undertaken using Federal funds on a unit built before 1978, the Lead Safe Housing
Rule applies.
CALCULATING THE LEVEL OF ASSISTANCE
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The lead hazard evaluation and reduction activities required for rehabilitation projects depend
on the level of rehabilitation assistance received by the project. This level of assistance is
determined by taking the lower of:
o Per unit rehabilitation hard costs (regardless of source of funds); or
o Per unit Federal assistance (regardless of the use of the funds).
To make this determination, it helps to understand several terms:
o Rehabilitation Hard Costs. The rehabilitation costs are calculated using only hard costs.
They do not include soft costs or the costs of lead hazard evaluation and reduction, as
described below.
 Lead Hazard Evaluation and Reduction Costs. Lead hazard evaluation and
reduction costs include costs associated with site preparation, occupant
protection, relocation, interim controls, abatement, clearance, and waste
handling attributable to lead-based paint hazard reduction.
 Federal Assistance. Federal assistance includes all Federal funds provided to the
rehabilitation project, regardless of whether the funds are used for acquisition,
construction, soft costs or other purposes. This also includes funds from
program income, but excludes low-income housing tax credit funds (LIHTC),
Department of Energy Weatherization Program funds, or non-Federal HOME
Program match funds.

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROJECTS RECEIVING REHABILITATION ASSISTANCE
UP TO AND INCLUDING $5,000 PER UNIT
 Projects where the level of rehabilitation assistance is less than or equal to $5,000 per unit
must meet the following requirements:
o The goal is to “do no harm.” Therefore all work must be conducted using lead safe work
practices. Workers must be trained in lead safe work practices.
o Lead Hazard Evaluation. Paint testing must be conducted to identify lead-based paint on
painted surfaces that will be disturbed or replaced. Alternatively, UGLGs may presume
that these surfaces contain lead-based paint.
o Lead Hazard Reduction. UGLGs must repair all paint that will be disturbed during
rehabilitation, unless such paint is found not to be lead-based paint.
 If lead-based paint is detected or presumed, safe work practices must be used during
rehabilitation.
o Clearance is required by a certified clearance examiner.
o Notices must be provided to owners and tenants:
 The Lead Hazard Information pamphlet;
 The Notice of Evaluation (if paint testing is performed) or Notice of Presumption
(if paint testing is not performed); and
 The Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction.
 In short, for rehabilitation projects where the level of assistance is less than or equal to $5,000
per unit, workers must be trained in safe work practices, notices must be provided to owners
and tenants, and clearance must be achieved.
REQUIREMENTS FOR PROJECTS RECEIVING REHABILITATION ASSISTANCE BETWEEN $5,000-$25,000 PER
UNIT
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Projects where the level of rehabilitation assistance is between $5,000 and $25,000 per unit
must meet the following requirements.
o The goal is to “identify and address lead hazards.” A risk assessment is required to
identify lead hazards and identified hazards must be addressed by interim controls.
o Lead Hazard Evaluation. A risk assessment must be conducted by a qualified
professional prior to rehabilitation to find lead-based paint hazards in assisted units, in
common areas that service those units, and on exterior surfaces. The risk assessment
must include paint testing of any surfaces to be disturbed by the rehabilitation.
o Lead Hazard Reduction. If the risk assessment identifies lead-based paint hazards
interim controls must be implemented to address lead-based paint hazards.
 Interim controls must be performed by qualified professionals using safe work
practices.
 Clearance, conducted by a qualified clearance examiner, is required when lead
hazard reduction activities are complete.
o The City of Anderson will consider two options, depending upon the program activity:
 The city can presume that lead-based paint is present and that lead-based paint
hazards exist. In such cases, evaluation is not required. The city will perform
standard treatments in lieu of interim controls on all applicable painted surfaces
and presumed lead-based paint hazards.
 The city may also conduct a lead hazard screen instead of a risk assessment.
The lead hazard screen has more stringent requirements and is only
recommended in units in good condition. If the lead hazard screen indicates
that there is no lead contamination, no lead hazard reduction is required. If the
lead hazard screen indicates the presence of lead hazards, the UGLG must then
conduct a risk assessment. (Note: Passing a lead hazard screen, or a risk
assessment, does not eliminate the requirement to perform interim controls on
lead-based paint hazards created as a result of the rehabilitation work.)
o Notices must be provided to owners and tenants:
 The Lead Hazard Information pamphlet;
 The Notice of Evaluation (if a risk assessment is performed) or Notice of
Presumption (if a risk assessment is not performed); and
 The Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction.
Compliance with the Lead Safe Housing Rule for such rehabilitation projects will affect the
project planning, timeline, scope of work, contracting and budget.

REQUIREMENTS PROJECTS RECEIVING REHABILITATION ASSISTANCE OVER $25,000 PER UNIT


Projects where the level of rehabilitation assistance is over $25,000 per unit must meet the
following requirements:
o The goal is to “identify and eliminate lead hazards.” A risk assessment is required to
identify hazards and any identified hazards must be abated by a certified abatement
professional.
o Lead Hazard Evaluation. A risk assessment must be conducted prior to rehabilitation to
find lead-based paint hazards in assisted units, in common areas that service those
units, and on exterior surfaces. The risk assessment must include paint testing of any
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surfaces to be disturbed by the rehabilitation or the city may assume that lead-based
paint hazards exist.
o Lead Hazard Reduction. To address hazards identified:
 Abatement must be conducted to reduce all identified lead-based paint hazards
except those described below. Abatement must be conducted by a certified
abatement contractor.
 If lead-based paint hazards are detected during the risk assessment on the
exterior surfaces that are not to be disturbed by rehabilitation, interim controls
may be completed instead of abatement to reduce these hazards.
 Clearance is required when lead hazard reduction activities are complete.
o Options. There are two options, as follows:
 The city may to presume that lead-based paint hazards exist. In such cases, a
risk assessment is not required. The UGLG must abate all applicable painted
surfaces that will be disturbed during rehabilitation and all presumed lead
hazards.
 The city may conduct a lead hazard screen instead of a risk assessment. The lead
hazard screen has more stringent requirements and is only recommended in
units in good condition. If the lead hazard screen indicates that there is no lead
contamination, no lead hazard reduction is required. If the lead hazard screen
indicates the presence of lead hazards, the UGLG must then conduct a risk
assessment.
o Notices must be provided to owners and tenants:
 The Lead Hazard Information pamphlet;
 The Notice of Evaluation (if a risk assessment is conducted) or Notice of
Presumption(if a risk assessment is not conducted); and
 The Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction.
Compliance with the Lead Safe Housing Rule for such rehabilitation projects will affect the
project planning, timeline, scope of work, contracting, and budget. In particular, it involves the
engagement of a certified abatement contractor.

REQUIREMENTS FOR ACQUISITION, LEASING OR SUPPORTIVE SERVICES PROJECTS


CDBG funds may be used for acquisition, leasing and supportive services. When such an activity
is undertaken using Federal funds on a unit built before 1978, the Lead Safe Housing Rule
applies. The requirements needed to follow to be in compliance are as follows:
o Lead Hazard Assessment. A visual assessment must be conducted during initial and
periodic inspections by a person who is trained to detect deteriorated paint. Lead
hazard evaluation activities must be completed prior to occupancy, or if the unit is
already occupied, immediately after receipt of Federal assistance.
o Lead Hazard Reduction. Deteriorated paint must be corrected using paint stabilization
methods. Paint stabilization must be completed prior to occupancy, or if the unit is
already occupied, immediately after receipt of Federal assistance.
 Safe Work Practices. Safe work practices are required so workers must be
appropriately trained or supervised.
 Clearance. Clearance, by a qualified clearance examiner, is required when paint
stabilization is complete.
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Notification
 Lead Hazard Information Pamphlet. The lead hazard information pamphlet must
be provided prior to selling or providing leasing, support services, or operations
activities to a house or unit that was built prior to 1978. UGLG do not have to
provide the pamphlet if they can document that it has already been received.
 Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction Activity. The notice must be provided within
15 calendar days of the date when the paint stabilization is completed.

COMPLIANCE




Failure to comply with the lead-based paint requirements under the regulation will subject a
recipient to sanctions authorized under the Federal funding programs providing assistance to
the property, and violations may be subject a recipient to other penalties available under state
law. Notifying owners, purchasers, or occupants of possible lead-based paint hazards does not
relieve recipients of their responsibilities under the new regulation.
Not complying may expose households and contractors with potentially dangerous levels of lead
dust and debris that can cause life threatening illnesses and developmental delays.

THE RENOVATION, REPAIR AND PAINTING RULE
On April 22, 2008, EPA issued a rule requiring the use of lead-safe practices and other actions
aimed at preventing lead poisoning. Under the rule, beginning in April 2010, contractors
performing renovation, repair and painting projects that disturb lead-based paint in homes,
child care facilities, and schools built before 1978 must be certified and must follow specific
work practices to prevent lead contamination. Until that time, HUD and EPA recommend that
anyone performing renovation, repair, and painting projects that disturb lead-based paint in
pre-1978 homes, child care facilities and schools follow lead-safe work practices.
 There are some differences between the EPA RRP Rule and the HUD Lead Safe Housing Rule
(LSHR). A major difference is that the LSHR requires clearance examinations. All housing
receiving federal assistance must still comply with the LSHR. OHHLHC provides information on
complying with the LSHR and RRP, and frequently-asked questions from grantees. Additional
information for renovators is available.
 The City of Anderson requires all contractors should follow these three simple procedures:
o Contain the work area;
o Minimize dust; and
o Clean up thoroughly.
 From December 2008, the rule has required that contractors performing renovation, repair and
painting projects that disturb lead-based paint provide to owners and occupants of child care
facilities and to parents and guardians of children under age six that attend child care facilities
built prior to 1978 the lead hazard information pamphlet “Renovate Right: Important Lead
Hazard Information for Families, Child Care Providers, and Schools”.
 Starting on April 22, 2010, the rule will affect paid renovators who work in pre-1978 housing
and child-occupied facilities, including:
o Renovation contractors;
o Maintenance workers in multi-family housing; and
o Painters and other specialty trades.
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Under the rule, child-occupied facilities are defined as residential, public or commercial
buildings where children under age six are present on a regular basis. The requirements apply
to renovation, repair or painting activities. The rule does not apply to minor maintenance or
repair activities where less than six square feet of lead-based paint is disturbed in a room or
where less than 20 square feet of lead-based paint is disturbed on the exterior. Window
replacement is not minor maintenance or repair.

Section 1.08
(a)

Relocation/Acquisition – Uniformed Relocation Act (URA)

Grant Management

Policy
The City of Anderson’s Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Program policy is to:
 Provide uniform, fair and equitable treatment of persons whose real property is acquired or who
are displaced in connection with federally funded projects;
 Ensure relocation assistance is provided to displaced persons to lessen the emotional and
financial impact of displacement;
 Ensure that no individual or family is displaced unless decent, safe, and sanitary (DSS) housing is
available within the displaced person's financial means;
 Help improve the housing conditions of displaced persons living in substandard housing; and
 Encourage and expedite acquisition by agreement and without coercion.
Procedure
49 CFR Part 24 Subparts A - F, 24 CFR Part 42, and 24 CFR 570.606
Relocation may be triggered when CDBG, ESG or HOME-assisted housing activities which involve
displacement or relocation (temporary or permanent) of tenants or the demolition or conversion of
residential units occupied by low-income households, are being “planned”. Cities, counties, CDBOs,
CHDOS and other public agencies must adhere to the requirements of Federal relocation laws, including
the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act (URA), Section 104 (d) of
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as well as relocation provisions contained in the
HOME Final Rule.
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
The City of Anderson has adopted and make public its Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation
Assistance Plan, and certified that it is following the Plan. The city has included:
 Plans for temporary relocation for tenants
 Plans for homeowners who apply for rehabilitation funds
o And are forced to temporarily relocate from their homes due to:
 Lead-based paint abatement,
 Asbestos abatement, or
 Other unforeseen issues.
o If temporary relocation causes the homeowner an unreasonable economic hardship, the
relocation plan should provide for financial assistance.
PROGRAM-WIDE REQUIREMENTS
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The City of Anderson, its subrecipients and contractors will comply with the following requirements and
procedures to ensure compliance with the Uniform Relocation Act URA. URA requirements are
incorporated into all city housing related contracts. The program-wide requirements that impact or
define both acquisition and relocation activities are detailed below.


Displacement
o Displaced Person(s) are:
 Per (49 CFR 24.2(a)(9)), a displaced person under the URA is an individual,
family, partnership, association, corporation, or organization, which moves from
their home, business, or farm, or moves their personal property, as a direct
result of acquisition, demolition or rehabilitation for a federally funded project.
 HUD program regulations often include additional circumstances in
programmatic definitions of a displaced person which must be considered,
where applicable, including:
• A person who moves permanently from the real property after the
property owner (or person in control of the site) issues a vacate notice
to the person, or refuses to renew an expiring lease in order to evade
the responsibility to provide relocation assistance, if the move occurs on
or after:
o The date the applicant submits the request for assistance for
the project that is later approved, if the applicant has site
control; or
o The date the applicant obtains site control, if that occurs after
the request for assistance.
o Displaced persons are eligible for relocation assistance under
the URA.
o Displaced Person(s) are NOT:
 Per (49 CFR 24.2(a)(9)(ii), persons not displaced are not eligible for relocation
assistance under the URA. Examples of persons not displaced include the
following:
• Persons displaced temporarily from their dwelling for less than 12
months while it is being rehabilitated
• Illegal aliens – the URA prohibits providing relocation assistance to
persons not lawfully present in the U.S.
 HUD regulations and program policy discuss situations which often arise in HUDfunded projects. The following is just few of the situations clarified:
• In eviction cases, HUD expects SMC’s files to substantiate that an
eviction was not undertaken in order to avoid paying relocation costs.
SMC (or owner) is advised to obtain a court order for the eviction (even
if the tenant has already moved). If the Agency believes the cost of
obtaining a court order is prohibitively expensive, it should adequately
document the cause of the eviction in its files.
• The actions (or inactions) which constitute a “serious or repeated
violation of the material terms and conditions of the lease” and whether
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or not such violation(s) provide legal grounds for eviction under
applicable State or local law.
Where an Agency has tenant(s) in a planned project site who have not
been in compliance with their lease or have repeated offenses prior to
or after the ION date, even if they are under a workout agreement or on
a formal probation.
The person is a tenant-occupant that moved into the property after
application for assistance for the project but, before leasing and
occupying the property, was provided written notice of ineligibility for
displacement or relocation benefits.
SMC determines that the person was not displaced as a direct result of
acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition for the project, and the HUD
Field Office concurs in that determination.
The relocation is determined to be a “transfer” in accordance with
applicable Public Housing program policies and the Public Housing
Agency’s (PHA’s) occupancy policy.

Project Planning
o Minimize Displacement. Consistent with the goals and objectives of the applicable HUD
program, SMC shall assure that it takes all reasonable steps to minimize displacement as
a result of a project.
o Budgetary Implications. Early, common sense planning is necessary to ensure that
sufficient funds will be budgeted to comply with applicable law and regulations.
Relocation assistance is costly and can seriously affect the viability of a project.
 The city shall carefully analyze all potential relocation and acquisition project
costs before it commits HUD funds to a subrecipient.
o Coordination. The city shall take the steps necessary to ensure cooperation and
coordination among government agencies, neighborhood groups and affected persons
so that the project can proceed efficiently with minimal duplication of effort.
o Consultation with Property Occupants. Where feasible, the city (or its subrecipient) shall
consult with the occupants of the site to be acquired, rehabilitated or demolished at an
early stage.
o Determining Resource Needs. To the extent necessary and feasible, SMC should
conduct an on-site survey of occupants before approving a project. (49 CFR 24.205(a)(1)
through (5)
o Review by HUD. Individual HUD program regulations may specify the level and timing of
HUD review of Agency planning activities and budgets.
Date of Initiation of Negotiations (ION) for HUD Programs
o Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 24 CFR 570.606(b)(3): “…if the
displacement is the result of privately undertaken rehabilitation, demolition, or
acquisition…the execution of the grant or loan agreement between the grantee and the
person owning or controlling the real property.”
o HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 24 CFR 92.353(c)(3): “…to a tenant
displaced…as a result of private-owner rehabilitation, demolition, or acquisition…the
execution of the agreement covering the acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition.”
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Federal relocation laws apply equally to HOME and non-HOME units even if they are
market-rate units.
o Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) 24 CFR 576.59(f)(2): “…to a residential tenant
displaced…as a result of privately undertaken rehabilitation, demolition, or
acquisition…execution of the agreement between the grantee and HUD.”
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act (HCD) - 24 CFR Part 42
o Section 104(d) requirements include:
 Replacement, on a one-for-one basis, of all occupied and vacant occupiable lowor moderate-income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a use
other than low- or moderate-income housing in connection with an activity
assisted under the HCD Act, and
 Provision of certain relocation assistance to any lower-income person displaced
as a direct result of the following activities in connection with federal assistance:
• Demolition of any dwelling unit, or
• Conversion of a low- or moderate-income dwelling unit to a use other
than a low- or moderate-income residence.
o Triggers for Section 104(d) requirements 5 are triggered by the use of HOME, CDBG,
Section 108 Loan Guarantee, or UDAG funding in a project involving the demolition of
low- or moderate-income housing or conversion to a use other than low- or moderateincome dwellings.
o Relocation assistance and payments for eligible persons under Section 104(d) are similar
to those required for the URA but there are a number of differences.
 One significant difference between the laws is the period of time used to
calculate a rental assistance payment. Section 104(d) uses 60 months versus 42
months for the URA.
 Section 104(d)-eligible displaced persons may choose to receive relocation
assistance under Section 104(d) or relocation assistance under the URA.
 Advisory services (same as for URA)
 Payment for moving expenses (same as for URA)
 Security deposits and credit checks
 Interim living costs, when required
 Replacement housing assistance (rental or purchase)
 For most individuals, rental assistance under 104(d) is greater than under URA.
(may be offered a Housing Choice Voucher if eligible)
 Purchase assistance is limited to mutual or cooperative housing. If other types
of housing are to be purchased, URA must be used.
Compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
o To comply with Section 504 the City of Anderson shall take steps to ensure that no
displaced person with disabilities is excluded from participating in, denied the benefits
of, or subjected to discrimination in the provision of relocation assistance because of the
person’s disability. Such steps include:
 Determining the accessible features of housing from which persons with
disabilities will be displaced, as well as any other accessible housing needs.

Please note that CDBG funding used only for relocation assistance or project administration does not trigger Section
104(d) requirements.

5
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Ensuring that communications are effective and that facilities for meetings,
counseling, and other informational activities are accessible.
Providing reasonable accommodations (e.g., providing transportation assistance
to locate comparable housing) at the request of a displaced person who is
disabled.
If comparable replacement housing is not available on a timely basis, using
replacement housing of last resort per 49 CFR 24.404.
Inspecting replacement housing to ensure that it is decent, safe, and sanitary –
e.g., free of barriers to the person’s ingress, egress, adequate in size to
accommodate the occupants, and includes other features to meet the
accessibility needs of the displaced person with disabilities.
Maintaining records of the above steps and making them available for
inspection by HUD.

REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION PROCEDURES
When conducting a program or project under the URA, the City of Anderson shall carry out their legal
responsibilities to affected property owners and displaced persons. The city shall plan to ensure that
adequate time, funding and staffing are available to carry out their responsibilities. Some of those
responsibilities include:
 For Real Property Acquisition
o Appraise property before negotiations
o Invite the property owner to accompany the appraiser during the property inspection
o Provide the owner with a written offer of just compensation and a summary of what is
being acquired
o Pay for property before possession
o Reimburse expenses resulting from the transfer of title such as recording fees, prepaid
real estate taxes, or other expenses.
o Please note that agency responsibilities for voluntary acquisitions differ. (Please see
Voluntary Acquisition vs. Involuntary Acquisition in this training module for additional
information.)
 For Residential Displacements
o Provide relocation advisory services to displaced tenants and owner occupants
o Provide a minimum 90 days written notice to vacate prior to requiring possession
o Reimburse for moving expenses
o Provide payments for the added cost of renting or purchasing comparable replacement
housing
 For Nonresidential Displacements (businesses, farms, and nonprofit organizations)
o Provide relocation advisory services
o Provide a minimum 90 days written notice to vacate prior to requiring possession
o Reimburse for moving and reestablishment expenses.
This section provides procedures relating to the acquisition of real property (real estate) for HUD funded
programs and projects under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies
Act (URA) and other HUD requirements. The City of Anderson shall ensure compliance with the URA
statute and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24.
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Voluntary vs. Involuntary Acquisition. 49 CFR Subpart B sets forth the real property acquisition
requirements for Federal and federally-assisted programs and projects under the URA. Generally, the
URA regulations have different requirements and processes for acquisitions of a voluntary nature and
for acquisitions under threat or use of eminent domain (condemnation):
VOLUNTARY ACQUISITIONS
INVOLUNTARY ACQUISITIONS
49 CFR 24.101(b)(1)-(5)
49 CFR 24.101(a) & (b)
Determine if proposed acquisition satisfies
Determine if proposed acquisition is
criteria and requirements of 24.101(b)(1)-(5). If subject to threat or use of eminent
acquisition doesn’t meet criteria (e.g., is
domain. If not subject to eminent
subject to threat or use of eminent domain),
domain, refer to voluntary acquisition
refer to involuntary acquisition process and
process and comply with applicable
comply with 49 CFR 24 Subpart B
requirements of 49 CFR 24.101(b)(1)requirements.
(5).
24.101(b)(1) - Agencies with eminent
domain authority but will not use: must
meet all conditions of 24.101(b)(1)(i) –(iv).
(see esp. 24.101(b)(1)(i) & (ii))
* Agency will not acquire property if
negotiations fail, and owner is so informed in
writing (see 24.101(b)(1)(iii))
* Agency informs owner in writing of property’s
estimated market value
(see 24.101(b)(iv))
* Owner/s & owner occupants not eligible for
relocation assistance / displaced tenants may
be eligible (see 24.2(a)(9)(ii))
24.101(b)(2) – Agencies or persons without
eminent domain authority:
* Prior to offer, inform owner unable to acquire
if negotiations fail
(see 24.101(b)(2)(i))
* Inform owner of property’s estimated market
value (see 24.101(b)(2)(ii))

* Owner/s & owner occupants not eligible for
relocation assistance / displaced tenants may
be eligible (see 24.2(a)(9)(ii))
24.101(b)(3) – Acquisition from a Federal
agency, State, or State agency, if acquiring
agency without eminent domain authority:

* Notify owner of agency’s interest in
acquiring property and protections
under the Uniform Act (see 24.102(b))
(Optional: issue Notice of Intent to
Acquire (see 24.203(d))
* Appraise property and invite owner to
accompany appraiser
(see 24.102(c))
* Review the appraisal
(see 24.104)
* Establish estimate of just
compensation for property
(see 24.102(d))
* Provide owner with written offer and
summary statement for property
(see 24.102(e))
* Negotiate with owner for purchase of
property
(see 24.102(f))
* If negotiations successful, complete
sale and reimburse property owner for
related incidental expenses (see
24.106)
* If negotiations unsuccessful, consider
an administrative settlement
(see 24.102(i))
* If negotiations still unsuccessful,
consider acquiring property through
eminent domain.
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* Owner/s & owner occupants not eligible for
relocation assistance / displaced tenants may
be eligible (see 24.2(a)(9)(ii))

* Displaced persons eligible for
relocation assistance 6
(see 24.2(a)(9)(i))

RESIDENTIAL RELOCATION PROCEDURES
The URA, Section 104(d) and CDBG regulations are very clear regarding residential relocation
requirements in conjunction with federally funded projects. When conducting your project planning, do
not leave out any of the required steps or time for relocation noticing:
 Required Notices
o General Information Notice (GIN) 7 informs occupants of a possible project and of their
rights under the URA. The notice stresses that the household should not move at this
time and also provides information about assistance available if they are to be
displaced. The GIN is required to be given to all tenants whether they will or not be
temporarily displaced or permanently displaced. This notice must be given to occupants
as soon as is feasible to avoid having occupants move prematurely due to not being
properly informed, thereby possibly increasing relocations costs, which means that they
should be given to tenants or persons at or before the time of the NOFA application.
o Notice of Eligibility informs households to be displaced of their rights, projected benefit
amounts, and levels of relocation assistance under URA. A tenant survey must be done
to determine the needs of each household before issuing the Eligibility Notice.
Households who move permanently from the real property after receiving the Notice of
Eligibility, but do not wait for the 90-day or 30-day notice, may still be eligible for
relocation assistance. This notice should contain a commitment for relocation
assistance, including:
 Addresses of comparable replacement units 8. Provide comparables that have
similar square footage, same number of bedrooms and baths, and other
functionally equivalent amenities.
 A specified amount for replacement housing payments (based on similar
comparables obtained) and moving expense.
 If the tenant has indicated that they wish to purchase a home, provide a “lump
sum” payment amount that they would receive should they decide to purchase
a home.
 Information regarding rental assistance for those tenants desiring to remain in
the project, but who cannot afford the new rents.
In an involuntary acquisition the URA requires that the owner’s moving costs be covered (see 49 CFR 24.301 and
.302) and he/she may be entitled to replacement housing payments under 49 CFR 24.401 or .402.
7
HUD has recommended and HCD will require that copies of GINs for each tenant or for prior tenants, who were
residing in the subject property on or near the date of the NOFA application, to be sent to HCD prior to any release of
funds. These GINs must be signed and dated by each tenant before being submitted. A proposed “RENT ROLL” will be
required at the same time, based on the proposed rent for each unit when the acquisition /rehab is completed. HCD
will determine whether the state recipient or CHDO is in compliance with rent levels and to ensure that the unit rents
remain at the same level before the agreement was executed and for at least one year subsequent (after) project
completion.
8
Because comparable units set an upper limit for assistance, failure to provide information about available,
comparable units may result in a requirement to pay excessive relocation costs.
6
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Notice of Non-Displacement informs households who will remain in the project after
completion of their rights and the terms and conditions of their remaining at the
property.
o Temporary Relocation Notice informs households who will be temporarily relocated of
their relocation rights and the conditions of their temporary move. Those tenants who
will be temporarily relocated must receive “reasonable” advance written notice of the
location, terms, and conditions of the temporary move and of their right to
reimbursement of all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. Temporary relocations must
not be more than 12 months or the household is considered “permanently displaced”
and must be then be allowed permanent relocation benefits.
o Move-In Notice informs households moving into potential projects after the application
for HOME funds that they may be displaced and that they will not be entitled to
assistance.
o 90 and 30 Day Notices inform displaced households of the day by which they must
vacate the property. Displaced households may be given at least 90 days to vacate their
residence. No person may be required to vacate their dwelling or issued a 90-day
Notice before the person has been given a written notice of an available, comparable
replacement dwelling. If no date is specified in the 90-day notice, the tenants must be
informed that they will receive at least 30 days advance written notice of the specific
date.
o The City will require copies of the Notices of Eligibility for each tenant as well as a copy
of the Claim for Rental Assistance or Down payment Assistance (HUD claim form 40058)
filled out with an attached copy of the Comparable Replacement Dwelling HUD form
40061) showing the three (3) comparable units provided for each tenant and an
explanation for the determination of the “most” comparable unit used in calculating the
relocation benefits.
o Notices may be personally served or sent by certified or registered first class mail with
return receipt requested. Consistent with the goals and objectives of the HUD program,
the city will take all reasonable steps to minimize displacement as a result of a project.
Who is Eligible for Assistance?
o Everyone who meets the URA definition of a “displaced person” is eligible to receive
relocation assistance. There is no income limit for relocation assistance eligibility.
o Level and type of assistance is based upon several factors, including whether the person
is a tenant, an owner, a business, his or her income and length of residency.
Relocation Assistance Requirements
o Subrecipient Responsibilities
 Keep all residents informed of project activities and scheduling and ensure that
all the previously mentioned Notices are provided in a timely manner.
 Provide information about comparable housing opportunities and the
household’s relocation rights.
 Provide information about federal, State, and local housing programs and how
to apply for them.
 Provide referrals to other available assistance including human services, health
services, public assistance, childcare, etc.
Eligible Relocation Expenses - Displaced households may choose to receive payment for moving
and related expenses by either reimbursement of actual expenses or receipt of a fixed payment,
o
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based upon a schedule established by the Department of Transportation. Actual expenses are
based upon the subrecipient’s determination that the expenses are reasonable and necessary.
Such expenses include the following:
o Transportation of the displaced person and personal property at the current mileage
rate for personal vehicles that need to be moved. Transportation costs for a distance
beyond 50 miles is not eligible unless the HOME Contractor determines that relocation
beyond 50 miles is justified.
o Packing, crating, uncrating, and unpacking of personal property.
o Storage of the personal property for a period not to exceed 12 months, unless the
contractor determines that a longer period is necessary.
o Disconnecting, dismantling, removing, reassembling, and reinstalling relocated
household appliances, and other personal property.
o Insurance for the replacement value of the property in connection with the move and
necessary storage.
o Replacement value of the property lost, stolen, or damaged in the process of moving
where insurance covering such loss, theft, or damage is not reasonably available.
o Security deposits, credit checks and other reasonable expenses.
Ineligible Relocation Expenses - The following expenses are ineligible for reimbursement or
payment to displaced households:
o Personal injury.
o Interest on a loan to cover moving expenses.
o Any legal fee or other costs for preparing a claim for relocation payment or for
representing the claimant before the subrecipient.
o The cost of moving any structure or other real property improvement in which the
displaced person reserved ownership.
o Costs for storage of personal property on real property owned or leased by the
displaced person “before” the initiation of negotiations.

REPLACEMENT HOUSING PAYMENT
The assistance a displaced tenant receives varies depending upon whether the family was in occupancy
more or less than 90 days prior to the date of initiation of negotiations.
The Replacement Housing Payment is intended to provide affordable housing for a 42-month period.
Although the URA regulations mention a $5,250 limitation on payments, it also requires that persons
receive the calculated payment. Therefore, families are entitled to the full 42 months of assistance even
though the total amount may exceed $5,250. The City HUD for further guidance on the maximum
payment amount if the family is not considered low income.
Cash rental assistance must be provided in installments, unless the tenant wishes to purchase a home. If
the displaced tenant wishes to purchase a home, the payment must be provided in a lump sum so that
the funds can be used for a down payment, including incidental expenses. All of the payment must be
used for the home purchase. Claim for Rental Assistance or Down Payment Assistance (Form HUD-40058
in Appendix 14 of Handbook 1378) is used to compute the rental or down payment assistance. The HUD
claim form must be filled out and a copy submitted to the city for review and approval. The City requires
that displaced households be assisted with filing out any required forms that they may need to complete.
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CALCULATING THE REPLACEMENT HOUSING PAYMENT
If a tenant has occupied a displacement unit for more than 90 days, the replacement housing payment
makes up the difference between the rent and estimated utility costs for the replacement dwelling or
for a comparable unit, whichever is less, and the lesser of:
•
•

30% of the tenant's average monthly gross income, or
The monthly rent and estimated average utility costs of the dwelling the tenant was displaced
from.

If a tenant has occupied a displacement unit for less than 90 days, the replacement housing payment
makes up the difference between the rent and estimated utility costs for the replacement dwelling or
for a comparable unit, whichever is less; and 30% of the tenant's average monthly gross income.
EXAMPLE: URA REPLACEMENT HOUSING PAYMENT
$ 600 Rent and utilities at actual replacement dwelling
$ 500 Rent and utilities at comparable dwelling
Choose the lesser: $500
$ 400 Rent and utilities at the dwelling tenant was displaced
from
$ 300 30% of gross monthly income
Choose the lesser: $300
REPLACEMENT HOUSING PAYMENT IS:
$500 - $300 = $200 x 42 months = $8,400

RIGHTS OF RESIDENTS WHO REMAIN IN THE PROJECT
Tenants who are intended to remain in the project must receive the offer of a "suitable" unit, which can
be rented at an "affordable" price. If there is no increase in rent, the unit is considered affordable and
the tenant is not considered “rent burdened,” even if the percentage of income that the family is paying
is quite high.
If rents are increased after rehabilitation and rents are above the HUD Fair Market Rents, tenant-based
assistance can be provided if the family’s income does not exceed Section 8 lower-income limits, and if
the tenants qualify as “rent burdened.”
To determine whether a family is rent burdened, the HOME program uses a threshold of 30% of gross
income for tenants whose incomes are above the Section 8 Lower-Income Limit, and uses a threshold of
the Section 8 Total Tenant Payment (TTP) for tenants at or below the Section 8 lower- income limit.
TTP is the greater of:
•
30% of adjusted income, or
•
10% of gross monthly income, or
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•

For persons receiving welfare assistance, the designated welfare allowance for housing and
utility costs in “as-paid” states and communities only. See HUD Handbook 1378, Paragraph 7-20.

ECONOMIC DISPLACEMENT
Tenants who move permanently after the Initiation of Negotiations because they did not receive an
offer of a suitable unit at an affordable price are considered “economically displaced.”
Under URA, the Subrecipient may offer Section 8, if available, to eligible lower-income tenants, if either
is available, to prevent economic displacement. These rent burdened families who are offered tenantbased assistance before they move may use the assistance in the project or may move, without being
considered displaced.
Tenants with incomes above the Section 8 lower-income limit may still be eligible under URA for
assistance to prevent economic displacement.

COMPARABLE UNITS REQUIREMENTS
A comparable unit is one or more specific unit(s) offered by the owner to a displaced person in which
the size, function, and location are as similar as possible to the unit the household is leaving.
Comparable units should be:
 Similar in size: Generally, comparable units will have the same amount of space and amenities
as the original unit and should be typical in size for the residential development. If the original
unit was dilapidated, a smaller, decent, safe and sanitary unit that can accommodate the
household may be considered. However any substitution of smaller units must be approved by
the City and must be fully documented and verifiable as to the reason for the request to use a
smaller unit.
 Similar in function: To be considered similar in function, the comparable unit should provide the
same function, service, or purpose as the displaced unit. For example: If the original unit had a
separate dining room and living room, but the replacement unit has a combined living and
dining area to accommodate the same activities, the replacement unit is “functionally
equivalent”.
 Reasonably accessible to the person’s employment.
 Located in an equal to or better area as the displacement unit in terms of public services and
commercial and public facilities. For example: a displaced family has two school age children. If
they want to keep their children in the same school, the comparable unit should be within the
same school district.
 Decent, safe and sanitary (must meet Section 8 Housing Quality Standards).
 Within the financial means of the displaced person. Because URA requires that financial
assistance be provided to assist the household to afford the replacement unit, the unit selected
as comparable is not required to be affordable without assistance.
 In an area free from unreasonable adverse environmental conditions.
 Available to the displaced person: Units are "available" if the person has been informed of the
location(s); if the person has sufficient time to negotiate a rental or lease agreement or a
purchase agreement; and if the person receives relocation payments (as necessary) in sufficient
time to complete the move or purchase.
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RELOCATING A BUSINESS, NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION OR FARM OPERATION





Some agencies avoid projects that may require relocation of a business. Understanding the key
issues and steps will help an agency take on such a project and be successful.
There are Federal regulations governing the relocation of a business, nonprofit organization or
farm operation. The regulations governing relocation of a business, nonprofit organization or
farm operation can be found in 49 CFR Part 24, and those issues specifically related to moving
and related expenses can be found at 49 CFR 24.301-306.
Timing is everything! Early coordination and communication with businesses, nonprofit
organizations or farms which will be displaced is essential. The URA regulations also require a
personal interview with each business, farm or nonprofit organization to be displaced. The
minimum interview requirements are described in 49 CFR 24.205(c)(2)(i). While there are
statutory and regulatory requirements for officially notifying owners and occupants, the more
time, information and notice provided to the occupants the more successful the relocation will
be. Remember, in some states with sunshine laws 9, discussion of the project may find its way
into the newspaper quickly, even before the agency is prepared to issue formal notices. The
business operator should hear about it from the agency first, if possible, through informal
meetings or other contact. The formal noticing requirements are:
o General Information Notice (GIN). This advisory notice should be provided as early as
possible in the process; if an agency has applied for HUD project funding, the GIN should
be issued at the time of application. A GIN informs the person that they may be
displaced by the project and also cautions them not to move prior to receiving a notice
of relocation eligibility or they may risk potential eligibility for relocation assistance and
payments. The GIN should generally describe the types of relocation payments the
person may be eligible for, the availability of relocation advisory services and rights of
appeal. The GIN should also state that a 90-day notice must be provided in advance of
the move. The HUD Booklet “Relocation Assistance to Displaced Businesses, Nonprofit
Organization and Farms” should be provided with the GIN.
o Notice of Eligibility for Relocation Assistance. This notice is provided at the time of the
“Initiation of Negotiations” (ION) and informs the person that they will be displaced and
are eligible for relocation assistance and payments. Relocation eligibility is effective on
the date of ION. ION is generally the date the written offer to purchase the property is
presented, to the owner, but it can be defined differently depending on the displacing
activity (acquisition, rehabilitation, demolition) and project specifics. A variety of ION
definitions may be found in the URA regulations, but agencies must also check
applicable program regulations in order to determine the appropriate definition of ION
to be used for the project. Procedures for obtaining assistance and the person’s
estimated relocation payment amounts should be stated in this notice.
o Ninety-Day Notice. This notice provides at least 90 days in advance of the earliest date
by which the person is required to move. The notice must either state the specific date
by which the property must be vacated, or specify the earliest date by which the

Sunshine laws are U.S. federal and state laws requiring regulatory authorities' meetings, decisions and records to be
made available to the public. The requirements under sunshine laws vary from state to state.

9
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occupant will be required to move and state that the occupant will receive a vacate
notice at least 30 days in advance of the move.
Specific Procedures for Delivering Notices (49 CFR 24.5). To ensure that the business, nonprofit
or farm receives each notice, the agency is required to personally serve or send each notice by
certified or registered first-class mail, with return receipt requested. Each notice should be
written in plain English and persons unable to read and/or understand the notice must be
provided with appropriate translation/communication, such as sign language, interpreter or
reader.
Eligible moving costs for displaced businesses, nonprofit organizations or farms [49 CFR
24.301(g)(1)-(7), (g) (11)-(18), and 24.303)]. Some of these costs include, but are not limited to
the following:
o Transportation of personal property
o Packing, crating, uncrating and unpacking of personal property
o Disconnecting, dismantling, removing, reassembling and reinstalling relocated
machinery, equipment and other personal property and installing substitute personal
property, including connection to utilities
o Storage of personal property for up to one year (or longer if necessary)
o Insurance for the replacement value of personal property
o Replacement value of property lost, stolen or damaged in the process of moving, where
insurance covering the loss is not reasonably available
o Licenses, permits or certifications for the replacement location
o Professional services, to include planning, moving and reinstalling the personal property
o Re-lettering signs and replacing stationery
o Actual direct loss of tangible personal property as a result of moving or discontinuing
the business, nonprofit organization or farm
o Reasonable costs for selling items not being relocated
o Purchase of substitute personal property
o Searching for a replacement location not to exceed $2,500, including:
 Transportation
 Meals and lodging away from home
 Time spent searching
 Fees paid to a real estate agent or broker
 Time spent obtaining permits
 Time spent negotiating the purchase of a replacement site
Some costs for moving and reestablishing a business, nonprofit organization or farm are not
eligible for reimbursement (49 CFR 24.301(h)). Some of these costs include, but are not limited
to the following:
o The cost of moving any structure or other real property improvement in which the
displaced person reserved ownership
o Interest on a loan to cover any costs of moving or reestablishment expenses
o Loss of goodwill
o Loss of profits
o Loss of trained employees
o Additional operating expenses incurred because of operating in a new location (except
as described in 7. below)
o Personal injury
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Legal or other fees for preparing a relocation claim
Expenses associated with finding a replacement dwelling
Physical changes to the replacement property (except as described in 7. below)
Costs for storage of personal property on real property owned or leased by the
displaced person
o Refundable security and utility deposits
Other related moving expenses may be available to a business, farm, or nonprofit organization
that has to relocate (49 CFR 24.303):
o Connection to nearby utilities from the right-of-way to improvements at the new site
o Professional services performed prior to the lease or purchase of the replacement
property to determine its suitability for the business (including soil tests and marketing
studies)
o Impact fees or other one time assessments for anticipated heavy utility usage
There are relocation payments for reestablishing a small business, farm, or nonprofit (49 CFR
24.304). Although a business is eligible for reimbursement of actual eligible costs of relocating
the business, there is a maximum payment of up to $10,000 for reestablishing a small business,
non-profit organization or farm at another location. Eligible expenses include, but are not
limited to:
o Repairs or improvements to the replacement property as required by code or ordinance;
o Modifications to the property to accommodate the business operation or to make
replacement structures suitable for conducting the business;
o Construction and installation costs for exterior signs;
o Redecoration or replacement of soiled or worn surfaces at the replacement site, such as
paint, paneling or carpeting;
o Advertisement of the replacement location;
o Estimated increased costs of operation during the first 2 years at the replacement site
for items such as:
 Lease or rental charges;
 Personal or real property taxes;
 Insurance premiums; and
 Utility charges, excluding impact fees.
 Other items that the agency determines are essential to the reestablishment of
the business.
o The following is a nonexclusive list of ineligible reestablishment expenses: [49 CFR
24.304(b)]
 Purchase of capital assets, such as office furniture, filing cabinets, machinery or
trade fixtures
 Purchase of manufacturing materials, production supplies, product inventory or
other items used in course of normal business operations;
 Interest on money borrowed to make the move or purchase the replacement
property;
 Payment to a part-time business in the home, which does not contribute
materially to the household income.
Fixed Payment Option Available for a Business or Farm (49 CFR 24.305). In limited
circumstances, a displaced business or a displaced farm operation can opt for a fixed payment,
o
o
o
o
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in lieu of, receiving actual moving and reestablishment payments. The displaced business is
eligible for the payment if the agency determines that:
o The business owns or rents personal property which must be moved in connection with
the displacement and for which an expense would be incurred if the business vacates or
relocates from its original site;
o The business cannot be relocated without a substantial loss of its existing patronage
(clientele or net earnings);
o The business is not part of a commercial enterprise having more than 3 other entities
which are not being acquired and which are under the same ownership and engage in
the same or similar business activities;
o The business is not operated at the displacement site or dwelling solely for the purpose
of renting the site or dwelling to others; and
o The business contributed materially to the income of the displaced person during the 2
taxable years prior to displacement. The criteria for fixed payments for a farm being
relocated can be found at 49 CFR 305(c). The fixed payment will be equal to the average
annual net earnings (described in 10. below) of the business or the average annual net
earnings of the farm operation not to exceed $20,000 and not less than $1,000.
Fixed Payment Option Available for a Nonprofit Organization: (49 CFR 25.305(d)). A displaced
nonprofit organization is eligible to choose a fixed payment as an alternative to a payment for
actual moving and related expenses and actual reasonable reestablishment expenses, if the
agency determines that it cannot be relocated without a substantial loss of existing membership
or clientele. To calculate the fixed payment, subtract the administrative costs from the average
gross revenue over the last two years. The payment shall not exceed $20,000 nor be less than
$1,000.
Determining the Average Annual Net Earnings of a Business or Farm: (49 CFR 24.305(e)). The
average annual net earnings of a business or farm operation are one-half of its net earnings
before Federal, state and local income taxes during the two taxable years immediately prior to
the taxable year in which it was displaced.
Temporary Relocation for a Business [49 CFR 24.2(a)(9)(ii)(D) and appendix A]. Sometimes CDBG
projects may require a business to shut down temporarily. During the project planning process,
agencies must attempt to minimize displacement. For example, the agency may choose to
redesign the project so that only half of the street is closed at one time so that access to the
businesses is not denied and there is no need for the business to shut down.
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Section 1.09
(a)

Rehabilitation Standards/Green Building

Grant Management

Policy
The City of Anderson strongly encourages that Green Rehabilitation Standards be utilized in any
construction activity where feasible. Green Standard represents a standard that accomplishes one or
more of the following:
 Conserve water
 Conserve energy
 Provide the resident with a healthier living environment
 Reduce impact on the natural environment
 Create a more sustainable product lifetime
The City of Anderson understands that the Green Rehabilitation Standards must be balance with the
need to cost-effectively “eliminate neighborhood blight through renovation and demolition while
providing low -income families with safe, secure and affordable homes.” The ranking of primary
considerations for the City of Anderson’s Green Rehabilitation Standards is as follows:
 Health and Safety
 Performance and durability
 Life cycle cost
 Affordable operating cost
 Balanced initial cost
 Environmental impact
 Historically sensitive exterior
Procedure
The City of Anderson establishes the following standards to follow when using Federal funding on a
construction activity. [Green Standard] is included in the item heading where appropriate.
Customization is required to make these Green Standards relevant for your housing program. In the
process of customization, city staff should adapt these standards to your local climate, housing stock
and program goals. The City should consider the following factors in their customization:
•
Building types that may differ
•
Costs and budget considerations
•
Zoning codes
•
Housing codes
•
Regulatory requirements
•
Climate
•
Marketability
•
Local product availability
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Contaminants [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs.
NA
Replacement Standard
All materials installed will meet the following standards to minimize the presence of
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) and Formaldehyde:
• All paints and primers must meet the most recent Green Seal G-11 Environmental
Standard.
Http://www.greenseal.org/certification/standards/paints_and_coatings.pdf
• Adhesives must comply with Rule 1168 of the South Coast Air Quality
Management District. http://www.aqmd.gov/rules/reg/reg11/r1168.pdf
• All caulks and sealants, including floor finishes, must comply with regulation 8,
rule 51, of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District.
• All particleboard components will meet ANSI A208.1 for formaldehyde emission
limits, or all exposed particleboard edges will be sealed with a low-VOC sealant or
have a factory-applied, low-VOC sealant prior to installation. All MDF edges will
meet ANSI A208.2 for formaldehyde emission limits, or all exposed MDF edges
will be sealed with a low-VOC sealant or have a factory-applied, low-VOC sealant
prior to installation.

Lead Based Paint (LBP) [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs.
For all houses constructed prior to 1978 - four (4) floors, two (2) window sills and two
(2) window troughs (all randomly selected) plus a blank sample must be submitted
to an EPA-accredited lead analytical laboratory and the dust samples must pass a
dust wipe test for lead content as per the protocol in the HUD Guidelines. Lead-safe
work practices must be followed, and only certified abatement contractors used to
perform the work. See: http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/lbp/hudguidelines/
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 20 yrs.
When stabilization of surfaces containing LBP is impractical, the most affordable
solution for abatement of the component will be chosen. Walls containing LBP may
be covered with drywall or gutted and replaced with drywall. Trim and other wood
or metal components containing LBP may be removed and replaced with similar
materials. Lead-safe work practices must be followed, and only certified abatement
contractors used to perform the work.
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Asbestos [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
Non-friable intact Asbestos materials that are not creating a hazard such as cementitious
exterior wall shingles may be left intact and painted if appropriate. Asbestos-resilient
floor tiles may be labeled as such and covered with underlayment and new resilient
flooring.
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life NA
Friable asbestos components such as boiler or pipe insulation, badly deteriorated
cementitious shingles or deteriorated flooring will be removed and, if necessary,
replaced with non-hazardous materials. Friable must be removed by a licensed asbestos
contractor using licensed workers and disposed of as regulated asbestos containing
materials, transited siding is non friable but must be disposed of as friable components.

Mold [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
Any presence of mold is unacceptable and must be addressed per the National Center
for Healthy Housing protocol “Creating a Healthy Home.”
http://www.nchh.org/Portals/0/Contents/FloodCleanupGuide_screen_.pdf
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life NA
All carpeting, drywall or other gypsum-based wall coverings or any other non-structural
components with mold present will be removed and replaced. The National Center for
Healthy Housing protocol “Creating a Healthy Home” will be followed for remediation of
structural components.

Fire Safety - Egress

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
NA
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life NA
Egress windows are required in all new sleeping and living areas unless other secondary
means of escape requirements are met. The minimum dimensions for egress window
clear openings are 20” wide by 24” tall, with a clear opening of 5.7 square feet. No
bedrooms should be created in attics or basements unless Life Safety Code egress
requirements are met.

Fire and CO Alarms [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Existing fire and smoke, carbon monoxide and security systems that meet code will be
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repaired to operating condition.
Replacement Standard
Directly wired smoke detectors are required on each dwelling floor and in all bedrooms.
CO detectors are required with all fuel-burning furnaces and water heaters in sleep areas
and on each floor level.
SITE

Grading [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs.
All grading adjacent to the building and for a distance of at least 10 feet away from the
building will slope away from the structure at a pitch of at least 1 inch per foot. All bare
earth will be reseeded or sod will be installed to cover.
Replacement Standard
NA

Outbuildings

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs.
Unsafe and blighted structures, including outbuildings, will be removed if it is not
financially feasible to complete the repairs required to make them structurally sound,
leak-free, with lead hazards stabilized. Detached garages should have operable and
lockable doors and windows.
Replacement Standard
No outbuilding replacement is permitted in this program.

Fencing

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 yrs.
Fencing on property lines
is
preferred.
If
repairs
are needed,
replacing sections in kind is
Trees and Shrubbery [GREEN
STANDARD]
permissible
if the budget permits.
Repair
Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs
Replacement
Standard
Trees
that are dead,
dying, or hazardous will be removed. Removal will include cutting
Wholesale
of deteriorated
is discouraged
and
shouldgrade,
only be
close
to the replacement
ground, grinding
of the stumpfencing
to 12 inches
below the
finished
undertaken
if
the
budget
permits.
installation of topsoil and re-seeding.
Replacement Standard
Replacement trees and shrubs are permitted if economically feasible and must be
selected from the State Extension Service list of local, drought-resistant and non-invasive
plant materials. In placement of trees, attention should be paid to shading the house to
reduce air conditioning costs. Also, trees should be located a sufficient distance from
foundations, sidewalls, walkways, driveways, patios and sidewalks in order to avoid
future damage from root growth and branches brushing against the structure. Setbacks
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from structures should typically exceed half of the canopy diameter of a full-grown
example of the species.

Paving And Walks [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 yrs.
Essential paving, such as front sidewalks and driveways with minor defects, will be
repaired to match. Tripping hazards greater than ¾” must be addressed. Non-essential,
highly deteriorated paving, such as sidewalks that are unnecessary, will be removed and
appropriately landscaped.
Replacement Standard
Un-repairable essential walks and driveways will be replaced with permeable paving
when financially feasible or concrete per City Ordinance. Wood-framed, handicappedaccessible ramps are an eligible expense.

Lawn [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 1 yrs.
Bare section of lawn will be reseeded with State Extension Service-recommended,
drought-resistant varieties such as Tall Fescue.
Replacement Standard
Wholesale replacement of lawn grasses is not allowed, over-seeding is permitted with
State Extension Service-recommended, drought-resistant varieties such as Tall Fescue.
EXTERIOR BUILDING SURFACES

Exterior Cladding [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 10 years
Siding and trim will be intact and weatherproof. All exterior wood components will have
a minimum of one continuous coat of paint, and no exterior painted surface will have
any deteriorated paint. Buildings designated as historic will have existing wood siding
repaired in kind. New exterior wood will blend with existing and will be spot-primed and
top-coated in a lead-safe manner.
Replacement Standard
Buildings not designated as historic may have siding replaced with vinyl siding to match
the existing configuration. CertainTeed, Mastic, and Wolverine brands are approved. If
replaced, soffit material will be vented/perforated vinyl. New wood components will be
FSC certified. http://www.fsc.org/
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Exterior Porches

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Deteriorated concrete porches will be repaired when possible. Unsafe wood porch
components will be repaired with readily available materials to conform closely to
historically accurate porches in the neighborhood. Porch repairs will be structurally
sound, with smooth and even decking surfaces. Deteriorated wood structural
components will be replaced with preservative-treated wood.
Replacement Standard
Porches on building designated as historic will be rebuilt to conform closely to
historically accurate porches in the neighborhood. Decks on non-historic porches will be
replaced with 5/4” preservative-treated decking. Replaced railings will meet code.
Replaced wood structural components will be preservative-treated.

Exterior Railings

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Existing handrails will be structurally sound. Guard rails are required on any accessible
area with a walking surface over 30" above the adjacent ground level. Sound railings
may be repaired if it is possible to maintain the existing style. On historic structures
railing repairs will be historically sensitive.
Replacement Standard
Handrails will be present on one side of all interior and exterior steps or stairways with
more than two risers and around porches or platforms over 30" above the adjacent
ground level, and will meet local codes. Handrails and guard rails will conform to the
style of similar components in the neighborhood. On historic structures new railings will
be historically sensitive.

Exterior Steps and Decks

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Steps, stairways, and porch decks will be structurally sound, reasonably level, with
smooth and even surfaces. Repairs will match existing materials,
Replacement Standard
In non-historic structures wood decking may be replaced with 5/4” X 6” preservativetreated material and new steps will be constructed from nominal 2” preservative-treated
wood. On historic structures new wood decking will be ¾” clear T & G fir, primed on all 6
sides before installation.

Exterior House Numbers and Mailboxes

Repair & Replacement Standard

Minimum Life 5 years
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All houses will have 4” house numbers clearly displayed near the front door, and a
standard size mailbox, preferably wall-hung at the entrance.
FOUNDATIONS AND STRUCTURE

Firewalls

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Party walls will be maintained without cracks and plaster deterioration and covered with
5/8" type X gypsum, glued and screwed to structure.
Replacement Standard
When frame walls and floors adjoining other dwellings are gutted, new wall finish
installations will conform to local requirements for fire ratings.

Foundations

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 15 years
Foundations will be repaired to be sound, reasonably level, and free from movement.
Replacement Standard
Foundation replacements are beyond the scope of the program.

Structural Walls

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 15 years
Structural framing and masonry will be free from visible deterioration, rot, or serious
termite damage, and be adequately sized for current loads. Prior to rehab, all sagging
floor joists or rafters will be visually inspected, and significant structural damage and its
cause will be corrected.
Replacement Standard
New structural walls will be minimum 2" x 4", 16" OC. All exterior walls that are part of
the building envelope (the air barrier and thermal barrier separating the conditioned
space from the non-conditioned space) will be insulated with a minimum R-13 insulation
and sheathed to code.

Additions

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
NA
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 60 years
New additions are acceptable only when – for marketing and livability reasons – it is
necessary to add additional bedroom space. Stamped plans must be submitted to the
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City Building Official for review and approval prior to bidding. All standards for Exterior
Building Surfaces, Roofing, Windows and Doors, Insulation and Ventilation, Plumbing,
Electrical, HVAC apply.
WINDOWS AND DOORS

Interior Doors

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Baths and occupied bedrooms will have operating doors and lock sets.
Replacement Standard
Hollow-core, pressed-wood product consistent with the style of existing doors including
a brass-plated bedroom lock set.

Exterior Doors

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Exterior doors will be solid, weather-stripped and will operate smoothly. They will
include a peep site, a dead bolt, and an entrance lock set.
Replacement Standard
Replacement doors at the front of the property for historically significant buildings will
be historically sensitive. Steel, six-panel doors may be installed at entrances not visible
from the front street and on the front of the property for buildings that are not
historically significant. Dead bolt locks will be installed on all exterior doors keyed to
match. All new doors will be weather-stripped to be air tight.

Windows [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
All windows will operate, remain in an open position when placed there, lock when
closed and the open section will be covered with a screen.
Replacement Standard
Windows that are not repairable may be replaced and will meet the ENERGY STAR
standard for this geographic region.
http://www.energystar.gov/index.cfm?c=windows_doors.pr_anat_window
Windows on key façades of historically sensitive properties will be wood of the style
original to the building. New windows on other properties may be vinyl and doubleglazed.

Repair Standard

Basement Windows

Minimum Life 5 years
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A minimum of 2 basement windows on opposite sides of the building must be operable
for ventilation, in good working order, and lockable.
Replacement Standard
Basement windows may be replaced with glass block. If so, a minimum of 2 glass block
windows on opposite sides of the building must have operable and lockable center vents.
ROOFING

Flat and Low-Slope Roofing

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 2 years
Built-up roofing that is leak-free will be re-coated and flashing and accessories repaired if
their minimum life is questionable.
Replacement Standard
The most cost-effective roof – either 3-ply, hot built-up or EPDM – will be installed.

Pitched Roofs

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Missing and leaking shingles and flashing will be repaired on otherwise functional roofs.
Slate, metal and tile roofs will be repaired when possible. Antennae will be removed.
Replacement Standard
No more than 2 layers of roofing are permitted. Fiberglass, asphalt, 3-tab, class A
shingles with a prorated 25-year warranty with a continuous ridge vent will be installed
over 15-lb. felt with new drip edge on all edges.

Gutters and Downspouts [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Gutters and downspouts must be in good repair, leak free and collect storm water from
all lower roof edges. Concrete splash blocks will be installed to move water away from
the foundation. The system must move all storm water away from the building and
prevent water from entering the structure. In addition to positive drainage away from
the building, outlets will be a minimum of 3 feet away from the foundation whenever
there is a history of water problems.
Replacement Standard
Gutters and downspouts will be installed and collect storm water from all lower roof
edges. Concrete splash blocks will be installed to move water away from the foundation.
The system must move all storm water away from the building and prevent water from
entering the structure. In addition to positive drainage away from the building, outlets
will be a minimum of 3 feet away from the foundation whenever there is a history of
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water problems.
INSULATION AND VENTILATION

Infiltration [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life
All homes or units will be tested with a Blower Door and any existing air sealing will be
repaired to attain a maximum 0.35 Air Changes per Hour at 50 Pascal pressure (0.35
ACH50).
Replacement Standard
All homes or units will be air sealed to meet the minimum Blower Door test
requirements of 0.35 Air Changes per Hour at 50 Pascal pressure (0.35 ACH50).

Whole House Ventilation [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
All homes shall meet the most recent ASHRAE 62.2 standard by using one bathroom fan
continuously operating at a verified CFM rate sufficient to meet the ASHRAE standard
and creating < 0.3 Sones of fan noise. The fan will also have a > 80 CFM boost function
switched one of three ways: by a switch at the entrance, with an adjustable time-delay
function that runs the fan for an additional period after the switch is turned off; or a
motion detector with an adjustable time-delay function that runs the fan for an
additional period after the motion detector ceases to see motion; or by a humidistat.
Replacement Standard
As stated in the Repair Standard

Bath Ventilation [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
NA
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 10 years
One bathroom must have a bath fan that meets the Whole House Ventilation
requirement and also have a > 80 CFM boost function switched one of three ways: by a
switch at the entrance, with an adjustable time-delay function that runs the fan for an
additional period after the switch is turned off; or a motion detector with an adjustable
time-delay function that runs the fan for an additional period after the motion detector
ceases to see motion; or by a humidistat. Any additional bathrooms must be
mechanically vented to the > 80 CFM standard with the time-delay switching described
above.
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Kitchen Ventilation [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 2 years
All kitchens must have functional mechanical ventilation operating at a minimum 120
CFM.
Replacement Standard
All kitchens must have mechanical ventilation operating at a maximum of 20 Sones and
producing a minimum of 150 CFM after accounting for ducting losses. All ductwork will
be heavy gauge galvanized metal, air tight with mastic-sealed seams (no duct tape). It is
preferred that mechanical ventilation exit at side walls and not at the soffit to minimize
the potential for ice damming.

Roof Ventilation [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
1 square foot of free venting must be supplied for every SF of area directly under the
roof if there is no soffit venting. 1 square foot of free venting must be supplied for every
300 SF of area directly under the roof if 20% of the venting is soffit vent and if the living
space ceiling directly below the roof has a rating of one perm or less. (1 perm is
achievable with a coating of ICI Dulux Ultra Hide Vapor Barrier paint 1060-1200 per
manufacturer’s instructions)
Replacement Standard
The venting requirement is the same as with the Repair Standard above with a strong
preference for a combination of ridge vents, soffit vents and the one perm-rated ceiling
required for the 1 to 300 ratio.
INTERIOR STANDARDS

Interior Walls and Ceilings

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
Holes, cracks and deteriorated and un-keyed plaster will be repaired to match the
surrounding surfaces. All visual surfaces will be stabilized to minimize lead paint hazards
using premium vinyl acrylic paint.
Replacement Standard
When necessary plaster will be replace by ½” gypsum board. Fire-rated assemblies will
be specified on a project-by-project basis as required by local codes.

Flooring [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
Bathroom, kitchen and other water-susceptible floor areas will be covered with waterresistant flooring that is free from tears or tripping hazards. Damaged wood floor will be
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repaired. When existing deteriorated carpet is installed over hardwood floors, the
hardwood will be refinished whenever possible. Basement floors will be continuous
concrete at least 1" thick.
Replacement Standard
Baths will receive resilient sheet goods over plywood underlayment, and kitchens will
receive resilient sheet goods or tile over plywood underlayment. Whenever possible
rooms other than kitchens and baths with existing wood flooring will be maintained as
wood floors and refinished when appropriate. Rooms other than kitchens or baths
without usable wood floors may be finished with carpet and associated products that are
Carpet and Rug Institute’s Green Label certified. New basement slabs will be at least 3"
thick and have a 6-mil vapor barrier.

Closets

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Existing closets with a minimum depth of 2 feet will be maintained in good repair and
have a shelf and clothes rod.
Replacement Standard
New closets may be created if there is a significant lack of storage space and the budget
permits. New closets will have a depth of 2 feet and include a shelf and clothes rod.

Kitchen Cabinets and Countertop [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
Kitchens will have a minimum of 10 feet of countertop with base and wall cabinets (or
dishwasher) to match. Existing cabinets with hardwood doors and face frames may be
repaired if in good condition. All cabinets will be sound and cleanable.
Replacement Standard
New kitchen cabinets will meet the ANSI A208.1 and A208.2 standard for formaldehyde
content of particleboard and MDF, or have exposed edges of particleboard and MDF
sealed to prevent the out-gassing of formaldehyde. Cabinets will have hardwood doors
and face frames. There will be a minimum of 10 lineal feet of post-formed countertop
with corresponding base cabinets and wall cabinets, and a dishwasher. Corners in
countertop designs are permitted if factory assembled. A drawer base (12” or 15”) will
be included in new cabinetry. A plastic laminate panel to match the countertop will be
installed as a base cabinet to wall cabinet backsplash behind the range and extending 6
inches past the range on both sides, or if the range is in a corner along the side wall and
trimmed with chrome metal edging.
ELECTRIC

Ground Fault Interrupter Circuits
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Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Non-functioning GFCIs will be replaced. Kitchen counter, bath and laundry receptacles
within 6' of a sink will be replaced with a GFCI-protected receptacle or protected by a
GFCI device.
Replacement Standard
Kitchen counter, bath and laundry receptacles within 6' of a sink will be replaced with a
GFCI-protected receptacle or protected by a GFCI device.

Passage Lighting [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 7 years
All lights and switches in hallways, stairs and other passages will be operable and safe.
Existing fixtures with incandescent lamp fittings will have minimum 7W CFL replacement
lamps installed.
Replacement Standard
All halls, stairs and rooms necessary to cross to other rooms and stairways must be well
lit and controlled by a 3-way switch using concealed wiring. Attics, basements and crawl
spaces must have utility fixtures. All new light fixtures will be ENERGY STAR labeled.

Kitchen Electric Distribution

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Existing receptacles, fixtures and switches will be safe and grounded.
Replacement Standard
Permanently installed or proposed stoves, refrigerators, freezers, dishwashers and
disposals, washers and dryers will have separate circuits sized to N.E.C. Two separate 20amp counter circuits are required with each kitchen area.

Interior Electric Distribution

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 7 years
Exposed knob and tube will be replaced. Every room will have a minimum of two duplex
receptacles, placed on separate walls and one light fixture or receptacle switched at each
room entrance. Where the source wiring circuit is accessible (e.g.. first floor above
basements, in gutted rooms, etc.), receptacles will be grounded. All switch, receptacle,
and junction boxes will have appropriate cover plates. Wiring will be free from hazard,
and all circuits will be properly protected at the panel. Floor receptacles will be removed
and a metal cover plate installed. Exposed conduit is allowed. Bedrooms receptacles will
be protected by an Arc Fault breaker. There must be one electrical receptacle at the
service panel. Basements will have a minimum of 3 keyless bare bulb fixtures switched
at the top of the stairs.
Replacement Standard
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When a room's wall finishes are removed, it will be rewired to the latest version of the
National Electric Code.

Service and Panel

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 10 years
Distribution panels will have a main disconnect, at least 10 circuit-breaker-protected
circuits, a 100-amp minimum capacity and be adequate to safely supply existing and
proposed devices. If a working central air conditioning system is present, the minimum
service will be 150 amp.
Replacement Standard
200-amp service with a main disconnect panel containing at least 30 circuit breaker
positions.
PLUMBING SYSTEM

Drain, Waste, Vent Lines

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 1 year
Waste and vent lines must function without losing the trap seal.
Replacement Standard
When walls are removed exposing vent and waste lines those lines will be reworked to
the current mechanical code.

Plumbing Fixtures [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
All fixtures and faucets will have working, drip-free components. Toilets with greater
that a 1.6 GPF rating will be replaced with a maximum 1.3 GPF model.
Replacement Standard
Single lever, metal faucets and shower diverters with 15-year, drip-free warranty and
maximum 2.0 GPM flow. White ceramic low-flow toilets (1.3 Gal), double bowl stainless
steel sinks, and fiberglass tubs with surrounds.

Plumbing Minimum Equipment [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
Existing equipment will be repaired to conform to the Housing Quality Standards.
Replacement Standard
Every dwelling unit will have a minimum of one single bowl sink with hot and cold
running water in the kitchen and at least one bathroom containing a vanity with a sink,
and a shower/tub unit, both with hot and cold running water, and a toilet. Redesigned
kitchens will include an ENERGY STAR-labeled dishwasher.
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http://www.hudnsphelp.info/media/resources/GuidanceonNSPEligibleAppliancePurchas
es.pdf

Water Heaters

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 7 years
Each housing unit will have a working water heater less than 3 years old with a minimum
capacity of 40 gallons if it is gas-fired. Gas water heaters more than 3 years old may be
repaired if it is clear that a repair will make it operable. All electric water heaters will be
replaced with a gas-fired model.
Replacement Standard
All units will have a minimum 40-gallon, gas-fired water heater with a 10-year warranty
installed to the mechanical code. High efficiency power-vented or sealed combustion
tankless models are required.

Water Supply

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 10 years
The main shut off valve must be operable and completely stop the flow of water to the
house. All fixtures must be leak-free and deliver sufficient cold water and, where
applicable, hot water.
Replacement Standard
The main shut off valve must be operable and completely stop the flow of water to the
house, and should be replaced if it does not. Lead and galvanized pipe that is part of the
water service or the distribution system will be replaced with copper. All fixtures will
have brass shut off valves. One freeze-protected exterior hose bib is required.
HVAC

Air Conditioning [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life - NA
Non-functioning, non-repairable air conditioners will be removed and drained of all CFCs.
Existing central air conditioning will be inspected, serviced and refurbished to operate
safely.
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 20 years
New HVAC systems will have a rough-in installed for air conditioning (> 13 SEER)

Chimney Repair

Repair Standard
Minimum Life NA
Unused chimneys will be removed to below the roof line wherever roofing is replaced.
Unsound chimneys will be repaired or removed. When chimneys must be used for
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combustion ventilation, they will be relined.
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life NA
The creation of new flues is not recommended in this program. The use of high
efficiency closed combustion appliances is recommended to avoid the need for new
flues. Replacement furnace flues, when required, will be metal double- or triple-walled
as recommended by the furnace manufacturer.

Heating System [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 5 years
Workable existing heating systems will be inspected and serviced to operate in a safe
manner. Regardless of condition, resistance electric heating systems will be removed
and replaced with systems as described below, unless the home has either a very low
heating load to super-insulation, solar gain or a mild climate.
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 25 years
Gas-fired heating plants will be rated at > 92% AFUE or better. Oil-fired furnaces will be
rated at > 83% AFUE or better. Oil-fired boilers will be rated at > 85% AFUE or better.
Heat pumps will be rated at > 15 SEER. Setback thermostats are required. When electric
resistance heating systems are replaced, soffits for ductwork and/or new distribution
pipes for hot water heating systems will be provided. Up to 4 lineal feet of resistance
electric heating strips per 1000 square feet of floor area may be retained or installed in
areas that are not cost effective to heat via ductwork or hot water distribution systems.
APPLIANCES

Kitchen Appliances [GREEN STANDARD]

Repair Standard
Minimum Life 3 years
All units will have a working and cleanable range. If there is an existing dishwasher in
working and cleanable condition, it may be retained with minor repairs.
Replacement Standard
Minimum Life 15 years
All redesigned kitchens will have ENERGY STAR-labeled appliances where applicable. All
new cooking ranges will be electric.
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Section 1.10
(a)

Section 3 Employment and Economic Opportunities

Grant Management

Policy
24 CFR Part 135
The City of Anderson shall, to the greatest extent feasible, provide opportunities to low- and very lowincome persons residing in the City and to those businesses meeting the definition of "Section 3
Business Concern".
Intent: Create opportunities beyond bricks and mortar, Promote self-sufficiency amongst low-income
persons, Level the playing field for Section 3 residents and businesses, Strengthen local economy.
Who is required to Comply? Any entity which receives assistance exceeding $200,000 directly from HUD
or from another HUD recipient. The requirement also apply to contractors/subcontractors that receive
awards exceeding $100,000.
Section 3 projects include: Housing Construction, Housing Rehabilitation, Public Construction.
Failure to comply with Section 3: Debarment, Suspension, Limited Denial of Participation. HUD holds
direct recipients of covered funding accountable for their own compliance and the compliance of their
contractors.
Triggering Responsibilities: Section 3 regulations do not require hiring or subcontracting unless it is
necessary to complete the project. Section 3 is not an entitlement, it is an opportunity. Section 3 is
triggered when covered projects require “new” hires or sub-contracting.

DEFINED TERMS OF POLICY







Section 3 Recipient – means any entity which receives Section 3 covered assistance, directly
from HUD or from another recipient and includes the city, its sub-recipients and contractors.
Section 3 Resident – A section 3 resident is
o A public housing resident; or
o A low- or very low-income person residing in the metropolitan area in which the Section
3 covered assistance is expended.
Section 3 Business Concern(s) – Section 3 Business Concerns are businesses that can provide
evidence that they meet one of the following:
o 51% or more owned by Section 3 residents; or
o At least 30% of its full time employees include persons that are currently Section 3
residents, or within three years of the date of first employment with the business
concern were Section 3 residents; or
o Provides evidence, as required, of a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25% of the
dollar award of all subcontracts to be awarded to business concerns that meet the
qualifications in the above two paragraphs.
Section 3 Covered Assistance – City’s housing assistance and community development
assistance expended for housing rehabilitation, housing construction or other public
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construction projects, such as CDBG, HOME, ESG or other public construction project (which
includes other buildings or improvements, regardless of ownership).
Section 3 Covered Contract – means a contract or subcontract (including a professional service
contract) awarded by the city or contractor for work generated by the expenditure of Section 3
Covered Assistance, or for work arising in connection with a Section 3 Covered Project. “Section
3 Covered Contracts” also do not include contracts for the purchase of supplies and materials.
However, whenever a contract for materials includes the installation of the materials, the
contract constitutes a Section 3 Covered Contract. For example, a contract for the purchase and
installation of a furnace would be a Section 3 Covered Contract because the contract is for work
(i.e., the installation of the furnace) and thus is covered by Section 3.
Section 3 Covered Project – A section 3 covered project involves the construction or
rehabilitation of housing (including reduction of lead-based paint hazards), or other public
construction including but not limited to street repair, sewage line repair or installation, and
updates to building facades.

Procedure
RESPONSIBILITIES




GOALS


The City and a sub-recipient that receives community development or housing assistance
covered by Section 3 have the responsibility to comply with Section 3 in its own operations. This
responsibility includes:
o Notifying Section 3 residents and businesses about jobs and contracts generated by Section
3 covered assistance so that residents may seek jobs and businesses may submit
bids/proposals for available contracts;
o Notifying potential contractors of the objectives of Section 3 and ways in which each
contractor can assist the sub-recipient to meet its goal;
o Facilitating the training and employment of Section 3 residents and the award of contracts
to Section 3 business concerns; and
o Documenting the action that the sub-recipient takes to comply with the Section 3
requirements, the results of the actions, and impediments, if any.
The City and its sub-recipient(s) have a responsibility to “ensure compliance” of their contractors
and subcontractors. This means that a sub-recipient must:
o Notify contractors of their responsibilities under Section 3 including, but not limited to,
incorporating the Section 3 Clause in contract documents.
o Refrain from entering into contracts with contractors that are in violation of the
regulations in 24 CFR Part 135.
o Respond to complaints made to the recipient by Section 3 residents or business
concerns that the sub-recipient, a contractor or subcontractor, is not in compliance with
24 CFR Part 135.
o Cooperate with HUD in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors
when allegations are made that the sub-recipient’s contractors and subcontractors are
not in compliance with the regulation of 24 CFR Part 135.
All contractors undertaking Section 3 covered projects and activities are expected to meet the
Section 3 requirements. To demonstrate compliance with the "greatest extent feasible"
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requirement of Section 3, contractors must meet the goals set forth below for providing
training, employment and contracting opportunities to Section 3 residents and Section 3
business concerns. To meet the goals, contractors must select Section 3 residents based on the
following priorities pursuant to § 135.34, 24 CFR Part 135:
o First Priority - Residents of the development where the work is to be performed.
o Second Priority - Other residents of the neighborhood where the work is to be
performed.
o Third Priority - Other residents of the neighborhood who are participants in HUD
Youthbuild or others federal, state, and local job programs being carried out in the city.
o Fourth Priority - Other persons from the project metropolitan area who meet the
definition of Section 3 resident contained in § 135.5 of 24 CFR Part 135.

EMPLOYMENT




All contractors will seek low- or very low-income persons residing in the property metropolitan
area for 30% of all new hires. When applicable, the contractor must show evidence of seeking
project residents for 15% of the new hires.
Nothing in this policy and procedures shall be construed to require the employment or
contracting of a Section 3 resident or contractor who does not meet the qualifications of the
position to be filled or who cannot perform the contract.

PREFERENCE FOR SECTION 3 BUSINESS CONCERNS


Preference shall be awarded to Section 3 Business Concerns according to the following system:
o Where the Section 3 Covered Contract is to be awarded based upon the lowest price,
the contract shall be awarded to the qualified Section 3 Business Concern with the
lowest responsive quotation, if it is reasonable and no more than 10 percent higher than
the quotation of the lowest responsive quotation from any qualified source. If no
responsive quotation by a qualified Section 3 Business Concern is within 10 percent of
the lowest responsive quotation from any qualified source, the award shall be made to
the source with the lowest quotation. If it is reasonable and no more than 10 percent
higher than the quotation of the lowest responsive quotation from any qualified source.
If no responsive quotation by a qualified Section 3 Business Concern is within 10 percent
of the lowest responsive quotation from any qualified source, the award shall be made
to the source with the lowest quotation.
o Where the Section 3 Covered Contract is to be awarded based on factors other than
price, a request for quotations shall be issued by developing the particulars of the
solicitation, including a rating system for the assignment of points to evaluate the merits
of each quotation. The solicitation shall identify all factors to be considered, including
price or cost. The rating system shall provide for a range of 15 to 25 percent of the total
number of available rating points to be set aside for the provision of preference for
Section 3 Business Concerns. The purchase order shall be awarded to the responsible
firm whose quotation is the most advantageous, considering price and all other factors
specified in the rating system.
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Procurement by Sealed Bids (Competitive Bids, Invitations for Bids) - Preference in the award of
Section 3 Covered Contracts that are awarded under a sealed bid process may be provided as
follows:
o Bids shall be solicited from all businesses (Section 3 Business Concerns, and non-Section
3 Business Concerns). An award shall be made to the qualified Section 3 Business
Concern with the highest priority ranking and with the lowest responsive bid if that bid:
 Is within the maximum total contract price established in the budget for the
specific project for which bids are being taken; and
 Is not more than "X" higher than the total bid price of the lowest responsive bid
from any responsible bidder. "X" is determined as follows:
X = lesser of:
When the lowest responsive bid is less than $100,000 . . . . 10% of that bid or $9,000
When the lowest responsive bid is:
At least $100,000, but less than $200,000 . . . . 9% of that bid or $16,000
At least $200,000, but less than $300,000 . . . . 8% of that bid or $21,000
At least $300,000, but less than $400,000 . . . . 7% of that bid or $24,000
At least $400,000, but less than $500,000 . . . . 6% of that bid or $25,000
At least $500,000, but less than $1 million …….5% of that bid or $40,000
At least $1 million, but less than $2 million. ……4% of that bid or $60,000
At least $2 million, but less than $4 million. ……3% of that bid or $80,000
At least $4 or more . . . . 2% of the lowest responsive bid, with no dollar limit.
o If no responsive bid by a Section 3 Business Concern meets the requirements of the defined
terms of the policy of this responsive bid.
o In both the defined terms of the policy and responsibilities, a bidder, to be considered as
responsible, must demonstrate compliance with the "greatest extent feasible" requirement
of Section 3.

COMPLIANCE


HUD holds the City of Anderson accountable for compliance with Section 3 requirements. In its
written agreement with its housing partners, city will site Section 3 obligations. When a housing
partner is unable to meet Section 3 goals, the city will place the burden of proving compliance
with Section 3 on the recipient. The minimum numerical goal for employment is 30 percent of
the aggregate number of new hires shall be Section 3 residents annually—i.e., 1 out of 3 new
employees needed to complete a Section 3 covered project/activity shall be a Section 3 resident.
The minimum goals for contracting are:
o Ten percent of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered contracts for building
trades work for maintenance, repair, modernization or development of public or Indian
housing or building trades work arising in connection with housing rehabilitation,
housing construction and other public construction, shall be awarded to Section 3
businesses; and
o Three 3 percent of the total dollar amount of all non-construction Section 3 covered
contracts, shall be awarded to Section 3 businesses.

SAFE HARBOR AND COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS
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(i)

In the absent of evidence to the contrary (i.e., evidence that efforts to the “greatest extent
feasible” were not expended), if a sub-recipient or contractor meets the minimum numerical
goals shown above, the recipient or contractor is considered to have complied with Section 3
preference requirements.
The sub-recipient will be expected to demonstrate why it was not feasible to meet the goals.
o At a minimum, if sub-recipients of Section 3 Assistance are unable to meet their Section
3 training, hiring, and contracting goals, they should sponsor or participate in upward
mobility programs, hire eligible residents in trainee positions with regard to training and
employment, or form Section 3 joint ventures with various local employment agencies.

Drug Free Workplace Policy

Policy
The City of Anderson intends to help provide a safe and drug-free work environment for our clients and
our employees. With this goal in mind and because of the serious drug abuse problem in today's
workplace, we are establishing the following policy for existing and future employees of the city.
If an employee is tested for drugs outside of the employment context and the results indicate a violation
of this policy, or if an employee refuses a request to submit to testing under this policy, the employee
may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and possibly including discharge from
employment. In such a case, the employee will be given an opportunity to explain the circumstances
prior to any final employment action becoming effective.
Procedure
The City explicitly prohibits:
 The use, possession, solicitation for, or sale of narcotics or other illegal drugs, or prescription
medication without a prescription on city premises or while performing an assignment.
 Being impaired or under the influence of legal or illegal drugs away from the city, if such
impairment or influence adversely affects the employee's work performance, the safety of the
employee or of others, or puts at risk the city's reputation.
 Possession, use, solicitation for, or sale of legal or illegal drugs away from the city, if such activity
or involvement adversely affects the employee's work performance, the safety of the employee
or of others, or puts at risk the city's reputation.
 The presence of any detectable amount of prohibited substances in the employee's system
while at work, while on the premises of the city, or while on city business. "Prohibited
substances" include illegal drugs or prescription drugs not taken in accordance with a
prescription given to the employee.
The City will conduct drug testing under any of the following circumstances:
 For-Cause Testing: The City may ask an employee to submit to a drug test at any time it feels
that the employee may be under the influence of drugs, including, but not limited to, the
following circumstances: evidence of drugs on or about the employee's person or in the
employee's vicinity, unusual conduct on the employee's part that suggests impairment or
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influence of drugs, negative performance patterns, or excessive and unexplained absenteeism or
tardiness.
Post-Accident Testing: Any employee involved in an on-the-job accident or injury under
circumstances that suggest possible use or influence of drugs in the accident or injury event may
be asked to submit to a drug test. "Involved in an on-the-job accident or injury" means not only
the one who was or could have been injured, but also any employee who potentially
contributed to the accident or injury event in any way.
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CHAPTER 2. PROGRAM
ACTIVITIES
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Section 2.01
(a)

Public Services

Program Guidelines

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
The City of Anderson may choose to use CDBG funds to provide public services, including labor,
supplies, materials, operations and maintenance of facilities in which service activities occur.
CDBG funding may not be used just to support nonprofit operating costs.
CDBG funding for public services may not exceed the combined total of:
•
•

15% of the City of Anderson’s annual entitlement grant
15% of the City of Anderson’s program income for the prior year.

24 CFR 570.208
Public Services activities funded by CDBG may be considered eligible if they meet one of the following
national objectives:
•
•
•

LMI Benefit
o Area Benefit
o Limited Clientele
Slum and Blight - Area Basis
Urgent Need

Procedure
The City of Anderson Community Development Department (CDD) shall calculate the Public Services
cap annually and ensure that it does not provide funding for public service activities in excess of the
allowable amount.
The CDBG program provides some exceptions to the 15% cap for Public Services (such as those carried
out by a CBDO and pursuant to a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy, microenterprise assistance,
and more). CDD staff shall review applications and ensure that the City’s CDBG funds are maximized
to meet the needs set forth in the Consolidated Plan.
Applicants for CDBG funds will indicate which national objective the project will meet during the
application process. The City of Anderson CDD will verify that the project is eligible and feasible based
on the CDBG requirements.
CDBG applicants shall be required to provide a project budget with the application package and to
document costs incurred during the program period. City of Anderson staff shall review the
application budget, draw requests, and the subrecipient’s documented costs to ensure funds are used
to support the provision of services.
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(i)

CDBG Specific Information

1)

Award Amounts

Policy
The City of Anderson does not impose award minimum or maximum amounts.

(b)

Project Application Intake

Policy
All organizations awarded CDBG funds to provide Public Services must be financially viable and able to
document that there is sufficient management expertise to successfully operate the proposed
program and the CDBG funds.

Procedure
The CDD shall solicit applications from entities throughout the City and region. The CDD shall
advertise the CDBG application cycle and application workshop in the following manner:
•
•
•
•

A notice in the newspaper of legal record
A notice on the City of Anderson main webpage
A notice on the City of Anderson CDD main webpage
Email to the CDD’s email list, current and previously funded organizations, and area social
service agencies.

The CDD will host an application workshop. A representative of each entity applying for CDBG funds
is required to attend the application workshop. The application workshop sign-in sheet will be used
to determine if an applicant organization participated in the application workshop.
Applicants will have a minimum of 30 days from application announcement until the due date.
Recordkeeping - All applications, supporting application information, and applicable correspondence
shall be placed in a permanent file. All files shall be maintained in a secure place with limited access
by authorized personnel.

(c)

Project Eligibility

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
A public service must be either a new service or a quantifiable increase in the level of an existing
service above that which has been provided by or on behalf of the unit of general local government
(through funds raised by the unit or received by the unit from the State in which it is located) in the
12 calendar months before the submission of the action plan.
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24 CFR 570.200 (h)(1)(i)
The City of Anderson shall fund CDBG activities that were identified as a need in the Consolidated
Plan.
24 CFR 570.207
INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES:
•
•
•
•

Political activities
Ongoing grants or non-emergency payments (defined as more than 3 consecutive months) to
individuals for their food, clothing, rent, utilities, or other income payments
On-going operations (such as operating rental housing) as a stand-alone public service
Public Services provided at religious events or Public Services that require a prayer.

Procedure
In order to ensure that the City of Anderson provides funding for those activities identified as a need
in the Consolidated Plan, The CDD shall either:
•
•

Refer applicants to the City of Anderson Consolidated Plan to determine project eligibility
List all eligible activities identified in the Consolidated Plan in the CDBG Application Package.

Applicants for CDBG funds will indicate if the service they are to provide is a new service. Prior funded
services will be required to indicate their funding source(s) and service levels for the prior Program
Year and their proposed service levels for the current Program Year.
CDD staff shall review applications and ensure that Public Service activities are either a new service or
a quantifiable increase in the level of an existing service above that which has been provided by or on
behalf of the unit of general local government before the submission of the action plan.

(d)

Written Agreements

Policy
24 CFR 570.503
The written agreement is a legally binding document executed between the City of Anderson and the
organization receiving funds for the purposed of carrying out an eligible CDBG or HOME activity(s).
HUD CDBG regulations require that the City of Anderson have written Agreements in effect for each
subrecipient before giving out any CDBG funds. The written Agreement must remain in effect during
any period that the subrecipient has control over any CDBG funds, including program income.
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD staff will send out the written agreement upon completion of all application
requirements and completion of the environmental review, unless there is administrative funding
included in the budget for the purpose of reimbursement of environmental review preparation funds.
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1. The City of Anderson CDD uses the boiler-plate written agreements approved by its legal
counsel to prepare the written agreements
2. The City of Anderson CDD customizes the pre-approved boiler-plate written agreement based
on specifics of each project
3. The written agreement is executed by the sub-recipient
4. The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CDD and approves
and signs the agreement
5. The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement
are committed to that IDIS activity
6. City of Anderson CDD staff will periodically review the IDIS reports and track written
agreements, comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up and all related reporting.

(e)

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
Upon receipt of a fully executed written agreement, CDD staff shall enter the CDBG funded project
into the IDIS system.

(f)

Monitoring

Policy
24 CFR 570.501(b), 24 CFR 85.40(a) and (e), and 24 CFR 84.51(a)
The City of Anderson is responsible for ensuring that all CDBG funds under its oversight are used in
accordance with all program requirements, and for determining the adequacy of its sub-recipients’
performance. Accordingly, the City of Anderson CDD shall make site visits and review program files as
necessary to fulfill these responsibilities.

Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring CDBG funded projects.
Step 1 – Conduct Risk Assessment (in accordance with Notice CDP-14-04)
Step 2 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 3 – Conduct a Desk Review (annually)
Step 4 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 6 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 7 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
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Step 8 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 9 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 10 – Distribute Letters and Documents
CONDUCT RISK ASSESSMENT
The City of Anderson shall conduct a risk assessment in order to determine the appropriate
monitoring efforts. High risk ratings indicate the need for a greater level of review and an on-site
monitoring review.
The City of Anderson CDBG Program Risk Assessment Checklist shall be maintained in the project file.
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
• Schedule monitoring date and time (monitor up to 30% of sub-recipients annually)
• Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
• Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
• Identify specific files and information for review
• Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview
PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
sent to the CDBG sub-recipient. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Project grant number
Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
Due date of any correction actions for each finding
Specific steps the sub-recipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
Findings that may have been resolved on site
The opportunity for the sub-recipient to contest any findings
An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided onsite, if appropriate.

TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
•
•

If a sub-recipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, staff shall contact the subrecipient via telephone.
If a sub-recipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the sub-recipient a letter
requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences of
failure to comply with applicable regulations.
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•
•
•
•

CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is
unsatisfactory or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating
specific additional action required and a new due date.
If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for onsite technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.
CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone
calls related to corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be
placed in the project file.

CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
• Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to
address the identified problems
• Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Restrict subrecipient payment requests
• Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
• Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
• Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
• Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
• Initiate legal action
CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff
shall send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the
letter in the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file.
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Staff shall send copies of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing
monitoring findings letter, if applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the
subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review.
Procedure
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review. The desk review shall include examining
information and materials provided by the CDBG grantee in order to track performance and identify
any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the examination of the following
materials:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Progress reports
Funding agreements
Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
IDIS reports
Correspondence
Previous monitoring reviews
Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
Other relevant documents.

When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-Site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring for those programs that
are identified as high risk during as well as those program in which the project or the subrecipient is
known to have had or be having difficulties.

Procedure
PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Page 154 of 241

City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact each CDBG subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site
monitoring review, and agree upon a date.
Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring review, staff shall send a formal letter to
the CDBG subrecipient that includes:
•
•
•
•

Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
Scope of monitoring
Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.

CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference
City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning of on-site monitoring
review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff and
attempt to ensure that the CDBG subrecipient understands the purpose, scope, and schedule for the
monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis
City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring
Checklist as well as additional material related to any specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a
clear record of all information reviewed and conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference
At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an exit
conference with the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff. The purpose of the exit conference is to:
•
•
•
•

(g)

Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
Provide the CDBG subrecipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
Secure additional information to clarify or support the CDBG subrecipient position
Provide an opportunity for the CDBG subrecipient to report on steps it is already undertaking
to address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

Project Closeout

Policy
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
• All costs to be paid with CDBG funds have been incurred, with the exception of closeout costs
(e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
• The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
• The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met,
or if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open
for the purpose of securing performance.
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Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the subrecipient to provide the following documents within 90
days of project completion or upon notification:
• A final performance or progress report
• A financial status report (including all program income)
• A final request for payment
• A final inventory of property in the subrecipient’s possession that was acquired or improved with
CDBG funds.
Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the subrecipient, listed above, the City of
Anderson CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the subrecipient. The closeout agreement
shall specify:
• Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the closeout
agreement is signed
• The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds
• The subrecipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:
• The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or review
• The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections, or other
transactions
• Record retention
• Property management and disposition requirements
• Audit requirements
• Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.02
(a)

Homeowner Rehabilitation

Program Guidelines

Policy
CDBG and HOME funds may be used to assist low-income homeowners in the rehabilitation of their
homes. Rehabilitation assistance can be used to make essential improvements, bring houses up to
physical codes, as well as improve energy efficiency and handicapped accessibility. Activities of this
type serve to improve the living conditions of individual households and help avoid neighborhood
blight.
Procedure
The City’s Homeowner Rehabilitation Program is funded by federal funds awarded through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Community Development Department
(CDD) is authorized by the City to administer the housing program and is responsible for executing all
program activities in compliance with 24 CFR Part 92, policies, procedures, and other applicable state,
federal, and local regulations. CDD Program Administrator is responsible for general oversight of the
programs which includes the allocation of resources, policy development/oversight, and community
relations associated with the program. The Program Administrator shall be responsible for updating
the program’s policy and procedures. Administration and oversight includes the following actions:









Implementing eligibility criteria for the various programs;
Processing and approving program applications;
Preparing work orders and bid documents;
Negotiating and processing contracts between eligible property owners and private
contractors for rehabilitation work in compliance with procurement procedures;
Oversight of work and conducting progress inspections during construction;
Preparing security documents including mortgages and notes;
Preparing and executing subordination agreements for property owners who continue to
meet the subordination requirements of the housing programs (if applicable); and
Preparing and executing affordability agreements, contractor/homeowner agreements.

These guidelines may be amended based upon any changes in federal, state, or local regulations
or administrative requirements.

(i)

HOME Specific Information

Policy
The HOME Program does not require affordability periods with rehabilitation assistance to
homeowners. However, The City of Anderson may choose to impose such requirements at their
discretion.
When administering a HOME-funded homeowner rehabilitation program, HOME Program rules
require that specific requirements be met in the following areas:
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•

•
•
•
•
•

Eligible activities. For homeowner rehabilitation programs using HOME funds, eligible
activities include the rehabilitation or reconstruction of homes in order to meet property
standards.
Eligible forms of assistance. Assistance for homeowner rehabilitation may be in the form of
grants, deferred-payment loans, non-interest-bearing loans or Interest-bearing loans.
Eligible costs. Both hard and soft costs as well as refinancing for homeowner rehabilitation
activities are allowed.
Eligible property types. Single family housing, condominium housing, a cooperative unit, or
manufactured home.
Property values. The value of the assisted property after rehabilitation must not exceed 95
percent of the median purchase price for the area.
Property standards. Properties that are rehabilitated with must meet Local written
rehabilitation standards, State and local code requirements however, If no local codes apply,
one of the following national model codes:
o
o
o
o
o
o

•

Uniform Building Code (ICBO)
National Building Code (BOCA)
Standard Building Code (SBCCI) OR
Council of American Building Officials one- or two-family code (CABO) OR
Minimum Property Standards* at 24 CFR 200.925 or 200.926 (FHA) and
Handicapped accessibility requirements, where applicable.

Eligible applicants and beneficiaries. To be eligible for homeowner rehabilitation under the
homeowner must be low income, must own the home, and the property to be rehabilitated
must serve as the owner's principal residence.

Procedure
The City of Anderson shall advise sub-recipients of housing funds of the reporting burdens and ensure
approved claim forms, tenant data forms accompany all written agreements, and ensure adequate
staff oversight throughout the reporting period. The City of Anderson Department of Community
Development staff shall maintain the required documentation, listed above, in each project file.
1)

Award Amounts

Policy
Projects covered by CDBG funds will not exceed $14,999.00 and shall have an affordability
period not to exceed 5 years. An award amount may be less than $14,999.00 however, the CD
department will not enter into any agreements where the price to rehabilitate the home
exceeds the cap amount. Projects covered by HOME funds will not exceed $30,000.00 and shall
have an affordability period not to exceed 20 years. Before the CD department enters into any
bidding process or agreement, the repairs must have an estimated price to determine the
feasibility of the repairs.
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2)

Rehabilitation Standards

Policy
All construction performed shall comply with the regulations at 24 CFR 92.251 and other Federal
regulations along with the City’s written rehabilitation standards, applicable state/local codes, and
requirements whether or not covered by the specifications and drawings for the project. Additionally,
contractors are responsible for ensuring that all applicable State and Federal requirements are met as
they relate to health, safety and environmental regulations. This requirement includes ensuring that
workers and the general public are not exposed to hazards created as the result of the work in
progress, as well as ensuring that materials are properly removed and disposed of.
The applicant must understand that “general property improvements” or “cosmetic” improvements
are not eligible for funding. Only work that is directed toward correcting a code violation or meeting
a code requirement is an eligible activity.
The applicant must understand that “general property improvements” or “cosmetic” improvements
are not eligible for funding. Only work that is directed toward correcting a code violation or meeting
a code requirement is an eligible activity.
Procedure
A. Feasibility for Rehabilitation
Depending on the extent of the rehabilitation work (hard costs of rehabilitation) necessary to bring a
dwelling and the property in conformance with local building codes, and applicable state and federal
requirements, a project may be deemed infeasible for rehabilitation. The Lead Risk Assessor will first
determine the feasibility and condition of the dwelling. The hard costs would then be determined by
estimates performed by MD Housing Inspectors and subsequently from contractor bids received on a
project. All lead-based paint hazard reductions shall be included.
The proposed project will be considered infeasible to rehabilitate should the hard costs to complete
all of the needed repairs be:
•
•

Equal or exceed the rehabilitation program’s threshold limits $14,999 CDBG and
$30,000 for HOME; or
Equal or greater than fifty (50%) of the after-rehabilitation value and/or appraised
value for the dwelling.

Upon staff determination that the dwelling is not feasible for rehabilitation, the applicant will be
notified in writing within ten (10) business days of denial of assistance.
B. Lead Based Paint Hazard Controls
All properties constructed prior to 1978 to be rehabilitated under this Program must conform to
requirements of the Lead Safe Housing Rule (LSHR) 24 CFR Part 35 Subpart J and will affect the project
planning, timeline, scope of work, contracting and budget for each project.
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As part of application intake, applicants will be provided with the pamphlet, Renovate Right:
Important Lead Hazard Information for Families, Child Care Providers, and Schools. Each applicant
will sign a statement stating that they received a copy of this pamphlet. Upon receipt of the
application, the age of the housing unit will be confirmed by the Tax Assessor’s Report. An
applicability form will be completed indicating that the property is covered by or exempt from the
Lead Safe Housing Rule. If the property is exempt, the file will indicate the reason for exemption.
If the structure was built before 1978 and the applicant(s) meets all eligibility requirements, an initial
inspection will be conducted by an EPA certified Lead Based Paint Inspector. He/she shall follow
specific work practices to prevent lead contamination on the housing unit to determine if there is a
presence of lead-based paint. An inspection report will be formulated from this inspection.
Should lead-based paint be discovered during the inspection, a risk assessment will be conducted by
an EPA Certified Risk Assessor. Lead-safe work practices, interim controls or abatement of lead-based
paint hazards will commence dependent upon the amount of federal rehabilitation assistance
provided. A copy of the inspection/assessment report will be provided to the applicant to notify of
any lead hazards in their home.
Contractors performing abatement activities must possess a lead abatement contractor’s license.
Once the abatement is complete, the work site must pass a clearance test to ensure the site is free of
lead based paint.
Common renovation activities like sanding, cutting, and demolition can create hazardous lead dust
and chips by disturbing lead-based paint, which can be harmful to adults and children.
To protect against this risk, on April 22, 2008, EPA issued the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule. It
requires that CDD performs renovation, repair, and painting projects that disturb lead-based paint in
pre-1978 homes, child care facilities and schools be certified by EPA and that they use certified
renovators who are trained by EPA-approved training providers to follow lead-safe work practices.
Contractors can become certified renovators by taking an eight-hour training course from an EPAapproved training provider. CDD must conform to EPA’s Regulations on Residential Property
Renovation at 40 CFR745, Subpart E.
C. Asbestos Inspection and Removal
In accordance with State of Indiana requirements, all properties undergoing rehabilitation must be
inspected for asbestos, and where necessary, abated.
D. State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)
If a home is fifty (50) years or older, the Construction Specialist will provide notice to the State
Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) with a narrative outlining the proposed work specifications, along
with a current picture of the home and other supportive documentation for consideration. If the
structure is of historical significance, the Construction Specialist may request SHPO to approve the
work specifications or make recommendations to modify the work specifications.
E. Environmental Review
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An environmental review will be conducted by designated staff to ensure that the property is eligible
for federal funding. The following are potential environmental conditions that may impact eligibility:
a. Properties that are in a floodway are not eligible. Properties in a floodplain must carry flood
insurance for the life of the recoverable grant.
b. Properties that are in a historic district require approval from the Historic District Commission
and/or the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) before work may commence. Properties
which have potential historical significance must be rehabilitated in accordance with the
requirements of the SHPO.
c. Properties that exceed the federal noise guidelines due to close proximity to railroads, major
streets, and/or airports, may require noise mitigation work as part of the rehabilitation work.
If the property meets the above requirements, the CDD Appointed Staff Member shall prepare an
environmental review screening checklist to evaluate the property with the environmental requirement
with 24 CFR Part 58.5 and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969. Eligibility for rehabilita
will be dependent upon evaluation of the above referenced factors.
F. Homeowner Property Insurance and Flood Insurance
All properties assisted with HOME funds that are located within a flood plain must be covered by
flood insurance in accordance with Section 202 of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C.
4106).
G. Uniform Relocation Act
The Uniform Act, passed by Congress in 1970, is a federal law that establishes minimum standards for
federally funded programs and projects that require the acquisition of real property (real estate) or
displace persons from their homes, businesses, or farms. The Uniform Act's protections and
assistance apply to the acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property for federal or
federally funded projects.
URA's objectives
•

To provide uniform, fair and equitable treatment of persons whose real property is acquired
or who are displaced in connection with federally funded projects

•

To ensure relocation assistance is provided to displaced persons to lessen the emotional and
financial impact of displacement

•

To ensure that no individual or family is displaced unless decent, safe, and sanitary (DSS)
housing is available within the displaced person's financial means

•

To help improve the housing conditions of displaced persons living in substandard housing

•

To encourage and expedite acquisition by agreement and without coercion

URA Residential Displacements
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•

To provide uniform, fair and equitable treatment of persons whose real property is acquired
or who are displaced in connection with federally funded projects

•

To ensure relocation assistance is provided to displaced persons to lessen the emotional and
financial impact of displacement

•

To ensure that no individual or family is displaced unless decent, safe, and sanitary (DSS)
housing is available within the displaced person's financial means

•

To help improve the housing conditions of displaced persons living in substandard housing

•

To encourage and expedite acquisition by agreement and without coercion

(ii)

CDBG Emergency Rehabilitation Program Specific Information

Policy
The Emergency Rehabilitation Program will be treated in requirements such as; income eligibility,
proof of homeownership, paid property taxes, proof of homeowner insurance, etc. in the same
manner as the HOME and CDBG Rehabilitation Programs. The ER Program will only serve to provide
assistance to homeowners that have recently experienced a problem deemed an emergency and a
recent occurrence. Some examples include; failed furnace, roof damage due to a storm or other acts
of nature, failed sewer or septic systems, electrical outage etc. This is only an example and all
requests will be evaluated to determine the evidence of a true emergency.
Procedure
Homeowner will contact CD office of the repair request. CDD will issue an application and the same
intake and inspection procedures as with the HOME and CDBG Rehabilitation Programs. If project
meets the Emergency standards outlined, homeowner meets the qualifications and the request is an
emergency, the CDD staff will implement request and follow all inspection and bidding procedures.
1)

Award Amounts

Policy
Statutory, regulatory and local policies which must be enforced to ensure compliance, including
directives of the Federal, State and Local Government as well as the Board of Directors.
Procedure
Include specific information regarding how the policy is enforced, including tools, individual positions
responsible for different pieces and timelines.
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2)

Rehabilitation Standards

Policy
MINIMUM STANDARDS
At a minimum, Housing assisted with CDBG and HOME funds shall meet all applicable state or local
codes, rehabilitation standards and ordinances, and zoning ordinances and the International Energy
Conversation Code.

Procedure
CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS
Construction plans and specifications for the Project are required. Pursuant to Indiana Code 32-28-316.
PERMITS AND APPROVALS
Sub-recipient shall obtain all necessary permits approvals and authorization but not necessarily limited
to plat and subdivision approvals, zoning variances, sewer taps, building permits and other permits
required by governmental units in respect to new construction or rehabilitation projects.
CONSTRUCTION
Subrecipient shall ensure the project and property assisted by CDBG or HOME funds shall be
completed in compliance with all laws and ordinances (including, without limitation, all applicable
federal, state, local and safety and sanitary codes) in a good and workmanlike manner and
substantially in accordance with the plans and specifications.
Sub-recipient shall cause the construction of the eligible project to commence within 48hours of
written notice to proceed, after the execution of this agreement unless an unavoidable circumstance
arises beyond the ability to control. In this circumstance, construction is to begin as soon as reasonably
possible with the written approval of the City.
INSPECTIONS OF THE PROPERTY
The unit must pass a lead clearance exam conducted by a state-certified lead clearance examiner.
Rehabilitation work must be inspected and passed by the Building Commissioner.
Any duly authorized representative of the City of Anderson shall, at all reasonable times and upon
prior reasonable notice, have access to the property / project and the right to inspect the property
until completion of the Project which shall continue until the expiration of the applicable Affordability
Period.

(b)

Application Intake

Policy
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The application process shall be coordinated by the Program Administrator who shall provide
assistance to applicants as needed to complete the overall process. Applications will be taken at the
CDD office, Monday – Friday, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Applications may be
picked up at the office or mailed, and applications may be returned in the same manner. However, it
is recommended that applicants schedule an appointment with the Program Administrator to return
the completed applications and obtain any needed assistance. Applications may be submitted on a
continuing basis (except Public Services see Section 103 of this Policy Manual) during any fiscal year
unless and until CDD officially closes the application process for a specified period of time. The CDD
may also establish a waiting list and close the application process at any time due to high volume of
applicants and shortage of funds.
Application requirements and/or documentation include the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Complete application form
Verification of employment
Verification of family income (all residents 18 or older)
Verification of mortgage(s) (if applicable)
Property deed
Proof of homeowner’s insurance
Proof of flood insurance, if required
Utility account verification
Verification of assessed property value
Verification of principal place of residency
Other information as deemed necessary by CDD

In the application package, all applicants are required to sign an Information Release Authorization
form. This document gives the City of Anderson CDD the authority to ask for income and other
confidential information from outside sources on behalf of applicants.
Procedure
It is the responsibility of the Program Administrator to monitor and follow through on all applicant
Intake Forms and to render assistance to applicants who are not capable of completing the application
package alone.
Upon receipt of an application package, the Program Administrator performs the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Assembles the project files and store in a central secured location;
Determines eligibility
Contacts Lead inspector for testing and structural inspection
Initiates inspection with MD Inspection Staff.
Initiates Environmental Review on Property
Initiates bidding process once property is cleared for structural damage, costs.
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(c)

Applicant Eligibility

Policy

In order to qualify, the applicant household must meet the following criteria:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The applicant (i.e., the primary applicant and co-applicant, including, but not limited to a
spouse) must own the home to be rehabilitated in fee simple and be in undisputed possession
of the property for a minimum of three years;
Must be at least 18 years old;
Must have been a permanent resident of the City of Anderson for at least a one-year period
immediately preceding the application for assistance;
Annual gross income of the household cannot exceed eighty percent (80%) of the area
median income (AMI) for Madison adjusted for family size;
Household income must be certified at the time the application is submitted and re-checked
prior to the investment of funds if six (6) months has elapsed since the initial certification;
Where applicable, applicants must provide evidence of adequate capacity to repay a loan.

Procedure
After the verification process is completed and eligible application households are determined, the
participants are then selected. CDD uses the first-come, first-served selection method, applications
are accepted and awarded in the order in which application are received until program funding runs
out. If more applications are received and there is program funding available, a waiting list must be
established.

(d)

Property Eligibility

Policy
To be eligible for assistance, a property must be occupied by an income-eligible homeowner and be
the owner’s principal residence. Traditional single-family housing that is owned fee simple (this
housing may contain one to four dwelling units); or condominium units may be included under the
program.
It is not the intention of this program to provide repair assistance to property owners of dwellings
which have recently been constructed or rehabilitated. Dwellings adequately constructed
(constructed in accordance with applicable local codes) or adequately rehabilitated (to meet local
codes) should be maintained by their owners without assistance from the public. For this reason, any
dwelling constructed within the last seven (7) years, or rehabilitated with assistance from CDD within
the last seven (7) years, is not eligible for further rehabilitation assistance under this program.
To qualify for assistance, the residence to be rehabilitated must meet the following conditions:
• The property must have at least one code violation;
• Evidence of incipient deficiencies; Problems at the beginning stages or evidence of
problems about to happen.
• The exterior conditions and appearance of the property are detrimental to the
neighborhood environment;
• There are no unpaid liens or back taxes on the property;
• Be any of the following:
o Single-family detached home
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o Townhouse
o A semi-detached home (duplex)
o A unit in a multi-unit structure with no more than four units.
*Mobile Homes are not eligible under this program.
Procedure
The determination of property eligibility will be made on the basis of inspections by the Construction
Specialist and/or a qualified entity contracted with CDD for such purposes. It shall be required that
after rehabilitation, the property has been constructed in accordance with state and local codes and
the City of Anderson’s written rehabilitation.

(e)

Form of Financial Assistance (loan closings, forgiveness periods, etc.)

Policy
The Program Administrator and the Director will monitor the progress of all loan applications. The
Program Administrator will track origination and completion dates in each application. These dates
will be used to assess performance and Program productivity, as well as identify project delay and
problems. Any extraordinary delay will be documented in the loan file.
Procedure
Financial review, underwriting and all other aspects of the lending process shall be administered by
Program Administrator. Due diligence shall be performed with all applications in order to ensure
prudent lending decisions are made at all times. CDD shall use an acceptable method to determine
the property value after the proposed rehabilitation to ensure that that the total of all mortgages
after rehabilitation do not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the property value.
As a general rule, the method to be used shall be tax assessed value. However, an appraisal shall be
required with projects where the rehabilitation costs will exceed the tax assessed value by ten
percent (10%) or more as well as with reconstruction projects. The Director or Deputy Director may
choose to utilize either appraisals or comparable sales with all projects should the local tax
assessment valuation process cease to be updated regularly in accordance with State law.
A. Maximum HOME Mortgage and Property Value
For HOME rehabilitation assistance, CDD shall use an acceptable method to determine the
after-rehabilitation value of the property and verify that the value does not exceed ninety-five
percent (95%) of the median purchase price for single family housing in the
Anderson/Madison metropolitan area, or the limits under Section 203(b) of the National
Housing Act (12 USC 1709 {b}). The chosen method of property valuation shall be the same as
outlined above. Program Administrator is responsible for completing form attached to
application package.
B. Loan Terms and Conditions
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Rehabilitation assistance may take the form of a direct loan or deferred loan. Applicants may
be eligible for one or both loans depending on household income and demonstrated ability to
pay.
Underwriting Guidelines
Underwriting standards applicable to the Program shall be as follows:
a)

A household may not have a monthly mortgage debt (principle, interest,
taxes and insurance) greater than thirty percent (30%) of gross monthly
household income, and

b)

The rehab loan payment when combined with an existing mortgage
payment, other housing expenses and other monthly debt payments
including revolving credit payments, car loans, student loans and other
outstanding monthly debt payments, may not exceed forty percent (41 %) of
gross monthly household income.

c)

If the homeowner rehab loan would exceed this limit, the following options
shall be available at the discretion of the CDD Director with the
recommendation of the designated CDD staff member.
•
•
•

Deny assistance based upon the high debt ratio;
Approve a deferred loan payable upon transfer, sale or foreclosure;
and/or
Approve a combination direct loan and deferred loan to reduce the
overall cost of the homeowner and bring housing expense within
acceptable ratio limits.

d)

Loans shall not cause the combined mortgage plus the rehab loan to exceed
one hundred percent (100%) of the after-rehab value of the home.

e)

Applicant/homeowners must have acceptable credit as verified by an official
credit report from an established and reputable credit reporting
company. CDD will obtain the title report and there shall be no back taxes or
liens, other than mortgages, on the property.

f)

The CDD Director shall have discretion to make exceptions to these
guidelines if determined to be prudent and feasible.

C. Non-Discrimination
No applicant will be discouraged from or denied the ability to apply for a loan because of
race, color, religion, national origin, sexual preference, sex, marital status, physical limitations
or age. The approval or denial of an application for a loan shall be based solely upon the
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underwriting standards established by CDD, without regard to race, color, religion, national
origin, sexual orientation, sex, marital status, physical limitations or age.
D. Loan Amount
No loan shall exceed $30,000 HOME or $14,999 CDBG or the actual cost of rehabilitation,
whichever is less and shall further be considered the maximum allowance for each property.
The repayment will be in the form of a deferred loan that will decrease monthly and be
forgiven when the direct loan is paid off. Only applicants age 62 and older are eligible for a
deferred until death loan, unless other arrangements are made between the homeowner and
CDD.
If the structure to be rehabilitated contains lead-based paint above the HUD limits, and the
structure must be fully abated, the loan may exceed the $30,000 HOME threshold. Any
amount over $30,000 will be in the form of a deferred forgivable loan.
E. Interest Rates
As a general rule, interest rates on loans shall be based on the applicant's ability to repay the
loan. Interest rates shall range from zero percent to six percent (0% to 6%) and shall remain
fixed for the term of the loan. Rates shall be calculated on a 30/360 day accrual basis. The
amount of the interest rate will be determined based on the applicant’s income as follows,
but may be adjusted if deemed necessary by CDD:

30% or below AMI:
30% to 49% AMI:
50% to 59% AMI:
60% to 80% AMI:

0 – 1%
1 – 2%
3 – 4%
4 – 6%

F. Repayment Terms
Applicants may be eligible for one or both type loans depending upon household
income and demonstrated ability to pay determined by calculating the total housing
expense of the household being assisted. Housing expense is comprised of existing
mortgage payments (including annual property tax assessment and homeowner’s
insurance), average cost of utilities and property assessments for street paving, sewer
and sidewalk installation. Loan terms may not exceed thirty (30) years, except for
loans that are deferred for the life of the borrower.
Applicants agree to repay the balance in full upon any change of ownership of said
property including but not limited to: transfer by gift, mortgage, and sale by land
contract, inheritance, conversion to rental property, or change of homeowner’s
primary residence.
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G. Refinancing Existing Mortgages
Whenever feasible, existing mortgages shall be refinanced where it is demonstrated
refinancing makes the rehabilitation affordable and the applicant will possess the
capacity to repay the cost of rehabilitation along with the amount refinanced. As a
general rule, refinancing will not be done in conjunction with a loan that is deferred
for life.
A ceiling on the total amount allowable for refinancing and rehabilitation will be
determined at the discretion of the CDD Director. Under no circumstances, will the
cost of rehabilitation and the refinancing of an existing mortgage(s) exceed one
hundred percent (100%) of the after rehabilitation value of the
property. Homeowner shall provide documentation demonstrating that the
household’s overall housing costs were reduced.
H. Security
Loans shall be secured by a promissory note and deed to secure debt, or other
approved security instrument, and shall contain a provision that without the prior
written approval from the Director, said loan shall become due and payable if any of
the following events occur:
•
•
•
•

I.

If the property is sold, leased or rented;
If the property owner grants a legal interest in the property to someone who
did not have a legal interest at the time the applicant was approved for the
program;
Upon the death of the last surviving spouse with a legal interest in the
property, who resided on the premises;
If the property is no longer occupied by the applicant, their spouse, persons
who have a legal interest in the property or members of their family who
occupied the home at the time the application was approved.

Default
If default is made in the performance of or compliance with any of the covenants and
conditions stated in the security deed and promissory note used in this programs, the
CDD Director, acting on behalf of the City, may exercise or decline to exercise any
options or powers or rights stated in said documents, waive any restrictive provisions
stated in said documents, or any defaults. Such actions shall be based on a thorough
review of the applicable case and determination as to what will be the most
appropriate and prudent action to take.

J.

Loan Prepayment
Loans may be prepaid at any time prior to maturity without prepayment penalty.
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K. Collections
Responsibility for personal contact, credit counseling, and collection follow-up in the
case of overdue payments shall rest with CDD or an entity contracted by CDD. A
variety of collection procedures recognized and accepted by the lending industry will
be utilized to include credit and budget counseling. If a loan is in arrears for more
than sixty (60) days, the CDD Director will arrange appropriate resolution of the
repayment delinquency from among the following alternatives:
a)

If the problem appears temporary and due to circumstances beyond the
control of the Applicant, the CDD Director may allow for a specific period of
time during which payments may be suspended, with or without interest.

b)

In certain cases, with extenuating circumstances, the CDD Director may
suspend payments entirely, with the mortgage recorded against the property
being retained by the City until such time as the property is sold or the
Applicant dies or moves. The mortgage must be satisfied if the house is sold
or rented to another party. Likewise, the mortgage must be satisfied if the
applicant dies and the property is inherited.

c)

In cases where there is evidence of willful negligence to pay, and in the
absence of extenuating circumstances, the CDD Director will proceed with
due process to recover the outstanding amount of the loan through
satisfaction of the mortgage utilizing available collection and legal remedies.

L. Loan Denial/Grievance Procedures
Any person who disagrees with the determination of their eligibility for assistance under this
program may appeal the decision to the Director/Deputy Director. If a loan application is
denied, the applicant may request an informal hearing with the Director/CDD Director within
ten (10) days of the date of the letter. At the informal hearing, the applicant will receive a
complete explanation as to why the application was declined. These procedures shall change
at the discretion of the Director and/or Deputy Director.
M. Assumption of Loan
In the event that a homeowner sells, transfers title, converts the home to a rental property or
discontinues residence in the rehabilitated property for any reason during the loan
compliance period, the loan becomes due and payable unless:
i. The homeowner who received the loan dies and the heir to the property
meets income requirements and intends to occupy the home as his/her
principal residence.
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ii. Upon approval from CDD, the heir may be permitted to assume the loan at
the rate and terms the heir qualifies for under current participation
guidelines.
iii. If the heir does not meet applicable eligibility requirements, the loan is due
and payable.
iv. However, if the heirs sell the property, or if the property is sold by any actions
of a court to settle outstanding claims or settle the estate, the loan must be
repaid to CDD.
v. The exception to the above is as follows; if a buyer agrees to accept the
property with the existing lien and is deemed income eligible as per the
funding source guidelines the lien or liens may be assumed by the new
owner.
N. Other Terms and Conditions
1) Deferred Loan Structure: Assistance for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation
program is offered in the form of a zero to six percent (0%-6%) simple interest, up to
thirty (30) year deferred payment loan.
The loan recipient agrees to repay the balance in full upon any change of ownership of
said property including but not limited to: transfer by gift, mortgage, sale, and sale by
land contract, inheritance, conversion to rental property, or change of homeowner’s
primary residence. The recipient agrees to immediately notify CDD of any of the
above changes.
2) Lien Position: CDD will only accept a first or second lien position. In a case where the
second lien is due to participation in a down payment assistance program to secure the
initial purchase of the property, CDD may consider a third lien position.
3) Termination of Contract: CDD reserves the right to cancel program assistance at any time
during the rehabilitation process for cause.
4) Subordination of Liens: CDD may consider a request to subordinate liens to other
financing if the property owner continues to meet the eligibility criteria and the financing
is in the best interest of the property owner.

(f)

Initial Property Inspection

Policy
The Municipal Development Department’s Inspectors shall visit the applicant's property by
appointment at which time a thorough inspection will be conducted to determine the extent of
rehabilitation necessary to meet the minimum standard of the local housing code, regardless of the
problem the applicant initially reported. The applicant shall be informed by the Program
Administrator what work will be required and a copy of the inspection shall be placed in the
applicant's file.
Procedure
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A work write-up shall be prepared by the Municipal Development Inspectors based on the inspection
and other forms as appropriate to cover any and all work to be done to the property. The work writeup shall identify each item in need of repair, a description of work required in each trade area
(carpentry, plumbing, electrical, painting, etc.) along with materials, amounts, applications,
equipment and other requirements. This information shall represent the rehabilitation standards for
the project since they will be based on requirements of the local building codes and the written
rehabilitation standards. The write-up shall also include the City’s cost estimate for the project and
shall be the basis for a cost and price analysis to determine if the costs are reasonable. The work
write-up will be reviewed and approved by the Program Administrator and kept in applicant’s file.
The work write-up shall not contain details that will have no significant effect on cost such as color,
style, or pattern. The work write-up will contain enough details to enable a contractor to provide a
reliable bid. Decisions on these details shall be made when preparing the specifications for the
construction contract documents or even after the contract award by providing in the contract
documents, as appropriate, the term "to be selected by owner". A copy of the work write-up will be
provided to the homeowner after signature.

(g)

Cost Estimates

Policy
Prior to any contracts or written agreements, the Municipal Development Department must provide a
schedule of costs for all proposed work. This is to ensure the necessary work does not exceed the cap
amounts on both HOME and CDBG funded projects.
Procedure
CD Department Program Administrator will request an inspection and work write up of proposed
property along with cost estimates to the Municipal Development Department.

(h)

After Rehabilitation Value

Policy
The value of the property after rehabilitation must not exceed 95 percent of the median purchase
price for the area, as published by HUD, or, in accordance with the Final Rule, as determined locally
through market analysis. The after-rehabilitation value must be established prior to any work being
performed by one or more of the following methods:
•
•
•

Estimates of value by the PJ or Subrecipient;
Appraisals prepared by a licensed fee appraiser or by a staff appraiser of the City; or
Tax assessments for a comparable property located in the same neighborhood.

Procedure
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It is necessary to establish an after-rehabilitation value of the property to ensure that there is
adequate collateral for both any existing and proposed debt and also as the basis for determining
affordability restrictions, when utilizing federal and state funds.
In order to calculate the after-rehabilitation value the City uses the following formula: Assessed value
+ (construction estimate * .20) = After-rehab value. This estimate will be verified against the HOME
Investment Partnership Program Purchase Price/After-Rehabilitation Value Limits as posted on HUD’s
website and updated annually.

(i)

Bid Process

Policy
Construction contract work that is performed by CDD under this program must be performed by
contractors that are reputable and financially responsible and hold a license in applicable
trades. Contractors must apply to participate in the program in order to be approved to perform
work. In order to become approved, contractors must:
Determine which are applicable
• Be a licensed General Contractor for the State of Indiana;
• Must be a legal citizen of the U.S. and provide a social security or Federal ID number
• Provide references substantiating completed work on at least three (3) residential properties;
• Provide a current and active liability and workers compensation insurance certificates;
Procedure
Contractors who wish to participate as a CDD contractor and may inquire at any time as to the
availability of slots on the list of approved CDD Contractors. CDD will maintain a sufficient number of
eligible contractors, and in the event that this number of eligible contractors decreases significantly,
CDD will solicit for eligible contractor participation through advertisements, public notices and
recommendations from Municipal Development
Once an application for financial assistance has been approved by Program Administrator, CDD will
invite all approved contractors to bid on the rehabilitation work. As a procedure for soliciting new
contractors, an “Invitation to Bid” may be advertised in the Anderson Herald-Bulletin or by a written
request to at least 3 reputable and qualified contractors. As a general rule CDD will allow a minimum
of seven (7) calendar days in which to prepare and return bids. Bidders for reconstruction projects
will be given a longer period to respond.
A Pre-Bid Conference will be held at the CDD office or project site prior to each bid opening and will
be conducted by the Program Administrator, who will review all work write-ups item–by-item with
the contractors and answer any questions about the contents of the work write-ups as they
arise. Any addendum to the project scope will be addressed at this time if necessary. The Pre-Bid
Conference site, date, and time will be stated in the Invitation to Bid.
All bidders shall be required to inspect the various properties with the Construction Specialist and
Municipal Development Inspectors. No bids shall be accepted from contractors unless they have
visited the site with the Construction Specialist and Municipal Development Inspectors prior to the
bid opening.
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All forms are to be legible, typed or completed in ink, signed, and dated. Any forms not completed in
this manner shall cause the bid to be disqualified. All bids are to be physically received in the Board of
Works office by the stated deadline for submission. Under no circumstances will bids be accepted
after the deadline. If the contractor is submitting several bids on two rehabilitation jobs, each bid
shall be placed in separate envelopes, sealed with the address of the respective job listed on the front
of the envelope.
Bids shall be opened, read aloud and recorded at a public bid opening with the time and location of
the bid opening being included in the "Invitation to Bid". The owner and the City reserve the right to
accept any part or all of any bid, and to reject any parts of any, and all bids. Any proposal which
contains items not specified, or which does not complete all the bid requirements shall be considered
non-responsive and may be rejected on this basis. As a general rule, the lowest bid will be accepted.
Before entering into an agreement with the contractor it is customary to check by area instead of
individually for suspension, debarment or limited denial of participation. This verification will be made
by the Program Administrator by checking the excluded parties’ list system. Data shall be maintained
in each project’s file.

(j)

Contract Award

Policy
Upon approval and acceptance of the bid, the applicant and contractor shall enter into a construction
contract after which a Notice to Proceed will be issued. The contract must be approved by the Board
of Public Works before being executed with the contractor. Upon issuance of the Notice to Proceed,
the contractor shall have ten (10) days within which to begin work, unless other factors including
weather or other conditions with the homeowner shall arise. Contractors will only be able to have
two (2) contracts in progress at any time until they have been successfully completed. The successful
completion of the two (2) contracts will then remove this restriction and the contractor may have up
to two more rehabilitation projects at that given time. Constructors that prove they are able to
complete projects on a timely basis may receive more than two (2) contracts at a time, if approved by
the Program Administrator. The homeowner will then sign a loan agreement. All loan documents
shall be recorded and kept in file. The homeowner will then sign a loan agreement. All loan
documents shall be recorded and kept in file.

Procedure
A pre-construction conference will be held with the approved contractor and CD Program
Administrator. All required information will be collected at this time along with advising the
contractor of all applicable Federal and local requirements. At which time all compliance items have
been received, the CD Program Administrator will then issue the Notice to Proceed.

(k)

Written Agreement

Policy
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The HOME Homeowner agreement between the City and the applicant must conform to the
requirements in 24 CFR 92.254 (a) and details of the agreement must contain all listed in 24 CFR
92.504 (c) (5) and 2 CFR 200.
The CDBG Homeowner agreement between the City and the applicant must conform to the
requirements in 24 CFR 570 Agreements with sub-recipients and details of the agreement must contain
all listed in 24 CFR 570.503 and 2 CFR 200.
Procedure
After required signatures, the HOME and CDBG written agreement shall immediately come into
effect. CDD will use the date of the Written Agreement with Applicant as the date of commitment of
funds in IDIS and monitor the agreement terms throughout the affordability period.

(l)

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
An activity for each rehabilitation project must be set up in IDIS. Under the HOME program, each
address must be entered as a separate activity. For CDBG rehabilitation and Emergency
Rehabilitation, the projects can be entered as a whole. Before any reimbursement funds can be paid
out for the rehabilitation, the activity must be set up.
Procedure
Program Administrator will set up project under HOME or CDBG set up. Addresses must be entered
along with other beneficiary data in this screen. Once progress is made, accomplishment data should
be entered and after all invoices have been paid and property inspected, activity can be closed out.

(m)

Affordability Period

Policy
The City of Anderson has established the following affordability requirement for its Homeowner
Rehabilitation program in accordance with HUD regulation 24CFR 92.252(e). The City of Anderson
CDBG Homeowner occupied rehabilitation program does not mandate long-term affordability or
occupancy requirements associated with rehabilitation assistance to owner-occupant projects of
$5000 or less. All HOME owner-occupied rehabilitation projects are subject to the established
affordability requirement.
The length of the affordability period depends on the amount of the HOME investment in the
property and the nature of the activity funded. The following table outlines the minimum affordability
periods.
HOME Investment per Unit

Length of the
Affordability Period

Less than $15,000

5 years

$15,000 - $40,000

10 years
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More than $40,000

15 years

New construction of or acquisition of
newly constructed rental housing

20 years

Procedure
The CDBG or HOME subsidy will be secured with a Promissory Note and Mortgage with the City of
Anderson - Department of Community Development as the lien holder. The loan may be a zero
percent interest deferred or forgivable payment loan. Loan documents will state that the loan amount
is due and payable when the homeowner is no longer the principal resident of the house. Loan
documents will specify that if ownership is transferred due to sale of the property during the period
of affordability, payment shall be made to the City from available net sale proceeds. If the subrecipient (owner) is in noncompliance at any time during the period of affordability, the full loan
amount will be immediately due and payable to the City of Anderson. The recapture provisions are
triggered, if, any of the following occur during the Affordability Period:
(A)

The sub-recipient transfers or conveys the property by deed, land contract, or otherwise;

(B)

Foreclosure proceedings are commenced against the property;

(C)

The property is transferred by an instrument in lieu of foreclosure; or

(D)
The title to the property is transferred from the homebuyer through any other involuntary
means.
The recapture provisions require that the sub-recipient subsidy be recaptured if any of the abovereferenced events occur. The amount to be recaptured and shall be paid in full based on the annual
adjusted life of the affordability period. If the homeowner sales the property, the amount will be
recaptured from the Net Proceeds of the sale. If there are no Net Proceeds, the amount to be
recaptured will be zero and the HOME loan is considered satisfied.
Example: Award: $10,000 Forgivable Loan
Adjustment: $2,000 annually for 5 years (Affordability Period) beginning June 1 (Loan Execution Date)
each year
Owner transfers ownership in year 3 on June 30
Forgivable Amount: $6,000
Balance subject to recapture: $4,000 ($2,000 per year for the remaining 2 years of the adjusted
Affordability Period).
Program Administrator will conduct re-certification requests to ensure, the property is still the
principal home of the owner.

(n)

Final Inspection

Policy
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Before a project can be closed out, a final inspection must take place to determine the work was done
in compliance with local and state building code requirements and the project has been 100%
completed.
Procedure
The final inspection is conducted by the Program Administrator and City Building Inspector to verify
and/or address the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(o)

Punch list to cover any deficiencies, which will later be given to the Contractor for follow-up;
Projected completion date;
Verification of final inspection by the City;
Re-inspection of the work, if necessary, will be coordinated with the Homeowner;
Lien releases (if applicable);
Final payment will be issued; and
Obtain signature on Notice of Completion and recordation at the City Recorder’s Office

Beneficiary Reporting

Policy
Each Sub-recipient or CDHO is required to maintain documentation on clients benefitting from
activities, program or projects funded through the City’s CDBG and/or HOME programs. As a
condition of the HUD grant, the City, and in turn the Sub-recipient or CHDO, must certify that low and
moderate income persons are being served. HUD also requires information on the race and ethnic
background of the clients, how many are female heads of households their residency in the City and
how many are very-low income. City CDD staff and HUD must also have access to the names of the
clients. Any information regarding applicants for services funded through federal monies shall be held
in strict confidence.
Procedure
All Sub-recipients shall obtain and maintain the following information on each client served:
a) Client name and address
b) Gender
c) Ethnicity/Race
d) Head of household status
e) Income (with copies of source documents)
This information (except income documents) shall be submitted in summary on the appropriate
income forms. If the entity does not have a client application form that covers this information, please
contact CDD staff and a general version will be provided to your agency. Sample application forms for
both programs are available from the CDD. A person will be counted one time during the program
year regardless of the number of service units.
Housing clients shall be reported individually and must be submitted within 30 days of closing.
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(p)

Monitoring

Policy
24 CFR 570.501(b), 24 CFR 85.40(a) and (e), and 24 CFR 84.51(a)
The City of Anderson is responsible for ensuring that all CDBG funds under its oversight are used in
accordance with all program requirements, and for determining the adequacy of its sub-recipients’
performance. Accordingly, the City of Anderson CDD shall make site visits and review program files as
necessary to fulfill these responsibilities.

Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring CDBG funded projects.
Step 1 – Conduct Risk Assessment
Step 2 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 3 – Conduct a Desk Review
Step 4 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 6 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 7 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
Step 8 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 9 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 10 – Distribute Letters and Documents
CONDUCT RISK ASSESSMENT
The City of Anderson shall conduct a risk assessment in order to determine the appropriate
monitoring efforts. High risk ratings indicate the need for a greater level of review and an on-site
monitoring review.
The City of Anderson CDBG Program Risk Assessment Checklist shall be maintained in the project file.
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
• Schedule monitoring date and time
• Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
• Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
• Identify specific files and information for review
• Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview
PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
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After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
sent to the CDBG subrecipient. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Project grant number
Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
Due date of any correction actions for each finding
Specific steps the subrecipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
Findings that may have been resolved on site
The opportunity for the subrecipient to contest any findings
An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided onsite, if appropriate.

TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
•
•

•
•
•
•

If a subrecipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, staff shall contact the
subrecipient via telephone.
If a subrecipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the
subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the subrecipient a
letter requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences
of failure to comply with applicable regulations.
CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is
unsatisfactory or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating
specific additional action required and a new due date.
If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for onsite technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.
CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone
calls related to corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be
placed in the project file.

CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
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Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to
address the identified problems
• Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Restrict subrecipient payment requests
• Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
• Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
• Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
• Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
• Initiate legal action
•

CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff
shall send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the
letter in the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file.
Staff shall send copies of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing
monitoring findings letter, if applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the
subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
Program Administrator shall ensure each file contains necessary data to support National Objective,
proof of eligibility, contract documents, proof of contractor eligibility, bid documents, and all
information pertaining to housing rehabilitation checklists.
Procedure
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review. The desk review shall include examining
information and materials provided by the CDBG grantee in order to track performance and identify
any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the examination of the following
materials:
•
•
•

Progress reports
Funding agreements
Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
IDIS reports
Correspondence
Previous monitoring reviews
Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
Other relevant documents.

When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring for those programs that
are identified as high risk during as well as those program in which the project or the subrecipient is
known to have had or be having difficulties.
Procedure
PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact each CDBG subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site
monitoring review, and agree upon a date.
Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring review, staff shall send a formal letter to
the CDBG subrecipient that includes:
•
•
•
•

Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
Scope of monitoring
Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.

CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference
City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning of on-site monitoring
review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff and
attempt to ensure that the CDBG subrecipient understands the purpose, scope, and schedule for the
monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis
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City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring
Checklist as well as additional material related to any specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a
clear record of all information reviewed and conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference
At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an exit
conference with the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff. The purpose of the exit conference is to:
•
•
•
•

(iii)

Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
Provide the CDBG subrecipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
Secure additional information to clarify or support the CDBG subrecipient position
Provide an opportunity for the CDBG subrecipient to report on steps it is already undertaking
to address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

Affordability Period Monitoring

Policy
AFFORDABLE HOUSING REQUIREMENTS
The term “Affordable Housing” shall mean that the housing qualifies under this project only if it
complies with 24 CFR 92.252 and 92.254 as may be amended from time to time. Specifically,
“Affordable Housing” shall mean assisted units remain affordable for a minimum period as designated
by the City and owners shall follow HUD income and occupancy requirements. The City of Anderson,
thru the Community Development Department, will conduct monitoring activity throughout the
affordability period to ensure compliance.
Procedure
AFFORDABILITY PERIOD AND REQUIREMENTS
Unit shall be subject to an affordability period for a minimum period as designated by the City after
completion as established in 24 CFR 92.252(e) (“Affordability Period”).
Tenant Rent: tenant paid portion of the Rent on HOME Assisted Rental Units cannot exceed the HUDprescribed standards known as HOME Fair Market Rents. (Rent payments for HUD-assisted rental
housing units are restricted by the rent standard established in 24 CFR 92.252(a).
Rentals: The sub-recipient shall ensure rental housing will remain affordable, to a reasonable range of
low to moderate income families. The affordability restrictions must terminate upon occurrence of any
of the following events: foreclosure, transfer in lieu of foreclosure or assignment of an FHA insured
mortgage to HUD. The housing provider may use purchase options, rights of first refusal or other
preemptive rights to purchase the housing before foreclosure to preserve affordability. The
affordability restrictions shall be revived according to the original terms ~ during the original
affordability period, the owner of record before the termination event, or any entity that includes the
former owner or those with whom the former owner has or had family or business ties, obtains an
ownership interest in the project or property.
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REPAYMENT
If any unit does not meet the affordability requirements, then the CDBG and HOME Program Funds
provided for such unit shall be returned to the City.
AFFORDABILITY RESTRICTIONS
Sub-recipient shall enter into a covenant and agree that the project shall constitute Affordable
Housing during the entire Affordability Period. The covenant shall be evidenced by the execution of a
Declaration of Restriction or Mortgage and Promissory Note to be recorded and be made a part of the
public record which shall set forth that the restriction will continue for the designated affordability
period. A copy of the Declaration of Restriction or Mortgage and Promissory Note shall be executed
and be made part of the City’s permanent file. Failure to comply with this requirement can result in
sanctions being applied which could include repayment of the grant funds to the City.

(q)

Project Closeout

Policy
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
• All costs to be paid with CDBG funds have been incurred, with the exception of closeout costs
(e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
• The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
• The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met,
or if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open
for the purpose of securing performance.
Procedure
A Certificate of Inspection shall be required before project closeout and release of the final payment.
The homeowner must approve final payment to the contractor by signing an applicant’s statement.
The Program Administrator shall meet the homeowner to observe if she/he is satisfied with the
service provided by the contractor. A customer’s satisfaction survey will be conducted and placed in
the project file. Once all rehabilitation activities have been approved and completed, the Program
Administrator will finalize the project file before closure. This includes completing all reports required
by HUD for CDBG and HOME funds and City quarterly reports. Housing Rehabilitation Program files
must be retained for a period of five (5) years from the date of the signed Release of Lien.
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the sub-recipient to provide the following documents within 90
days of project completion or upon notification:
•
•

A final performance or progress report
A financial status report (including all program income)
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A final request for payment
A final inventory of property in the sub-recipient’s possession that was acquired or improved with
CDBG funds.
Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the sub-recipient, listed above, the City of Anderson
CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the sub-recipient. The closeout agreement shall specify:
•
•

•
•
•

•

Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the closeout
agreement is signed
The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds
The sub-recipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:
• The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or review
• The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections, or other
transactions
• Record retention
• Property management and disposition requirements
• Audit requirements
Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.03
(a)

Homebuyers Program-Downpayment Assistance

Program Guidelines

Policy
The City of Anderson will utilize HOME funds to provide down-payment assistance loans to eligible lowincome homebuyers who would otherwise not be able to afford a home. All assistance will be
determined on a case by case which will be determined by the Department and the Department will not
provide closing cost assistance if down payment assistance is not required.
In addition, eight (8) hours of Homeownership counseling will be provided to all Homebuyers assisted.
Completion of Homeownership counseling is a requirement in order to receive funds through the
Program.
Procedure
Eligible Household
This program can only provide assistance to income eligible Homebuyers. To qualify for assistance, a
prospective Homebuyer must meet three requirements.
They must be a qualified income eligible household, occupy the property as their principal residence, and
purchase the property through a fee simple title. Applicants who do not meet all three requirements are
not eligible for assistance through this program.
1. Applicant Income – To be eligible for assistance, an applicant must be income eligible at the time
the funds are invested. A household qualifies as income eligible if its gross annual income does
not exceed 80% of the median income for the area, adjusted for family size.
To assess a household’s eligibility, there are three factors to consider – annual income, household family
size and income limits.
•
•
•

Annual Income – IRS tax returns and W2 forms are used to calculate annual household income.
Household Size – Income eligibility is adjusted for family size.
Income Limit – HOME Income Limits low-income limits. These limits are based on 80% of the area
median income with adjustments for household size. These figures are revised annually.

2. Owner Occupancy – An applicant can request assistance only for purchasing a home to be used as
their principal residence.
3. Ownership of Property – The Homeowner must obtain ownership of the property through fee
simple title. Other forms of ownership, including a contract for deed and a lease-purchase
agreement, are not acceptable.
Eligible Property
•

One-to– four unit property, a condominium unit, or a manufactured home (manufactured
housing must be connected to permanent utility hookups and must be located on land that is
owned by the manufactured housing owner).
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Property located in the City of Anderson or Madison County, Indiana.
The sales price of the property may not exceed 95 percent of the median purchase price for
that type of single-family housing for Madison County as published by HUD.
• Total debt secured by the property, including the CDBG- or HOME-funded loans, cannot
exceed 100% of the value of the property.
• Property must meet all applicable State and local code requirements, and must meet the
housing quality standards in 24 CFR 982.401.
• Properties constructed or manufactured before 1978 must be inspected for lead-based paint
hazards. If deteriorated paint is found it must be properly remediated in compliance with the
Lead Safe Housing Rule before closing.
Property must pass an environmental review conducted by City of Anderson CDD staff or other designated
responsible entity.
•
•

1)

Award Amounts

Policy
The City of Anderson Community Development Department’s down payment assistance program will
provide up to $7,500 for down payment and closing cost assistance for acquisition only for properties
acquired in the City of Anderson. The maximum allowed is $7,500.
Procedure
The DPA Program Administrator will gather evidence of compliance with all of the eligibility requirements
listed above and keep them in the client file(s). In addition, A property must meet several conditions
to be eligible for purchase with CDBG funds. The property must be:
• A single family residence; and
• Located in the City of Anderson city limits.
1. Property Type –The following type of properties are eligible as a “single family residence”:
• One-to-Four-unit property;
• Condominium unit;
• Cooperative or mutual housing unit, if recognized by state law; and
• Manufactured HOME.
2. Property Standards – When funds are used to acquire a property, the property must, at a
minimum, meet the department’s housing standards and FHA inspection at the time of purchase.
Eligible Costs – funds can be used to cover costs associated with the acquisition of an eligible property.
Eligible cost includes down payment assistance and closing costs.
Closing costs associated with the purchase are eligible if they are considered reasonable and
necessary. An example of eligible closing costs includes:
•
•

Termite inspection fees;
Real estate broker/agent fees; and
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•

Financing costs such as private lender fees and loan points, credit and title costs, recording
fees, legal fees, and appraisals.

Federal Requirements - A number of other federal requirements apply to the expenditures of
funds:
•
•
•
•

(b)

Income Determination
Long-Term Affordability
Resale
Uniform Relocation Act Requirements

Form of Financial Assistance (loan closings, forgiveness periods, etc.)

Policy
1. Downpayment assistance will be provided as a zero percent (0%) loan.
2. The affordability period shall be five years. A pro rata share of the loan (20%) will be forgiven
each year on the anniversary of the loan closing.
3. If the homeowner defaults on its agreement with the City of Anderson, the remaining loan
balance (taking into consideration any forgiven portion) will be due and payable to the City of
Anderson.
4. The City of Anderson will subordinate its lien position for the refinance of consumer debt. The
City of Anderson may consider requests to subordinate its lien position if the homeowner is
refinancing the mortgage interest rate to result in a significantly decreased monthly payment.
5. The homeowner shall be responsible for the cost to release the City of Anderson’s mortgage.
Procedure
1. The DPA Administrator executes the DPA Agreement between the City of Anderson and the
homebuyer.
2. The DPA Administrator provides the City of Anderson Community Development Department
with:
a. Homebuyer Set Up and Completion Form,
b. Copy of the Purchase Agreement,
c. Home inspection report, and
d. Original signed DPA Agreement.
3. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff review and approve documents
provided.
4. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff complete the Environmental
Review process.
5. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff verifies that there are no open
code enforcement cases or liens on the home to be purchased.
6. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff sends written approval to the DPA
Administrator.
7. DPA Administrator prepares the loan closing documents and the DPA funds.
8. After the closing of the property, the DPA Administrator submits the following to the City of
Anderson Community Development Department staff:
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a. Reimbursement request form,
b. Detailed invoice,
c. Form HUD-1,
d. Complete Homebuyer Set Up and Completion Form, and
e. Promissory Note.
9. DPA Administrator submits the Mortgage to the City of Anderson Community Development
Department staff after it has been recorded.
10. The City of Anderson Community Development Department will notify the homebuyer upon
completion of the affordability period and provide the homeowner with the cost release the
mortgage.
11. Upon receipt of a cashier’s check or money order payable to the Madison County Recorder’s
Office, the City of Anderson Community Development Department will prepare and record the
lien release and send a copy to the homeowner.

(c)

Initial Property Inspection

Policy
A certified housing inspector must complete an inspection of the entire house. All defects and health
and safety issues must be corrected prior to closing. All home features or systems (e.g. roof, furnace,
water heater, etc.) at or near the end of normal life expectancy must be replaced prior to closing.
Procedure
1.
2.
3.

The homebuyer is responsible for providing a copy of the home inspection to the DPA administrator.
The DPA Administrator reviews the home inspection to ensure all defects and health and safety issues are
met and home features and systems have a reasonable life expectancy.
The City of Anderson Community Development Department staff reviews the home inspection to ensure
all defects and health and safety issues are met and home features and systems have a reasonable life
expectancy.

4.

The DPA Administrator will provide the homebuyer with the EPA’s Protect Your Family from Lead in Your
Home brochure (at http://www2.epa.gov/lead/protect-your-family-lead-your-home-1) and obtain a
written release from the homeowner.

5.

If the property was constructed prior to 1978, the City of Anderson Community Development Department
staff requests a visual lead assessment of all painted surfaces.
The City of Anderson Community Development Department staff verifies that lead-based paint
remediation is not necessary.
If remediation of lead based paint is required, it must be completed by a certified lead inspector.
Upon completion of lead remediation, a licensed lead clearance examiner must complete a clearance
examination.
The City of Anderson Community Development Department provides a copy of the clearance
examination to the homebuyer.

6.
7.
8.
9.
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The Program Administrator, a certified housing inspector, or a Sponsor representative will walk through
the housing unit, determine if it is structurally sound, and identify any code related and health and safety
deficiencies that need to be corrected. A list of code related repair items will be given to the homebuyers
and their Realtor to be negotiated with the seller.
All housing units built prior to 1978 for which HOME or CDBG funding is anticipated are subject to the
requirements of this section 3.2.C. Such homes must undergo a visual assessment by a person who has
taken HUD’s online Visual Assessment course. Deteriorated paint must be stabilized using work safe
methods. Clearance must be obtained after paint stabilization by a certified LBP Risk Assessor/Inspector.

Eligible properties include:
One-to– four unit property, a condominium unit, or a manufactured home (manufactured
housing must be connected to permanent utility hookups and must be located on land that is
owned by the manufactured housing owner).
• Property located in the City of Anderson or Madison County, Indiana.
• The sales price of the property may not exceed 95 percent of the median purchase price for
that type of single-family housing for Madison County as published by HUD.
• Total debt secured by the property, including the CDBG- or HOME-funded loans, cannot
exceed 100% of the value of the property.
• Property must meet all applicable State and local code requirements, and must meet the
housing quality standards in 24 CFR 982.401.
• Properties constructed or manufactured before 1978 must be inspected for lead-based paint
hazards. If deteriorated paint is found it must be properly remediated in compliance with the
Lead Safe Housing Rule before closing.
Property must pass an environmental review conducted by City of Anderson CDD staff or other
designated responsible entity.
•

(d)

After Rehabilitation Value

Policy
Section 92.254(a)(2)(iii) of the Final Rule published on July 24, 2013, HUD established new
homeownership value limits for the HOME Participating Jurisdictions (PJs). These new limits apply to
homeownership housing to which HOME funds are committed on or after August 23, 2013, and remain
in effect until HUD issues new limits.
Newly Constructed Housing. The new HOME homeownership value limits for newly constructed HOME
units is 95 percent of the median purchase price for the area based on Federal Housing Administration
(FHA) single family mortgage program data for newly constructed housing. Nationwide, HUD has
established a minimum limit or floor based on 95 percent of the U.S. median purchase price for new
construction for nonmetropolitan areas. This figure is determined by the U.S. Census Bureau. HUD has
used the greater of these two figures as their HOME homeownership value limit for newly constructed
housing in each area.
Existing Housing. The new HOME homeownership value limits for existing HOME units is 95 percent of
the median purchase price for the area based on Federal FHA single family mortgage program data for
existing housing and other appropriate data that are available nation-wide for sale of existing housing in
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standard condition. Nationwide, HUD has established a minimum limit or floor based on 95 percent of
the state-wide nonmetropolitan area median purchase price using this data. HUD has used the greater of
these two figures as their HOME homeownership value limit for existing housing in each area.
PJ-Determined Limits. In lieu of the limits provided by HUD, a PJ may determine 95 percent of the
median area purchase price for single family housing in the jurisdiction annually in accordance with
procedures established at § 92.254(a)(2)(iii). The PJ must submit these limits as part of its Consolidated
Plan/Annual Action Plan.
Procedure
It is necessary to establish an after-rehabilitation value of the property to ensure that there is adequate
collateral for both any existing and proposed debt and also as the basis for determining whether the
property will be subject to affordability restrictions, when utilizing federal and state funds.
In order to calculate the after-rehabilitation value the City uses the following formula: Appraised value +
(construction estimate * .20) = After-rehab value. This estimate will be verified against the HOME
Investment Partnership Program Purchase Price/After-Rehabilitation Value Limits as posted on HUD’s
website and updated annually.
The DPA Administrator is required to:
1. Establish the after-rehabilitation value using the above formula
2. Compare it, and verify compliance, with the HUD established limits that represent 95 percent
of the area median purchase price for single family homes:
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/affordablehousi
n g/programs/home/limits/maxprice
3. Maintain documentation of verification with the policy in the client file.
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(e)

Written Agreement

Policy
24CFR 92.504
CDD of Anderson, working in conjunction with authorized legal representation, will ensure written
agreements covering the award of HOME funds meet the specifications of 24 CFR 92.504.
To the greatest extent possible, the City’s HOME agreement will be formatted in such a manner to
enable re-issue of a similar “boilerplate” or standardized document to future award recipients.
Before disbursing any HOME funds, the City of Anderson must enter into a written agreement with the
subrecipient DPA Administrator. The written agreement shall include, at a minimum, the following
provisions:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Use of the HOME funds
Program income
Uniform administrative requirement
Other program requirements
Affirmative marketing
Requests for disbursement of funds
Reversion of assets
Records and reports
Enforcement of the agreement
Requirements surrounding the repayment or recapture of HOME funds, specifically are they
remitted to the City of Anderson or retained by the subrecipient for additional eligible activities
Fees
Date in which the written agreement is valid.

Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD staff will send out the written agreement upon completion of all application
requirements.
1. The City of Anderson CDD uses the boiler-plate written agreements approved by its legal counsel
to prepare the written agreements
2. The City of Anderson CDD customizes the pre-approved boiler-plate written agreement based on
specifics of each project
3. Legal counsel reviews and approves the customized written agreement
4. The written agreement is executed by the subrecipient
5. The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CDD ____ approves
and signs the agreement
6. The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement are
committed to that IDIS activity.
City of Anderson CDD staff will periodically review the IDIS reports and track written agreements,
comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up and all related reporting.
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(f)

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
Upon receipt of a fully executed written agreement, CDD staff shall enter the CDBG funded project into
the IDIS system. An activity for each rehabilitation project must be set up in IDIS. Under the HOME
program, each address must be entered as a separate activity. For CDBG rehabilitation and Emergency
Rehabilitation, the projects can be entered as a whole. Before any reimbursement funds can be paid out
for the rehabilitation, the activity must be set up.
Procedure
The CDD staff will Setup the project under HOME or CDBG setup in IDIS using the Homebuyers Setup and
Completion Form complete with beneficiary data including household size, household demographics,
household income, property location, census tract data, and financial investment data. Program
Administrator will set up project under HOME or CDBG set up. Once progress is made, accomplishment
data should be entered and after all invoices have been paid and property inspected, activity can be
closed out.

(g)

Affordability Period

Policy
24CFR 92.252(e)
The length of the affordability period depends on the amount of the HOME investment in the property
and the nature of the activity funded. The following table outlines the minimum affordability periods.
HOME Investment per Unit

Length of the
Affordability Period

Less than $15,000

5 years

$15,000 - $40,000

10 years

More than $40,000

15 years

New construction of or acquisition of
newly constructed rental housing

20 years

Procedure
The affordability period shall be contingent upon the amount of HOME funds invested. A pro rata share
of the loan (20%) will be forgiven each year on the anniversary of the loan closing.
If the homeowner defaults on its agreement with the City of Anderson, the remaining loan balance
(taking into consideration any forgiven portion) will be due and payable to the City of Anderson.
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(h)

Final Inspection

Policy
The final inspection is conducted by the Program Administrator and City Building Inspector. All projects
must meet final inspection specifications as determined by the City Building Inspector.
Procedure
The final inspection is conducted by the Program Administrator and City Building Inspector to verify
and/or address the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(i)

Punch list to cover any deficiencies, which will later be given to the Contractor for follow-up;
Projected completion date;
Verification of final inspection by the City;
Re-inspection of the work, if necessary, will be coordinated with the Homeowner;
Lien releases (if applicable);
Final payment will be issued; and
Obtain signature on Notice of Completion and recordation at the City Recorder’s Office

Beneficiary Reporting

Policy
Each Sub-recipient or CDHO is required to maintain documentation on clients benefitting from activities,
program or projects funded through the City’s CDBG and/or HOME programs. As a condition of the HUD
grant, the City, and in turn the Sub-recipient or CHDO, must certify that low and moderate income
persons are being served. HUD also requires information on the race and ethnic background of the
clients, how many are female heads of households their residency in the City and how many are verylow income. City CDD staff and HUD must also have access to the names of the clients. Any information
regarding applicants for services funded through federal monies shall be held in strict confidence.
Procedure
The DPA Administrator is required to maintain documentation on clients benefitting from downpayment assistance. At a minimum it will include:
a) Client name and address
b) Gender
c) Ethnicity/Race
d) Head of household status
e) Income (with copies of source documents)
The DPA Administrator will provide all beneficiary reporting information to The City of Anderson
Community Development Department. The DPA Administrator will complete and submit to the Annual
Report form to the City of Anderson Community Development Department for the calendar year by
January 15th of the following calendar year.
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(j)

Recapture/Resale

Policy
24 CFR Part 92.254(a)(5) “to ensure affordability, the participating jurisdiction must impose either resale
or recapture requirements, at its option." Accordingly, PJs must choose one option or the other for each
unit assisted.
Procedure
The DPA Administrator will prepare, execute, and record a mortgage and promissory note for the DPA
funds. The DPA Administrator provides the City of Anderson Community Development Department with
the executed promissory note and recorded mortgage. In the event of a failure of a HOME Program
beneficiary to satisfactorily adhere to all applicable affordability requirements, the City of Anderson shall
use recapture provisions to ensure that the intent of the HOME funded activity is accomplished or that
the unforgiven portion of the HOME funds are recaptured and used for other activities eligible under the
HOME. The City shall recapture the appropriate portion of HOME Program funds, which remain
unforgiven by the elapsed affordability period or recapture the maximum net proceeds from sale of
property (whether recapture is effected through foreclosure or no foreclosure action).

(k)

Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson Community Development Department will conduct an on-site monitoring of the
sub-recipient DPA Administrator annually.
Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring the sub-recipient.
Step 1 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 2 – Conduct a Desk Review
Step 3 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 4 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 6 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
Step 7 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 8 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 9 – Distribute Letters and Documents
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
• Schedule monitoring date and time
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•
•
•
•

Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
Identify specific files and information for review
Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview

PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
sent to the DPA Administrator. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Project grant number
Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
Due date of any correction actions for each finding
Specific steps the subrecipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
Findings that may have been resolved on site
The opportunity for the subrecipient to contest any findings
An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided on-site, if
appropriate.

TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
•
•

•
•
•
•

If a subrecipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, CDD staff shall contact the
subrecipient via telephone.
If a subrecipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the
subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the subrecipient a letter
requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences of
failure to comply with applicable regulations.
CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is unsatisfactory
or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating specific additional
action required and a new due date.
If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for on-site
technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.

CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone calls related to
corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be placed in the project file.
CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
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Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
• Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to address
the identified problems
• Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Restrict subrecipient payment requests
• Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
• Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
• Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
• Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
• Initiate legal action
CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff shall
send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the letter in
the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file.
Staff shall send copies of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing
monitoring findings letter, if applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the
subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
CDD staff shall undertake a desk review prior to conducting an on-site monitoring review of the DPA
Administrator.

Procedure
The desk review shall include examining information and materials provided by the grantee in order to
track performance and identify any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the
examination of the following materials:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Progress reports
Funding agreements
Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
IDIS reports
Correspondence
Previous monitoring reviews
Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
Other relevant documents.

When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring of sub-recipient DPA
Administrator files.
Procedure
PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact the subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site monitoring
review, and agree upon a date.
Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring review, staff shall send a formal letter to the
subrecipient that includes:
•
•
•
•

Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
Scope of monitoring
Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.

CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference
City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning of on-site monitoring
review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate subrecipient staff and attempt to
ensure that the subrecipient understands the purpose, scope, and schedule for the monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis
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City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring
Checklist as well as additional material related to any specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a
clear record of all information reviewed and conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference
At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an exit conference
with the appropriate sub-recipient staff. The purpose of the exit conference is to:
•
•
•
•

(l)

Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
Provide the sub-recipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
Secure additional information to clarify or support the sub-recipient position
Provide an opportunity for the sub-recipient to report on steps it is already undertaking to
address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

Project Closeout

Policy
The DPA Administrator shall be responsible for completing the close-out requirements and forwarding
documentation listed below to the City of Anderson from the client file. DPA Administrator is also
responsible for maintaining the client files, and providing access to the City and HUD of such files, for a
period of 5 years after the closeout of the project.
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
• All costs to be paid with CDBG and HOME funds have been incurred, with the exception of
closeout costs (e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
• The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
• The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met, or
if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open for the
purpose of securing performance.
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the subrecipient to provide the following documents within 90
days of project completion or upon notification:
•

A final performance or progress report

•

A financial status report (including all program income)

•

A final request for payment

•

A final inventory of property in the subrecipient’s possession that was acquired or improved
with CDBG funds.
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Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the subrecipient, listed above, the City of
Anderson CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the subrecipient. The closeout agreement shall
specify:
•

Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the
closeout agreement is signed

•

The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds

•

The subrecipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:

•

o

The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or
review

o

The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections, or
other transactions

o

Record retention

o

Property management and disposition requirements

o

Audit requirements

Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.04
(a)

Economic Development Activities

Program Guidelines

Policy
The objective of CDBG economic development activities is the retention and attraction of businesses
in the City of Anderson which provide employment, principally to low and moderate-income persons.
To meet this objective, the City of Anderson Community Development Department (CDD) will
consider CDBG applications for all eligible economic development activities. A minimum of 51% of
the jobs created shall be made available to low and moderate-income persons.
24 CFR 570.208
Public Services activities funded by CDBG may be considered eligible if they meet one of the following
National Objectives:
•
•
•

LMI Benefit
o Area Benefit
o Limited Clientele
Slum and Blight - Area Basis
Urgent Need

24 CFR 570.208(a)(4)
Economic Development activities funded by CDBG may be considered eligible if they meet any of the
three National Objectives. However, there are additional considerations and restrictions for
economic development activities that must be taken into consideration:
Large-scale development activity may be considered eligible under the LMI job creation and/or
retention criterion National Objective. Under this objective, the large-scale project must lead to the
creation or retention of permanent jobs, at least 51 percent of which will be available to or held by
LMI persons.
For infrastructure projects, the 51 percent LMI job requirement may be met by aggregating the jobs
created or retained by affected businesses under the following criteria:
If the CDBG cost per job created or retained is less than $10,000 per full-time-equivalent (FTE)
employee, the City of Anderson must ensure that 51 percent of the jobs created or retained by the
businesses for which the project is principally undertaken are made available to or held by LMI
persons; and
If the CDBG cost per job created or retained is $10,000 or more per FTE, the grantee must ensure that
51 percent of the jobs created or retained by all businesses in the service area are available to or held
by LMI persons. For this purpose the jobs may be aggregated. This includes all businesses which, as a
result of the project, locate or expand in the service area between the date the activity is identified in
the Action Plan and one year after completion of the project. In addition, the activity must comply
with the Public Benefit standards.
Within large-scale development projects may also qualify based on the services provided and benefits
that accrued to the neighborhood in which the activity takes place.
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Activities in LMI neighborhoods may qualify under the LMI area benefit National Objective if they
provide a service to that neighborhood; or
Activities benefiting severely deteriorated areas may qualify under the Slums/Blight Area National
Objective if the area meets the Slum/Blight area requirements; and
Commercial rehabilitation activities may qualify under the Slums/Blight Spot National Objective if that
rehab is limited to public health and safety violations.

Procedure
Applicants for CDBG funds will indicate which National Objective the project will meet during the
application process. The City of Anderson CDD will verify that the project is eligible and feasible based
on the CDBG requirements.

(i)

CDBG Specific Information

1)

Award Amounts

Policy
The City of Anderson does not impose award minimum or maximum amounts.

(b)

Project Application Intake

Policy
All economic development activities must be financially viable and able to document that the
business has sufficient management expertise to successfully operate.
Procedure
The CDD shall solicit applications from entities throughout the City and region. The CDD shall
advertise the CDBG application cycle and application workshop in the following manner:
•
•
•
•
•

A notice in newspaper of legal record
At least one advertisement in a local newspaper with minority readership
A notice on the City of Anderson main webpage
A notice on the City of Anderson CDD main webpage
Email to the CDD’s email list, current and previously funded organizations, and area social
service agencies.

The CDD will host an application workshop. A representative of each entity applying for CDBG funds
is required to attend the application workshop. The application workshop sign-in sheet will be used
to determine if an applicant organization participated in the application workshop.
Applicants will have a minimum of 30 days from application announcement until the due date.
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Recordkeeping - All applications, supporting application information, and applicable correspondence
shall be placed in a permanent file. All files shall be maintained in a secure place with limited access
by authorized personnel.

(c)

Project Eligibility

Policy
24CFR 570.203
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson may choose to use CDBG funds for special economic development activities,
including:
•

The acquisition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or installation of commercial or
industrial buildings, structures, and other real property equipment and improvements

•

The provision of assistance to a private for-profit business, including, but not limited to,
grants, loans, loan guarantees, interest supplements, technical assistance, and other forms of
support, for any activity where the assistance is appropriate to carry out an economic
development project

•

Economic development services in connection with the eligible activities listed above.

24CFR 570.209(b)
PUBLIC BENEFIT STANDARDS
Recipients making loans for special economic development projects must comply with the public
benefit standards. These standards have two levels:
Individual Activity Standards - Economic development activities must meet either of the
individual project standards that follow:
May not exceed $50,000 per FTE permanent job created or retained
*** OR ***
May not exceed $1,000 in expenditure per LMI person to which goods or services are
provided
Activities that create both jobs and LMI services are disqualified only if amounts exceed both
standards. The individual activity standards are applied at the time of obligation.
Aggregate Standards – CDD shall ensure the City of Anderson’s entire CDBG funded portfolio
for any given year shall meet either of the aggregate program standards that follow:
Create or retain at least one full-time (FTE) permanent job per $35,000 of CDBG funds
*** OR ***
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Provide goods and/or services to at least one LMI person per $350 of CDBG
expenditure
Mandatory public benefit standards do not apply to microenterprise areas or commercial
rehabilitation.
INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
Job pirating is prohibited under Section 588 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of
1998. Job pirating refers to the use of federal funds to lure or attract a business and its positions from
one community to another community. CDBG funds may not be used to assist for-profit businesses,
including expansions, as well as infrastructure improvement projects or business incubators which are
designed to facilitate business relocation if:
•

The funding will be used to assist directly in the relocation of a plan, facility, or operation; and

•

The relocation is likely to result in a significant loss of jobs in the labor market area from
which the relocation occurs.

HUD also determined that there are certain kinds of economic development activities that by their
nature fail to provide sufficient public benefit, and are therefore ineligible for CDBG funds. They are:
•

An activity in which the grantee promotes the community as a whole (as opposed to
promotion of specific areas and programs)

•

Assistance to a professional sports team

•

Assistance to privately-owned recreational facilities that serve a predominantly higherincome clientele, where the recreational benefit to be derived by users or members clearly
outweighs the employment or other benefits to L/M income persons

•

Acquisition of land for which the specific proposed use has not yet been identified

•

Assistance to a for-profit business while that business or any other business owned by the
same person(s) or entity(ies) is the subject of unresolved findings of noncompliance relating
to previous CDBG assistance provided to the business.

Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall evaluate proposed economic development using the following
standards:

(d)

Underwriting and Feasibility Analysis

Policy
24CFR 570.209(a)
CDD shall evaluate all CDBG economic development activities according to HUD’s Guidelines and
Objectives for Evaluating Project Costs and Financial Requirements detailed in Appendix A to 24 CFR
Part 570.
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(1) That project costs are reasonable
(2) That all sources of project financing are committed
(3) That to the extent practicable, CDBG funds are not substituted for non-Federal financial
support
(4) That the project is financially feasible
(5) That to the extent practicable, the return on the owner's equity investment will not be
unreasonably high
(6) That to the extent practicable, CDBG funds are disbursed on a pro rata basis with other
finances provided to the project.

Procedure
All applicants shall be required to submit a detailed project budget, including a breakdown of project
costs. The City of Anderson shall review the project budget to help ensure that:
(1) That project costs are reasonable
(2) That sufficient sources of project financing are committed to the project and that the
applicant is very likely to receive any outstanding funds
(3) That to the extent practicable, CDBG funds are not substituted for non-Federal financial
support
(4) That the project is financially feasible
(5) That to the extent practicable, the return on the owner's equity investment will not be
unreasonably high
(6) That to the extent practicable, CDBG funds are disbursed on a pro rata basis with other
finances provided to the project.
Any underwriting tests or documents utilized during the underwriting process shall be utilized for all
applicants and be present in every loan.
Recordkeeping – The City of Anderson shall maintain a file(s) containing a summary of the application
review(s), recommended action for the application, and a copy of the City Council meeting minutes
summarizing the action taken.

(e)

Written Agreements and Loan Closing

Policy
24CFR 570.503
The written agreement is a legally binding document executed between the City of Anderson and the
organization receiving funds for the purposed of carrying out an eligible CDBG or HOME activity(s).
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HUD CDBG regulations require that the City of Anderson have written agreements in effect for each
subrecipient before giving out any CDBG funds. The written agreement must remain in effect during
any period that the subrecipient has control over any CDBG funds, including program income.
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD staff will send out the written agreement upon completion of all application
requirements and completion of the environmental review, unless there is administrative funding
included in the budget for the purpose of reimbursement of environmental review preparation funds.
1. The City of Anderson CDD uses the boiler-plate written agreements approved by its legal
counsel to prepare the written agreements
2. The City of Anderson CDD customizes the pre-approved boiler-plate written agreement based
on specifics of each project
3. Legal counsel reviews and approves the customized written agreement
4. The written agreement is executed by the subrecipient
5. The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CDD ____
approves and signs the agreement
6. The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement
are committed to that IDIS activity
7. City of Anderson CDD staff will periodically review the IDIS reports and track written
agreements, comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up and all related reporting.

(f)

Environmental Review

Policy
Policies outlined in Section 104 of this policy under “Environmental Review” shall apply.
Procedure
Procedures outlined in Section 104 of this policy under “Environmental Review” shall apply.

(g)

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
Upon receipt of a fully executed written agreement, CDD staff shall enter the CDBG funded project
into the IDIS system.

(h)

Monitoring

Policy
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24 CFR 570.501(b), 24 CFR 85.40(a) and (e), and 24 CFR 84.51(a)
The City of Anderson is responsible for ensuring that all CDBG funds under its oversight are used in
accordance with all program requirements, and for determining the adequacy of its subrecipients’
performance. Accordingly, the City of Anderson CDD shall make site visits and review program files as
necessary to fulfill these responsibilities.

Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring CDBG funded projects.
Step 1 – Conduct Risk Assessment
Step 2 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 3 – Conduct a Desk Review
Step 4 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 6 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 7 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
Step 8 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 9 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 10 – Distribute Letters and Documents
CONDUCT RISK ASSESSMENT
The City of Anderson shall conduct a risk assessment in order to determine the appropriate
monitoring efforts. High risk ratings indicate the need for a greater level of review and an on-site
monitoring review.
The City of Anderson CDBG Program Risk Assessment Checklist shall be maintained in the project file.
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
• Schedule monitoring date and time
• Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
• Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
• Identify specific files and information for review
• Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview
PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
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sent to the CDBG subrecipient. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Project grant number
Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
Due date of any correction actions for each finding
Specific steps the subrecipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
Findings that may have been resolved on site
The opportunity for the subrecipient to contest any findings
An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided onsite, if appropriate.

TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
•
•

•
•
•
•

If a subrecipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, staff shall contact the
subrecipient via telephone.
If a subrecipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the
subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the subrecipient a
letter requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences
of failure to comply with applicable regulations.
CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is
unsatisfactory or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating
specific additional action required and a new due date.
If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for onsite technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.
CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone
calls related to corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be
placed in the project file.

CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
• Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to
address the identified problems
• Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
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Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Restrict subrecipient payment requests
• Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
• Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention
At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or more of the following:
• Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
• Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
• Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
• Initiate legal action
CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff
shall send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the
letter in the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file.
Staff shall send copies of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing
monitoring findings letter, if applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the
subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review.
Procedure
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review. The desk review shall include examining
information and materials provided by the CDBG grantee in order to track performance and identify
any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the examination of the following
materials:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Progress reports
Funding agreements
Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
IDIS reports
Correspondence
Previous monitoring reviews
Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
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•

Other relevant documents.

When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-Site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring for those programs that
are identified as high risk during as well as those program in which the project or the subrecipient is
known to have had or be having difficulties.

Procedure
PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact each CDBG subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site
monitoring review, and agree upon a date.
Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring review, staff shall send a formal letter to
the CDBG subrecipient that includes:
•
•
•
•

Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
Scope of monitoring
Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.

CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference
City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning of on-site monitoring
review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff and
attempt to ensure that the CDBG subrecipient understands the purpose, scope, and schedule for the
monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis
City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring
Checklist as well as additional material related to any specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a
clear record of all information reviewed and conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference
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At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an exit
conference with the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff. The purpose of the exit conference is to:
•
•
•
•

(i)

Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
Provide the CDBG subrecipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
Secure additional information to clarify or support the CDBG subrecipient position
Provide an opportunity for the CDBG subrecipient to report on steps it is already undertaking
to address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

Project Closeout

Policy
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
• All costs to be paid with CDBG funds have been incurred, with the exception of closeout costs
(e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
• The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
• The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met,
or if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open
for the purpose of securing performance.
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the sub-recipient to provide the following documents within
30 days of project completion or upon notification:
•

A final performance or progress report

•

A financial status report (including all program income)

•

A final request for payment

•

A final inventory of property in the subrecipient’s possession that was acquired or
improved with CDBG funds.

Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the subrecipient, listed above, the City of
Anderson CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the subrecipient. The closeout agreement
shall specify:
•

Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the
closeout agreement is signed

•

The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds

•

The subrecipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:
o

The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or
review
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•

o

The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections,
or other transactions

o

Record retention

o

Property management and disposition requirements

o

Audit requirements

Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.05
(a)

Public Facilities and Improvements

Program Guidelines

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
The City of Anderson may choose to award or utilize CDBG funds to fund the acquisition, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or installation of public facilities and improvements carried out by the
city, subgrantees, or other nonprofit. Public facilities may only be owned by these types of entities.
Eligible types of facilities and improvements include:
 Infrastructure improvements (construction or installation) including, but not limited to
streets, curbs, and water and sewer lines;
 Neighborhood facilities including, but not limited to public schools, libraries, recreational
facilities, parks, playgrounds; and
 Facilities for persons with special needs such as facilities for the homeless or domestic
violence shelters, nursing homes, or group homes for the disabled.
Eligible costs associated with eligible activities may include:
 Energy efficiency improvements;
 Handicapped accessibility improvements (including improvements to buildings used for
general conduct of government); and
 Architectural design features and other treatments aimed at improving aesthetic quality (e.g.,
sculptures, fountains).
If the assisted facility is owned by a nonprofit, the CDBG regulations stipulate that the facility must be
open to the public during normal working hours.
24 CFR 570.208
Acquisition, Disposition and Clearance activities funded by CDBG may be considered eligible if they
meet one of the following national objectives:
 LMI Benefit
o Area Benefit
o Limited Clientele
 Slum and Blight - Area Basis
 Urgent Need
Procedure
The City of Anderson Community Development Department (CDD) staff shall review department
requests and applications to ensure that the City’s CDBG funds are maximized to meet the needs set
forth in the Consolidated Plan.
Department requests and applicants for CDBG funds will indicate which national objective the project
will meet during the application process. The City of Anderson CDD will verify that the project is
eligible and feasible based on the CDBG requirements.
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CDBG applicants shall be required to provide a project budget with the application package and to
document costs incurred during the program period. City of Anderson staff shall review the
application budget, draw requests, and the subrecipient’s documented costs to ensure funds are used
to support the provision of services.

(i)

CDBG Specific Information

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
Only those acquisition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or installation of public facilities
and improvements activities identified under (a) Program Guidelines are eligible for CDBG funding.
Procedure
All specific procedures listed below apply to CDBG activities.
1)

Award Amounts

Policy
The City of Anderson does not impose award minimum or maximum amounts.
Procedure
Procedures do not apply.

(b)

Project Application Intake

Policy
All community organizations awarded CDBG acquisition; disposition and/or clearance funds must be
financially viable and able to document that there is sufficient management expertise to successfully
operate the proposed program and the CDBG funds.
Procedure
The CDD shall solicit applications from entities throughout the City. The CDD shall advertise the CDBG
application cycle and application workshop in the following manner:
 A notice in the newspaper of legal record
 A notice on the City of Anderson main webpage
 A notice on the City of Anderson CDD main webpage
 Email to the CDD’s email list, current and previously funded organizations, and area social
service agencies.
The CDD will host an application workshop. A representative of each entity or other city department
applying for CDBG funds is required to attend the application workshop. The application workshop
sign-in sheet will be used to determine if an applicant organization participated in the application
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workshop. Applicants will have a minimum of 30 days from application announcement until the due
date.
Recordkeeping - All applications, supporting application information, and applicable correspondence
shall be placed in a permanent file. All files shall be maintained in a secure place with limited access
by authorized personnel.

(c)

Project Eligibility

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
Only those acquisition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or installation of public facilities
and improvements activities identified under (a) Program Guidelines are eligible for CDBG funding.
24 CFR 570.200 (h)(1)(i)
The City of Anderson shall only fund CDBG activities that were identified as a need in the Consolidated
Plan.
24 CFR 570.207
INELIGIBLE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, REHABILITATION, OR INSTALLATION
OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS:
 The costs of moveable equipment, furnishings, or machinery if this is the principal purpose of
the activity because these items not real property,
 Acquisition of property which is then expected to be donated or sold at less than the
purchase price to the same entity that purchased the property because this is not considered
a legitimate change of ownership, and
 Acquisition of newly-constructed housing or an interest in the construction of new housing.
Procedure
Application for funding will be reviewed to assure that the proposed activity is eligible under the
CDBG regulations and identified as a need in the Consolidated Plan.

(d)

Written Agreements

Policy
24CFR 570.503
The written agreement is a legally binding document executed between the City of Anderson and the
organization receiving funds for the purposed of carrying out an eligible CDBG or HOME activity(s).
HUD CDBG regulations require that the City of Anderson have written Agreements in effect for each
subrecipient before giving out any CDBG funds. The written Agreement must remain in effect during
any period that the subrecipient has control over any CDBG funds, including program income.
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In accordance with CDBG regulations, the written agreement shall include the following provisions:
 National Objective Compliance/Eligibility
 Scope of Work
 Time of Performance
 Personnel Assigned to Scope of Work
 Levels of Performance
 Budget
 Project Schedule/Milestones
 Compensation and Method of Payment
 Program Income
 Record-Keeping Requirements
 Reporting Requirements
 Public Access to Program Records
 Record Retention
 Grant Closeout Procedures
 Uniform Administrative and Program Management Standards
 Use and Reversion of Assets
 Real Property
 Other Program Requirements
 Suspension and Termination
 Compliance with Laws/Regulations
 Antidiscrimination/Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity
 Financial Management
 Audits
 Religious and Lobbying Activities
 Budget Modifications
 Monitoring
 Conflict of Interest
 Procurement Standards and Method
 Environmental Issues
Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD staff will send out the written agreement upon completion of all application
requirements:
 Completion of the environmental review, unless there is administrative funding included in
the budget for the purpose of reimbursement of environmental review preparation funds.
 The Annual Action Plan and Environmental Review Request for Release of Funds are approved
by HUD.
 The City of Anderson CDD uses the boiler-plate written agreements approved by its legal
counsel to prepare the written agreements
 The City of Anderson CDD customizes the pre-approved boiler-plate written agreement based
on specifics of each project
 Legal counsel reviews and approves the customized written agreement
 The written agreement is executed by the subrecipient
 The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CDD approves and
signs the agreement
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The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement
are committed to that IDIS activity

City of Anderson CDD staff will periodically review the IDIS reports and track written agreements,
comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up and all related reporting.

(e)

Construction

Policy
The City of Anderson’s construction activity in excess of $100,000 shall be in accordance to federal
requirements and all construction contracts shall contain provisions to require changes, remedies,
changed conditions, access and records retention, suspension of work, and other clauses approved by
the Office of Federal Procurement Policy.
Procedure
In accordance with CDBG regulations, construction activity shall address and the written construction
agreement shall include the following provisions:
 GENERAL INFORMATION
o Bonding Requirements (IC 36-1-12-4.5, IC 36-1-12-13.1, IC 36 1-12-14 e 10)
o Retainage (IC 36-1-12-14)
o Change Orders (IC 36-1-12-18)
o Conflict of Interest (24 CFR 570.611)
o Code of Conduct (24 CFR 84.42)
o Record Retention (24 CFR 85.42)
o Minority Business Participation
o Contract Provisions
 Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions
which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances
where contractors violate or breach contract terms
 All contracts in excess of $25,000 shall contain suitable provisions for
termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be effected
and the basis for settlement.
 Contracts and subcontracts of amounts in excess of $100,000 shall contain a
provision which requires compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 1857 (h)),
Section 508 of the Clear Water Act (33 USC 1368), Executive Order 11738,
and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR, Part 15).
 Except as otherwise provided for in each section, the contractor shall insert in
each subcontract all of the stipulations contained in the Required Contract
Provisions, and further require their inclusion in any lower tier subcontract
that may in turn be made.
o Certification that No Portion of Contract Funds Shall be used for Lobbying (49 CFR 20)
o Access to Records (24 CFR 85.42-e)
10

All IC references are in accordance with Indiana Office of Community and Rural Affairs
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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY REGULATIONS
o Nondiscrimination
 Equal employment opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and
to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws,
executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630 and 41 CFR 60)
and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed
herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C.
 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the
contractor’s project activities under this contract. The Equal Opportunity
Construction Contractor Specifications set forth under 41 CFR 60-4.3 and the
provisions of the American Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.D. 12101 et seq.)
set forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in
this contract.
o EEO Officer
 The contractor will designate and make known to the awarding agency an EEO
Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively
administering and promoting an active contractor program of EEO and who
must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
o Dissemination of EEO Policy
 All members of the contractor’s staff who are authorized to hire, supervise,
promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who
are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and
will implement, the contractor’s EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to
provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment.
o Recruitment of Employees
 When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all
advertisements for employees the notation: “An Equal Opportunity
Employer.”
o Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment
 The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion,
sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of
subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.
o EEO Records and Reports
 The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance
with the EEO requirements.
o Non-segregated Facilities
 Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related
subcontracts of $10,000 or more.
 By the execution of this contract or subcontract, or the consummation of this
material supply agreement or purchase order, all parties certify that the firm
does not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at
any of its establishments, and that the firm does not permit its employees to
perform their services at any location under its control, where segregated
facilities are maintained.
o Falsification of Documents
 The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor
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to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 31 U.S.C. 231.
Section 3 [12 U.S.C. 170lu (Section 3)]
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)
 For federally assisted construction contracts, the OFCCP administers and
enforces Executive Order 11246, as amended. This Order prohibits
discrimination and requires affirmative action to ensure equal employment
opportunity without regard to race, color, sex, religion and/or national origin;
and the implementing regulations at 41 CFR Parts 60-1 through 60-50.
FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS REGULATIONS
o Regulations
 Any and all contractors, subcontractors, independent contractors, suppliers,
facilitators or any person participating in any program or activity receiving
federal financial assistance shall comply with federal labor standards
regulations as follows:
• Davis-Bacon Act
• Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
• Copeland Act (Anti-Kickback Act)
• Fair Labor Standards Act
 The U. S. Department of Labor has published rules and regulations
corresponding to the above regulations at Title 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7.
o Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
(49 CFR 29)
o Instructions for Certification Lower Tier Covered Transactions
 The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later
determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction
originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or
debarment.
o Payment of Prevailing Wages
 Applicable to all CDBG construction contracts exceeding $2,000 and to all
related subcontracts.
 All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon Act and related acts
contained in 29 CFR 1, 3 and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in
construction contract.
o Personnel Actions
 Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and
administered, and personnel actions of every type including hiring, upgrading,
promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.
o Conformance Rates
 The awarding agency shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics
employed under the contract which is not listed in the wage determination
shall be classified in conformance with the wage decision.
o Payment of Fringe Benefits
o
o
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Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of
laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an
hourly rate, the contractor or subcontractors, as appropriate, shall either pay
the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona
fide fringe benefit or an hourly case equivalent thereof.
Apprentice Participation
 Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for
the work they perform when they are employed pursuant to and individually
registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program.
 The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeyman-level employees on the job
site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to
the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program.
Overtime Requirements
 No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work
which may require or involve the employment of labors, mechanics,
watchmen, or guards (including apprentices) shall require or permit any
laborer, mechanic, watchman, guard or apprentice in any workweek in which
he/she is employed on such work, to work in excess of 40 hours in such
workweek unless such laborer, mechanic, watchman, guard or apprentice
receives compensation at a rate not less than one-and-one-half times his/her
basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.
Withholding Payments
 The awarding agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an
authorized representative of the DOL withhold, or cause to be withheld, from
the contractor or subcontractor under this contract or any other Federal
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted
contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements which is held by
the same prime contractor, as much of the accrued payments or advances as
may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics employed by the
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the
contract.
Violations and Liability
 In the event of any violation of the requirements set forth in this document,
the contractor and any subcontractor responsible for the violation shall be
liable to the affected employee for his/her unpaid wages. In addition, such
contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated
damages.
Statements and Payrolls
 Applicable to all Federally-assisted construction contracts exceeding $2,000
and to all related subcontracts, except for projects located on roadways
classified as local roads or rural collectors, which are exempt.
 The Contractor shall comply with the Copeland Regulations of the Secretary of
Labor.
 Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the
contractor and each subcontractor during the course of the work and
preserved for a period of 3 years from the date of completion of the contract


o

o

o

o

o
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(f)

for all laborers, mechanics, apprentices, watchmen, helpers and guards
working at the site of the work.
HEALTH AND SAFETY
o Safety and Accident Prevention
 In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all
applicable Federal, State and local laws governing safety, health and sanitation
(23 CFR 635).
 The contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in
performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as
determined under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR 1926).
o Implementation of Clean Air & Water Act(s)
 Applicable to all CDBG assisted construction contracts and to all related
subcontracts of $100,000 or more.
 Any facility that is utilized in the performance of the contract, unless such
contract is exempt under the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1857 et seq.,
as amended by Pub. L. 91-604), and under the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as amended by Pub. L. 92-500),
Executive Order 11738, and regulations in implementation thereof (40 CFR 15)
is not listed, on the date of contract award, on the U. S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) List of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20.
REQUIRED POSTERS
o IOSHA Safety and Health Protection on the Job
o Notice to All Employees working on Federally Financed Construction Projects Equal
Employment Opportunity is The Law
o Federal Fair Housing Law
o Employee Polygraph Protection Act

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
Upon receipt of a fully executed written agreement, CDD staff shall enter the CDBG funded project
into the IDIS system.
Procedure
Include specific information regarding how the policy is enforced, including tools, individual positions
responsible for different pieces and timelines.

(g)

Monitoring

Policy
24 CFR 570.501(b), 24 CFR 85.40(a) and (e), and 24 CFR 84.51(a)
The City of Anderson is responsible for ensuring that all CDBG funds under its oversight are used in
accordance with all program requirements, and for determining the adequacy of its subrecipients’
Page 220 of 241

performance. Accordingly, the City of Anderson CDD shall make site visits and review program files as
necessary to fulfill these responsibilities.
Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring CDBG funded projects:
Step 1 – Conduct Risk Assessment
Step 2 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 3 – Conduct a Desk Review
Step 4 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 6 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 7 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
Step 8 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 9 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 10 – Distribute Letters and Documents
CONDUCT RISK ASSESSMENT
The City of Anderson shall conduct a risk assessment in order to determine the appropriate
monitoring efforts. High risk ratings indicate the need for a greater level of review and an on-site
monitoring review. The City of Anderson CDBG Program Risk Assessment Checklist shall be
maintained in the project file.
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
 Schedule monitoring date and time
 Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
 Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
 Identify specific files and information for review
 Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview
PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
sent to the CDBG subrecipient. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and
include:
 Project grant number
 Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
 Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
 Due date of any correction actions for each finding
 Specific steps the subrecipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
 Findings that may have been resolved on site
 The opportunity for the subrecipient to contest any findings
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An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided onsite, if appropriate.

TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
 If a subrecipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, staff shall contact the
subrecipient via telephone.
 If a subrecipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the
subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the subrecipient a
letter requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences
of failure to comply with applicable regulations.
 CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
 If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is
unsatisfactory or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating
specific additional action required and a new due date.
 If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
 If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for onsite technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.
 CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone
calls related to corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be placed
in the project file.
CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
 Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to
address the identified problems
 Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Restrict subrecipient payment requests
 Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
 Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
 Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
 Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
Page 222 of 241



Initiate legal action

CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff
shall send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the
letter in the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file. Staff shall send copies of the
monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing monitoring findings letter, if
applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review.
Procedure
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review. The desk review shall include examining
information and materials provided by the CDBG grantee in order to track performance and identify
any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the examination of the following
materials:
 Progress reports
 Funding agreements
 Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
 Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
 IDIS reports
 Correspondence
 Previous monitoring reviews
 Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
 Other relevant documents
When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-Site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring for those programs that
are identified as high risk during as well as those program in which the project or the subrecipient is
known to have had or be having difficulties.
Procedure
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PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact each CDBG subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site
monitoring review, and agree upon a date. Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring
review, staff shall send a formal letter to the CDBG subrecipient that includes:
 Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
 Scope of monitoring
 Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
 Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.
CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference - City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning
of on-site monitoring review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate CDBG
subrecipient staff and attempt to ensure that the CDBG subrecipient understands the purpose, scope,
and schedule for the monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis - City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information
necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring Checklist as well as additional material related to any
specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a clear record of all information reviewed and
conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference - At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall
hold an exit conference with the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff. The purpose of the exit
conference is to:
 Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
 Provide the CDBG subrecipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
 Secure additional information to clarify or support the CDBG subrecipient position
 Provide an opportunity for the CDBG subrecipient to report on steps it is already undertaking
to address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

(h)

Project Closeout

Policy
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
 All costs to be paid with CDBG funds have been incurred, with the exception of closeout costs
(e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
 The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
 The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met,
or if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open
for the purpose of securing performance.
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Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the subrecipient to provide the following documents within 90
days of project completion or upon notification:
 A final performance or progress report
 A financial status report (including all program income)
 A final request for payment
 A final inventory of property in the subrecipient’s possession that was acquired or improved
with CDBG funds.
Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the subrecipient, listed above, the City of
Anderson CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the subrecipient. The closeout agreement
shall specify:
 Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the
closeout agreement is signed
 The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds
 The subrecipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:
 The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or review
 The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections, or other
transactions
 Record retention requirements
 Property management and disposition requirements
 Audit requirements
 Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.06
(a)

Real Property Activities

Program Guidelines

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
The City of Anderson may choose to award or utilize CDBG funds to acquire real property either in
whole, or in part by purchase, long-term lease, donation, or otherwise for any public purpose. Real
property to be acquired may include, but is not limited to:
 Land
 Air rights
 Easements
 Water rights
 Rights-of-way
 Buildings and other real property improvements, and
 Cost of identifying the property to be acquired such as:
o Appraisals
o Preparation of legal documents
o Recordation fees, and
o Other costs that are necessary to the acquisition process.
The City of Anderson may choose to award or utilize CDBG funds to pay the costs associated with the
disposition of real property acquired with CDBG funds through sale, lease, donation, or other means,
including its disposition at less than fair market value if the property will be used to meet a national
objective of the CDBG program. Disposition costs may include:
 Preparation of legal documents
 Surveys
 Marketing
 Financial services
 The transfer of taxes
 Other costs involved in the transfer of ownership
 Reasonable costs of temporarily managing property acquired under urban renewal until final
disposition is made, and
 Costs of long-term management of properties
The City of Anderson may choose to award or utilize CDBG funds to pay clearance activities that are
eligible under the CDBG Program:
 Demolition of buildings and improvements
 Removal of demolition products, rubble, and other debris
 Physical removal of environmental contaminants or treatment of such contaminants to
render them harmless, and
 Movement of structures to other sites.
24 CFR 570.208
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Acquisition, Disposition and Clearance activities funded by CDBG may be considered eligible if they
meet one of the following national objectives:
 LMI Benefit
o Area Benefit
o Limited Clientele
 Slum and Blight - Area Basis
 Urgent Need
Procedure
The City of Anderson Community Development Department (CDD) staff shall review department
requests and applications to ensure that the City’s CDBG funds are maximized to meet the needs set
forth in the Consolidated Plan.
Department requests and applicants for CDBG funds will indicate which national objective the project
will meet during the application process. The City of Anderson CDD will verify that the project is
eligible and feasible based on the CDBG requirements.
CDBG applicants shall be required to provide a project budget with the application package and to
document costs incurred during the program period. City of Anderson staff shall review the
application budget, draw requests, and the subrecipient’s documented costs to ensure funds are used
to support the provision of services.

(i)

CDBG Specific Information

Policy
There is no applicable CDBG specific information other than what is identified below.
Procedure
There is no applicable CDBG specific information other than what is identified below.
1)

Award Amounts

Policy
The City of Anderson does not impose award minimum or maximum amounts.
Procedure
Not applicable.

(b)

Project Application Intake

Policy
All community organizations awarded CDBG acquisition; disposition and/or clearance funds must be
financially viable and able to document that there is sufficient management expertise to successfully
operate the proposed program and the CDBG funds.
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Procedure
The CDD shall solicit applications from entities throughout the City and region. The CDD shall
advertise the CDBG application cycle and application workshop in the following manner:
• A notice in the newspaper of legal record
• At least one advertisement in a local newspaper with minority readership
• A notice on the City of Anderson main webpage
• A notice on the City of Anderson CDD main webpage
• Email to the CDD’s email list, current and previously funded organizations, and area social
service agencies.
The CDD will host an application workshop. A representative of each entity or other city department
applying for CDBG funds is required to attend the application workshop. The application workshop
sign-in sheet will be used to determine if an applicant organization participated in the application
workshop. Applicants will have a minimum of 30 days from application announcement until the due
date.
Recordkeeping - All applications, supporting application information, and applicable correspondence
shall be placed in a permanent file. All files shall be maintained in a secure place with limited access
by authorized personnel.

(c)

Project Eligibility

Policy
24 CFR 570.201
Only those real estate acquisition, disposition and/or clearance activities identified under (a) Program
Guidelines are eligible for CDBG funding.
24 CFR 570.200 (h)(1)(i)
The City of Anderson shall only fund CDBG activities that were identified as a need in the Consolidated
Plan.
24 CFR 570.207
INELIGIBLE REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION, DISPOSITION AND/OR CLEARANCE ACTIVITIES:
 The costs of moveable equipment, furnishings, or machinery if this is the principal purpose of
the activity because these items not real property
 Acquisition of property which is then expected to be donated or sold at less than the
purchase price to the same entity that purchased the property because this is not considered
a legitimate change of ownership, and
 Acquisition of newly-constructed housing or an interest in the construction of new housing.
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Procedure
Application for funding will be reviewed to assure that the proposed activity is eligible under the
CDBG regulations and identified as a need in the Consolidated Plan.

(d)

Written Agreements

Policy
24CFR 570.503
The written agreement is a legally binding document executed between the City of Anderson and the
organization receiving funds for the purposed of carrying out an eligible CDBG or HOME activity(s).
HUD CDBG regulations require that the City of Anderson have written Agreements in effect for each
subrecipient before giving out any CDBG funds. The written Agreement must remain in effect during
any period that the subrecipient has control over any CDBG funds, including program income.
In accordance with CDBG regulations, the written agreement shall include the following provisions:
 National Objective Compliance/Eligibility
 Scope of Work
 Time of Performance
 Personnel Assigned to Scope of Work
 Levels of Performance
 Budget
 Project Schedule/Milestones
 Compensation and Method of Payment
 Program Income
 Record-Keeping Requirements
 Reporting Requirements
 Public Access to Program Records
 Record Retention
 Grant Closeout Procedures
 Uniform Administrative and Program Management Standards
 Use and Reversion of Assets
 Real Property
 Other Program Requirements
 Suspension and Termination
 Compliance with Laws/Regulations
 Antidiscrimination/Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity
 Financial Management
 Audits
 Religious and Lobbying Activities
 Budget Modifications
 Monitoring
 Conflict of Interest
 Procurement Standards and Methods
 Environmental Issues
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Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD staff will send out the written agreement upon completion of all application
requirements:
 Completion of the environmental review, unless there is administrative funding included in
the budget for the purpose of reimbursement of environmental review preparation funds.
 The Annual Action Plan and Environmental Review Request for Release of Funds are approved
by HUD.
 The City of Anderson CDD uses the boiler-plate written agreements approved by its legal
counsel to prepare the written agreements
 The City of Anderson CDD customizes the pre-approved boiler-plate written agreement based
on specifics of each project
 Legal counsel reviews and approves the customized written agreement
 The written agreement is executed by the subrecipient
 The agreement is considered fully executed only after the City of Anderson CDD approves and
signs the agreement
 The project or program is set up in IDIS and funds in the amount specified in the agreement
are committed to that IDIS activity
City of Anderson CDD staff will periodically review the IDIS reports and track written agreements,
comparing approved projects with IDIS activities set up and all related reporting.

(e)

Project Setup (IDIS)

Policy
Upon receipt of a fully executed written agreement, CDD staff shall enter the CDBG funded project
into the IDIS system.
Procedure
Include specific information regarding how the policy is enforced, including tools, individual positions
responsible for different pieces and timelines.

(f)

Monitoring

Policy
24 CFR 570.501(b), 24 CFR 85.40(a) and (e), and 24 CFR 84.51(a)
The City of Anderson is responsible for ensuring that all CDBG funds under its oversight are used in
accordance with all program requirements, and for determining the adequacy of its subrecipients’
performance. Accordingly, the City of Anderson CDD shall make site visits and review program files as
necessary to fulfill these responsibilities.
Procedure
City of Anderson staff shall follow the following steps when monitoring CDBG funded projects.
Step 1 – Conduct Risk Assessment
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Step 2 – Prepare Written Schedule of the Monitoring Activities
Step 3 – Conduct a Desk Review
Step 4 – Prepare for On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 5 – Conduct On-Site Monitoring Review, if applicable
Step 6 – Prepare Follow Up Materials
Step 7 – Take Corrective Action, if applicable
Step 8 – Conduct Intervention, if applicable
Step 9 – Close Monitoring Findings, if applicable
Step 10 – Distribute Letters and Documents
CONDUCT RISK ASSESSMENT
The City of Anderson shall conduct a risk assessment in order to determine the appropriate
monitoring efforts. High risk ratings indicate the need for a greater level of review and an on-site
monitoring review. The City of Anderson CDBG Program Risk Assessment Checklist shall be
maintained in the project file.
PREPARE WRITTEN SCHEDULE OF THE MONITORING ACTIVITIES
The City of Anderson shall prepare for the monitoring of each project by establishing:
 Schedule monitoring date and time
 Identify staff person to conduct the desk review and on-site monitoring
 Identify specific issues to be the focus of the monitoring
 Identify specific files and information for review
 Identify staff and other persons to be interviewed and estimated time per interview
PREPARE FOLLOW UP MATERIALS
After the monitoring review process is complete (either desk review or desk review and on-site
monitoring review) City of Anderson CDD staff shall prepare a formal written notification letter to be
sent to the CDBG subrecipient. The letter shall provide the results of the monitoring review and
include:
 Project grant number
 Name of staff who conducted the monitoring review and date(s) of review
 Monitoring conclusions (both positive and negative) for each program area monitored and for
the program as a whole, including the supporting facts considered in reaching the conclusions
 Due date of any correction actions for each finding
 Specific steps the subrecipient can undertake on a voluntary basis to resolve each finding
 Findings that may have been resolved on site
 The opportunity for the subrecipient to contest any findings
 An offer of technical assistance or an indication that technical assistance was provided onsite, if appropriate.
TAKE CORRECTIVE ACTION, IF APPLCABLE
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The City of Anderson is responsible for taking appropriate actions when performance problems arise.
CDD Staff shall use written agreements as the primary mechanism for enforcement.
 If a subrecipient fails to meet a target date for corrective action, staff shall contact the
subrecipient via telephone.
 If a subrecipient fails to provide any response within 30 calendar days after the date the
subrecipient was advised to take corrective action, CDD staff shall send the subrecipient a
letter requesting the status of the corrective action and warning of the possible consequences
of failure to comply with applicable regulations.
 CDD staff shall review any subrecipient responses to corrective action requests within 15
calendar days.
 If the staff review indicates that the corrective action taken by the subrecipient is
unsatisfactory or insufficient, CDD staff shall send a letter to the subrecipient the indicating
specific additional action required and a new due date.
 If the monitoring effort consisted only of a desk monitoring, and not an on-site monitoring
review, CDD staff will schedule an on-site visit to further review the subrecipient performance
and project files.
 If the subrecipient is unable to resolve the finding, CDD staff shall evaluate the need for onsite technical assistance to address the finding and/or identify the use of other intervention
procedures.
 CDD staff shall document the project file with any outgoing correspondence or telephone
calls related to corrective action. Additionally, the subrecipient responses shall also be placed
in the project file.
CONDUCT INTERVENTION, IF APPLICABLE
Stage 1 – Low Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Clearly identify problem areas and required corrective actions
 Plan a strategy with the subrecipient that includes any training or technical assistance to
address the identified problems
 Conduct more frequent monitoring reviews
Stage 2 – Mid-Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Restrict subrecipient payment requests
 Disallow subrecipient expenses or require payment
 Impose probationary status
Stage 3 – High Level Intervention At this stage, City of Anderson CDD staff can choose to do one or
more of the following:
 Temporarily suspend the subrecipient
 Make the subrecipient ineligible for funding for the next program year
 Terminate any subrecipient activity for the current program year
 Initiate legal action
CLOSE MONITORING FINDINGS, IF APPLICABLE
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When staff review indicates that the subrecipient has provided satisfactory corrective action, staff
shall send the subrecipient a letter stating that the finding is closed. Staff shall place a copy of the
letter in the project file.
DISTRIBUTE LETTERS AND DOCUMENTS
CDD staff shall include a copy of the monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the
closing monitoring findings letter, if applicable, in the project file. Staff shall send copies of the
monitoring review letter and any follow-up letters, including the closing monitoring findings letter, if
applicable, to other City of Anderson staff who regularly work with the subrecipient.

(i)

Desk Monitoring

Policy
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review.
Procedure
All projects to be monitored shall include a desk review. The desk review shall include examining
information and materials provided by the CDBG grantee in order to track performance and identify
any potential problem areas. The desk review shall include the examination of the following
materials:
 Progress reports
 Funding agreements
 Affirmative marketing plan, if applicable
 Financial information, audits, draw-down requests
 IDIS reports
 Correspondence
 Previous monitoring reviews
 Tenant rent and income verification, if applicable
 Other relevant documents
When the desk review outcome is unsatisfactory and the risk analysis was low, a desk review will be
considered insufficient. City of Anderson Community Development Department staff shall update the
schedule of monitoring activities and require an on-site monitoring review.
Recordkeeping - Staff shall put the results of the desk review it in the project file.

(ii)

On-Site Monitoring

Policy
The City of Anderson CDD is responsible for conducting an on-site monitoring for those programs that
are identified as high risk during as well as those program in which the project or the subrecipient is
known to have had or be having difficulties.
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Procedure
PREPARATION FOR ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
City of Anderson CDD staff shall contact each CDBG subrecipient, explain the purpose of the on-site
monitoring review, and agree upon a date. Approximately three weeks before the on-site monitoring
review, staff shall send a formal letter to the CDBG subrecipient that includes:
 Confirmation of on-site monitoring review date
 Scope of monitoring
 Information needed for review during the on-site monitoring review
 Staff needed for interviews or other assistance during the on-site monitoring review.
CONDUCT ON-SITE MONITORING REVIEW
Entrance Conference - City of Anderson CDD staff shall hold an entrance conference at the beginning
of on-site monitoring review visits. The entrance conference should include the appropriate CDBG
subrecipient staff and attempt to ensure that the CDBG subrecipient understands the purpose, scope,
and schedule for the monitoring.
Documentation, Data Gathering and Analysis - City of Anderson CDD staff shall review information
necessary to complete the On-Site Monitoring Checklist as well as additional material related to any
specific identified issues. Staff shall maintain a clear record of all information reviewed and
conversations help during the on-site monitoring visit.
Exit Conference - At the conclusion of the on-site monitoring visit, City of Anderson CDD staff shall
hold an exit conference with the appropriate CDBG subrecipient staff. The purpose of the exit
conference is to:
 Present preliminary results of the monitoring process
 Provide the CDBG subrecipient an opportunity to correct any misunderstandings
 Secure additional information to clarify or support the CDBG subrecipient position
 Provide an opportunity for the CDBG subrecipient to report on steps it is already undertaking
to address any areas of noncompliance, if applicable.

(g)

Project Closeout

Policy
24 CFR § 570.509
The City of Anderson CDD shall initiate closeout procedures for a subrecipient when:
 All costs to be paid with CDBG funds have been incurred, with the exception of closeout costs
(e.g., audit) or contingent liability costs
 The work to be financed with CDBG has been completed, including activities financed through
escrow accounts, loan guarantees, or similar mechanisms
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The subrecipient’s other responsibilities (as outlined in the grant agreement) have been met,
or if the CDD staff determine that there is no further benefit in keeping the agreement open
for the purpose of securing performance.

Procedure
The City of Anderson CDD shall require the subrecipient to provide the following documents within 90
days of project completion or upon notification:
 A final performance or progress report
 A financial status report (including all program income)
 A final request for payment
 A final inventory of property in the subrecipient’s possession that was acquired or improved
with CDBG funds.
Upon receipt of acceptable closeout documents from the subrecipient, listed above, the City of
Anderson CDD shall execute a closeout agreement with the subrecipient. The closeout agreement
shall specify:
 Any closeout costs or contingent liabilities subject to payment with CDBG funds after the
closeout agreement is signed
 The amount and proper disposition of any unused CDBG funds
 The subrecipient’s responsibilities after closeout, including:
 The City’s right to disallow costs and/or recover funds on the basis of a later audit or review
 The subrecipient’s obligation to return funds due to subsequent refunds, corrections, or other
transactions
 Record retention requirements
 Property management and disposition requirements
 Audit requirements
 Provisions established as a result of special circumstances.
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Section 2.07
(a)

City Operated Programs

Program Guidelines

Policy
All CDBG and HOME Funded Programs may maintain program specific guidelines, so long as they are in
agreement with these Community Development Block and HOME Investment Partnership Grant
Compliance Policies and all other applicable local, state, and federal laws and statutes. Current
program specific guidelines include:
• Drawdown Procedures
• Change of Use
• Displacement/Relocation
• Disputes
• Suspension/Probation and Termination
• Collection Procedures
Procedure

Claims and Drawdown Procedures
The City of Anderson sub-recipients’ and contractors are on a reimbursement basis with the City for
expenses incurred in CDBG and HOME program activities. As the City sub-recipients’ incur expenses,
claims for payment are submitted, reviewed and approved for payment by appropriate Community
Development program staff who then sends claims for payment to the Finance Department. After
checks have been issued for these claims, drawdowns of these expenses are completed in
Integrated Disbursement & Information System (IDIS).
The Community Development staff s h a l l r e v i e w s c l a i m s and the Director shall review and approve
the drawdown unless there is a problem with the claim. Claims shall be submitted on approved claim
sheets with accompanying monitoring project status reports. No claims shall be paid without supporting
documentation of the expense. If there are any questions, problems or issues, the CD staff will respond
and r e q u e s t a b s e n t s u p p o r t i n g d o c u m e n t a t i o n a n d r e v i s e d c l a i m s h e e t s . Upon receipt
of proper claim submission the Director will approve the claim. Payment shall be made within 30 calendar
days after receipt of approved claim. Appropriate staff will complete the drawdown in IDIS in accordance
with the Accounting Policy.
All sub-recipient written agreements and approved submission documents shall specify sub-recipient
federal ID, DUNS and Contract Numbers. Written agreements shall include approved claim forms and
monitoring project status reports along with examples of common types of supporting documentation
for proof of payment. Sub-recipients must submit all claims for reimbursement with applicable
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approved timesheets and mileage forms. Reporting timeline requirements that specifies submission
timeliness (monthly or quarterly) of a project status reports shall be designated in the written agreement.

3.1. Draw Down Requirements:
3.1.1. All activity setup screens must be complete.
3.1.2. Activities must have funds committed from one or more funding sources.
Program income must be used before requesting additional entitlement
funds.
3.1.4. Community Development Staff or designee will follow the IDIS Online Training
for CDBG Entitlement Communities Chapters 5 through 7 to perform
drawdowns. Program income must be receipted in IDIS as the first step of
performing the drawdown, if applicable. Program income must then be used
to fund activities. As necessary, previously committed Entitlement funds may
be reduced using the Funding/Drawdown tab in IDIS in order to commit the PI
funds.
3.1.5. Payments reimbursed with HUD grant funds MUST have an IDIS
number.
Drawdown Approval
Two people required for completion of the drawdown in IDIS. Finance Specialist
creates drawdown. Director or Contract Specialist approves drawdown. Drawdown
Revisions
3.3.1. Repayments include excessive draws and ineligible uses.
IDIS passwords
Each person entitled to utilize IDIS shall have a unique password. These passwords
shall be kept confidential and known only to the person using them for IDIS access. At
no time shall anyone else have access to that password.
Keeping track of IDIS draws
3.5.1. All drawdowns, with complete spreadsheet detail and backup documentation,
will be maintained electronically on the City of Anderson’s network server.
3.5.2. A drawdown file will be maintained with hard copy Administrative files for the
Fiscal Year. As draws are done for actual cleared expenses, and may include
multiple years, the file does not represent the expenses for the Fiscal Year in
which is it maintained. Documentation for each draw will include the signed
drawdown spreadsheet, the PR07 Report for the vouchers associated with the
draw showing “completed” voucher status, and other relevant documentation
as determined by staff. PR05 will be included at the end after the last draw
for all relevant program years.

3.1.3.

3.2.
3.3.

3.4.

3.5.
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Any information regarding applicants for services funded through federal monies shall be held in strict
confidence and all personally identifiable information (PII) and sensitive information shall be held in locked
filing cabinets in accordance with 2 CFR 200.303 (e); 24 CFR 570.502 (a) .

Change of Use and Substantial Amendment
If a sub-recipient of a City Program wishes to utilize a portion of funds for an activity not identified on
their original application, they are required to submit a detailed letter to the Director of Community
Development explaining the reasoning for and amount of the proposed change. Changes will be
reviewed for eligibility and require administrative approval by the Director. Changes involving an
amount greater than 25 percent of the original award for that activity or plans to utilize funds under a
different activity category shall require a Substantial Amendment.

Displacement/Relocation
Due to the potential liability for long-term assistance and burdens placed on affected tenants,
the City of Anderson will avoid funding projects that involve permanent residential
displacement or business relocation unless displacement/relocation prove to be the only means
available to correct a public health/safety hazard or other critical condition. In such cases, the
City of Anderson will follow Real Estate Acquisition and Relocation Policy and Guidance set
forth in HUD handbook 1378.

Disputes
Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under a sub-recipient program or City Program shall be
resolved with the Community Development staff, who shall relay his/her decision in writing to the subrecipient or City Program, in addition to furnishing a copy to the Mayor and Board of Works. The
decision of Community Development staff shall be final and conclusive unless the sub-recipient or City
Program furnishes a written appeal to the Mayor and Board of Works within ten days of the date of
receipt of such copy. The decision of the Mayor in such appeals shall be final and binding.
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Suspension/Probation and Termination
The City may place a sub-recipient/city partner on probation, suspend, or terminate the
Agreement/MOU, as accorded by 24 CFR 85.43 and 24 CFR 85.44. When minor compliance issues exist
(such as failure to maintain Minimum Contracting Standards), an informal approach via phone calls and
e-mail may occur first and funds may be held until compliance is met. If compliance of the minor issue is
not met within 10 business days or if another compliance issue exists, a certified letter requiring a
Corrective Action Plan will be sent to the Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer, Board of Director’s
and/or Department Director’s attention. In the case of suspension or probation, depending upon the
severity of the compliance problem, city staff shall provide not less than two (2) and not more than 10
business days to submit a Corrective Action Plan. If the agency does not implement the Corrective
Action Plan according to the approved schedule, that will be grounds for termination.
If a sub-recipient/city partner fails to fulfill its obligations, the Community Development Director may
terminate the contract, in whole or part, by providing written notice of the termination and specifying
the effective date, at least five (5) days before the effective date of such termination. If funds were
used in a non-eligible manner, the CD staff will include written documentation of the determination
and the sum due for repayment or deduction from undisbursed funds as appropriate.
The sub-recipient/city partner and the City may terminate the contract for any reason upon giving at
least 30 days written notice prior to the effective date. In the case of partial termination, the portion
to be terminated must be specified in the notice. If the CD staff determines that the partial
termination will prevent the program from accomplishing the purpose of the award, the City may
completely terminate the contract.
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Collection Procedures
Loans, Forgivable Loans, Deferred Loans

Upon any condition of loan default: 1) nonpayment; 2) lack of insurance; 3) violation of rent a n d
r e n t limitations; 4) failure to report on use or continued eligibility; 5) change in title or use
without approval; 6) default on affordability requirements; 7) any other reason as defined by the
loan agreement, the City will send out a letter to Sub-recipient notifying them of the default
situation.
Active collection efforts will begin on any loan that is in default for 31 or more days. Attempts will
be made to assist sub-recipient in bringing and keeping the loan current. Letters to sub-recipient
will be sent every 30 days, documenting attempts. These attempts will be conveyed in an
increasingly urgent manner until default has reached 90 days in default, at which time the City
may consider aggressive collection proceedings to recover funds: 1) foreclosure; 2) claim
collateral; 3) civil or criminal lawsuits; 4) sell debt to a collections agency; and 5) any other
available judicial procedure to recover funds owed. City staff will consider the following factors
before initiating any of these measures:

1.

Can the loan be cured and can the rates and terms be adjusted to correct default, avoid
aggressive collection proceedings and best protect funds? Can a work out plan be
initiated?

2. Can the sub-recipient refinance with a private lender and pay off the City?
3. Can the sub-recipient sell the property and pay off the Lender?
4. Does the balance warrant aggressive collection proceedings? Will it be more costly to
pursue recovery than to bad-debt the loan?

5. Will collection of collateral cause individuals to be displaced or become homeless?
6. Will the sales price of the property “as is” cover the principal and interest owed, costs of
necessary advances (i.e. fire insurance premiums, monthly yard maintenance, monthly
space rents if a mobile home, property taxes, inspections to prevent vandalism, etc.),
and costs of aggressive collection proceedings (i.e. foreclosure, disposition, legal fees,
marketing, procurement of services, consultants, etc.)?

City staff or hired loan servicer will consider all the above factors, and prepare a recommendation
to pursue aggressive collection proceedings or bad debt the loan. Recommendations for bad debts
under $10,000 may be administratively approved by the Mayor. Recommendations of $10,000
or more require
Approval by the Mayor, Director of Finance, City Attorney, Board of Works, and City Council. City
Council makes the final decision on all aggressive collection proceedings and bad debt write-offs
on CDBG and HOME loans over $10,000, and is advised of any bad debt write-off on CDBG and HOME
loans under $10,000.
If aggressive collection proceedings are approved, the sub-recipient will be notified, by certified
mail, a thirty-day notification of foreclosure or other proceeding. This notification must include the
exact amount of funds to be remitted to the City to prevent foreclosure or other action.
Lawsuits and other judicial proceedings will be handled by the City’s Attorney’s office or outside
counsel, at the discretion of the City Attorney.
At the end of thirty days, the City or hired loan servicer will contact a reputable foreclosure service
or local title company, procured in compliance with 24 CFR Part 85, to prepare and record
documents and make all necessary notifications to the owner and other lenders. The service will
advise the City of all required documentation to initiate foreclosure or other actions (Note and
Deed of Trust usually) and funds required from the owner to cancel foreclosure or other
proceedings. The service will keep the City informed of the progress of the foreclosure or other
proceedings.
Following administrative or City Council approval, as appropriate, bad debts will be removed from
the inventory or control records and any necessary re-conveyance documentation will be prepared
and filed. All documentation will be maintained by the Community Development staff and copies
will be provided to the City Controller.

